pISSN: 2220-7562 eISSN: 2617-9482 Recognized by PMDC

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Volume 10 Issue 2, April - June 2020



Bahria University Medical & Dental College Adjacent PNS SHIFA, DHA Phase II, Karachi

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Peer Reviewed Multidisciplinary Quarterly Published Journal

ISSN (print): 2220-7562, ISSN (online): 2617-9482

Recognized by PM&DC (IP/0072)

Online edition is available at URL: https://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk,

Indexed with Index Medicus for the Eastern Mediterranean Region (IMEMR),

ROAD Directory of Open Access Scholarly Resources at https://portal.issn.org/

Pakmedinet at www.pakmedinet.com/jbumdc,

Google Scholar at https://scholar.google.com.pk/,

Bahira University DSpace Repository at http://111.68.99.22:8080/xmlui/handle/123456789/6388,

Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Center (PASTIC) at http://pastic.gov.pk/

Correspondence Address:

Editor, JBUMDC, Bahria University Medical & Dental College, Adjacent PNS SHIFA,

DHA Phase II, Karachi Pakistan

L +92-21-35319491-9

https//jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk

👰 editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

f https://www.facebook.com/jbumdc/, https://www.facebook.com/journal.bumdc.7

Published by: Bahria University Medical & Dental College

All rights are reserved with the Publisher. No part of this publication may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, without the prior written permission of the publisher.



JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Patron-in-Chief Vice Admiral Kaleem Shaukat HI(M) Rector Bahria University

Editor-in-Chief Ambreen Usmani

Editor Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala Managing Editor Nadia Khalid

Patron

Rear Admiral Imtiaz Ahmad (R) HI(M)

Director General BUMDC

Associate Editors Shakeel Ahmed Daud Mirza Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi Khalid Aziz Assistant Editors Samreen Iqbal Shama Asghar Saman Hakeem Kiran Mehboob Ali Bana Ammara Hameed Farheen Fatima

Syed Ijaz Hussain Zaidi

Tabassum A Qadeer

Yasmeen Taj

Wahab Bukhsh Kadri

Members Advisory Board - BUMDC

Beenish Fatima Hassan Ali Inayat Hussain Thaver Khalida N. Abdullah Mushtaq Ahmed Naheed Sultan Nasim Karim Nighat Rukhsana Sajid Abbas Jaffri Sameer Shahid Ameen Shazia Shakoor Syed Ahmed Omer

Members Advisory Board - National

Asad Javaid (BMUH) Hina Zafar Raja (CMH Lahore) Hussain Mehdi (JMDC) M Sameer Qureshi (DUHS) Nighat Huda (LNH) Rozina Nazir (FUCD) Rubina Ghani (JMDC) Salman Matiullah (JMDC) Syed Yawar Ali Abdi (SIOHS) Zeba Ahmed (DUHS) Zeba Haque (DUHS)

Members Advisory Board - International

Ghullam Mustafa Surti (KSA) Irfanullah Siddiqui (KSA) Jodat Askari (UAE) Masood Anwar Qureshi (KSA) Mukhtiar Baig (KSA)

Technical Assistant Mirza Hassan Ahmed Plagiarism Check Ghulam Ashdar Statistician Muhammad Faisal Fahim

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Volume-10, Issue-2. April - June 2020

CONTENTS

Editorial	
COVID-19: A Global Challenge and Its Remedy through Natural Foods Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana, Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi, Shakeel Ahmed	87
Original Articles	
BlaOXA-48 Genotypic Detection of Carbapenem Resistance in isolates of Pseudomonas aeruginosa in a Tertiary Care Hospital of Pakistan Shaista Bakhat, Yasmeen Taj, Faisal Hanif, Saman Nadeem	89
Superficial Surgical Site Infection after Primary Closure Versus Delayed Primary Closure of Wound in Perforated Appendicitis Yabinda Sahrish, Shamaila Ayub, Zainab Abdullah Kaludi, Khurram Zia, Muhammad Athar Khan, Nadia Khalid	94
Association of Hyperuricemia With Hypertension In Pakistani Population Attia Khaliq, Abdul Moueed Tariq, Abdul Latif Khattak, Karamat Ali, Shahzeb Ahmad Satti, Hafiz Yasir Rehman	98
Comparison Of Periodontal Health Of Orthodontic And Non-Orthodontic Patients Natasha Zaidi, Yousuf Moosa, Syed Ahmed Omer, Saima Mazhar, Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi, Amir Akbar Shaikh	102
Clinical Profile Of Hepatocellular Carcinoma-Experience At A Tertiary Care Hospital Rafi ud din, Fauzia Anjum, Abdul Moueed Tariq, Abdul Latif Khattak, Rao Saad Ali khan, Khawar Shabbir	106
Hepatitis B and C Infection in Gujrat, Pakistan: A Cross Sectional Study Sajid Mehmood, Abdullah Mashori, Hira Khalid, Asim Mushtaq, Jagdesh, Muhammad Zeeshan Hyder	111
Frequency of Electrolyte Disorders and Its Effect On Mortality Among Children Admitted In Pediatric Intensive Care Unit Maryam Haider, Ammara Hameed, Sara Fatima, Meher Afroze, Nadeem Noor, Uzma Arshad	115
Correlation Between Clinical Oral Dryness Score and Salivary Flow Rates in Active and Passive Smokers Seeme Nigar, Sobia Hassan, Sidra Fahim, Ahmed Bin Khalid, Faisal Salim	120
Diabetes Self-Management Education and Practices among Type 2 Diabetic Patients Muhammad Sajid Abbas Jaffri, Saja Riyaz, Sara Riyaz, Mah Rida	124
Dyslipidemia in Newly Diagnosed Diabetic Patients With or Without Micro Albuminuria Naimatullah Khan, Javed Iqbal Khan, Tariq Mehmood, Aqeel Peter	129
Frequency and Location of Supernumerary Teeth in a Private Hospital of Karachi City Syed Ahmed Omer, Seema Nisar, Perveen Memon, Hamidullah Arif, Raza Ali, Samra Faheem	133
Low Dose Theophylline and Tiotropium Rotacap as Add on Therapy in COPD Patients-Clinical Trial Muzna Hameed Dar, Syed Mehboob Alam, Qurrat ul Ain Bukhari, Kauser Ismail, Syed Azhar Hussain Zaidi	137
Role of Myo-Inositol in Treatment of Young Females Affected By Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome: Quasi Experimental Study Haniyah Qamar, Rozina Mustafa	142
Student Corner - Original Article	
Correlation of Hand Hygiene Knowledge and Hand Decontamination Practices of Medical Students of Public Sector Syeda Ghadeer Zehra Naqvi, Nazish Jaffar, Syeda Aqeela Zehra, Rubina Ghani, Hasan Ali	147
Review Articles	
Clinically Significant Variation of Paranasal Sinuses on CT-Scan Maryam Faiz Qureshi, Ambreen Usmani	152

Local Drug Delivery to Treat Chronic Periodontitis Mamoora Arslaan, Nasim Karim, Wahab Baksh Kadri, Shama Asghar	158
Case Report	
Polycythemia Vera Complicated by Portal Vein Thrombosis and Budd-Chiari Syndrome: Nabeela Iqbal, Syed Khalid Shah, Shamima Haneef	163
Commentry	
Emergence of Chikungunya Virus in Pakistan: What should be done? Abbas Ali Hussain, Rabia Sarwar	166
Letter to Editor	
Is Invasive Mucinous Breast Carcinoma A Rare Variant With Neuroendocrine Differentiation? Ayesha Asghar, Aresha Masood Shah	168
Instructions to Author	

COVID-19: A Global Challenge and Its Remedy through Natural Foods

Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana, Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi, Shakeel Ahmed

COVID-19 is indeed the crisis of the century. Previously unidentified coronavirus, (SARS-Severe acute respiratory syndrome) in 2002-2003 and in the form of (MERS- CoV-2 Middle East Respiratory Syndrome coronavirus-2) in 2011 ¹ now named as COVID-19 emerged from Wuhan, China in late December 2019. ¹ This COVID-19 is exponentially expanded worldwide in 25 countries by (Feb-6-2020) and in 195 countries by (April-18-2020).²Globally, there are 2162408 cases: 543312 recovered, 144683 deaths and 56986 critically ill patients according to international statistics by(April-18-2020).² By January 30-2020, the WHO declared the Public Health Emergency of International concern.¹ On feb-11-2020, this disease was named as Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) by WHO and is single stranded RNA virus. ³ COVID-19 is named as fifth category of communicable disease by Center of disease control, Taiwan and disease with severe pneumonia on January 15, 2020.¹

In Pakistan, the first case of COVID-19 was reported in February 26-2020 from Karachi; there are 7,638 confirmed cases, 1832 (24%) recovered, 144(1.9%) deaths as by 18-april-2020. 2

The confirmed cases of COVID-19 has similar clinical symptoms as of SARS and MERS such as fatigue, fever, dry cough, arthralgia, myalgia, respiratory symptoms, elevated C reactive protein, prolonged prothrombin time and elevated lactate dehydrogenase. ⁴ Majority of infected persons are asymptomatic or having mild symptoms, the infection can lead to pneumonia or death. The transmission in human to human during incubation period from asymptomatic individuals is troublesome which make it difficult to limit the spread of disease. ⁵ The average case fatality rate is 2.3% and it is increased as 8% between 70-79 years and 14.8% among aged 80 years and over which is of major concern. ⁶ In china, currently the case incidence rates are decreased due to the measure steps taken by them

Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana Senior Lecturer, Department of Community and Preventive Dentistry
Bahria University Medical and Dental College Email: kiranbana291@gmail.com
Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi Associate Professor & HOD Community and Preventive Dentistry and Vice Principal Dental Section Bahria University Medical and Dental College
Shakeel Ahmed Professor & HOD Peadiatrics Bahria University Medical and Dental College
Received: 03-04-2020 Accepted: 21-04-2020 but case fatality rates are exponentially increased all over the world. ⁷ Worldwide, there are various measures underway to limit the transmission of disease such as closure of educational institutes, cancellation of large gatherings and conferences, travel curtailment etc. It will remain a formidable challenge to develop an anti COVID-treatment or vaccine. The precautionary measures includes washing hands for 20 seconds, wearing mask, social distancing, coughing and sneezing etiquettes are being practiced worldwide. In addition lock down is also observed in various countries of the world to inhibit the local transmission of COVID-19.

The extent of the adverse impacts of COVID-19 on economical, social, cultural, educational, scientific, health, commercial and various aspects, along with the burden on healthcare, anticipated rates of fatalities and predicted spread of the disease worldwide, it is significantly important to explore the preventive strategies to fight against COVID-19. Currently, there is no treatment or vaccine available for COVID-19 and only symptomatic treatment is provided to the patients.

There is an increased incidence of pneumonia among elders due to weakened immune response⁸ and inflammatory process leads to case fatality among pneumonic patients.⁹

Therefore enhance the immune response is an effective way to reduce the pneumonia and inflammation and ultimately reduce the case fatality and incidence rate of COVID-19. Indeed there are various interventions to boost immunity such as exercise/physical activity, cold shower, dance, forest bathing trips, sauna, sunlight exposure, meditation, acupuncture, intermittent fasting, living at a high elevation, yoga, tai chi, smoking cessation, avoid excessive alcohol, laughter, rhythmic breathing, calorie restriction, reduce red meat, yogurt, consumption of natural fruit-vegetable ,probiotic foods, vitamin D supplementation, whole grains, statins, deuterium-depleted water consumption, aspirin, statins, adequate sleep, massage, reducing light at night, exclusive breast feeding, psychological counseling, reducing circadian disruption, pleasurable experiences, exposure to short term radio frequency radiation, ozone therapy, ultraviolet blood irradiation, radon spa therapy, hyperbaric oxygen therapy, whole body vibration exercise, hyperthermia, low level radiation exposure, influenza and other vaccinations etc.¹⁰

Now it is time to learn the lesson from past. Here we would like to shade on light towards enhancing the immune system by using nutritional based foods in order to decrease the chances of infecting with COVID-19. It is well said that you are what you eat. To fight against COVID-19, it is a time to go back to nature and use natural foods to boost immune system. It is strongly urged by the International

I

I

I

I

Society for Orthomolecular Medicine that the best method to prevent the antiviral infection is to take nutrient based diet. ¹¹ It is evident from literature that strong immune response acted as first line of defence as observed in SARS and MERS-CoV-2. ⁵ The strong immune system is highly associated in pathological process against COVID-19.⁵ Dysfunction immune system was reported in 452 confirmed cases of COVID-19 at Tongji hospital in China.¹¹

To enhance the innate antiviral immune system refers to boost the immune response towards an antigen and keep the body more resistant towards viral infection or clean the body from infections. Antimicrobial peptides in plants can boost human innate immunity and have no side effects. It can keep the human disease free. There are many traditional medicinal plant reported having strong antiviral activity. Viral enzymes have a vital role to trigger disease. Viral replication is halted if viral enzymes are neutralized. The antiviral activity includes inhibit the formation or replication of viral RNA or DNA.12 The natural plant products has proved as an antiviral agents such as flavonoids, allicin, betacarotene, oleuropein and are anti RNA anti-oxidants.13-15 An antioxidant is a material that quench a free radical and are widely found in fruits and vegetables such as carrot, raddish, spinach, citrus pulp, ginkgo biloba, olive leaf extract, garlic, tomato pomace, grape pomace, selenium, etc in dried form.^{13,14} The freshly crushed garlic (allicin) is a plant medicine. It has strong antimicrobial effect because of the chemical reaction of allicin with thiol groups of various enzymes, e.g. alcohol dehydrogenase, thioredoxin reductase, and RNA polymerase.13 They have various antioxidants effects against artherosclerosis, cancer, and Alzheimer's disease. Flavonoids have anti viral activity.¹⁵ Against SARS-CoV, flavonoids showed antiviral activity.4

In 1970, Canadian researchers reported antiviral activity against polio type 1, herpes simplex virus (HSV), echovirus 7 and coxsackievirus B5 from straw berry, apple, carrot, grape fruit juices.¹²

It is recommended that instead of dying with fear and stress of COVID-19. It is the time to follow precautionary measures against COVID-19 and take food in natural form to strengthen the immune system and fight against COVID-19.

- 1. Wu F, Zhao S, Yu B. A new coronavirus associated with human respiratory disease in China.[published on February 03, 2020]. Nature.
- 2. http://covid.gov.pk/stats/global (retrieved on 18-4-2020)
- 3. Jo S, Kim S, Shin DH, Kim MS. Inhibition of SARS-CoV 3CL protease by flavonoids. Journal of enzyme inhibition and medicinal chemistry. 2020;35(1):145-51.

- Prompetchara E, Ketloy C, Palaga T. Immune responses in COVID-19 and potential vaccines: Lessons learned from SARS and MERS epidemic. Asian Pac J Allergy Immunol. 2020;38:1-9.
- Wu, Z. & McGoogan, J. M. Characteristics of and Important Lessons From the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Outbreak in China: Summary of a Report of 72314 Cases From the Chinese Center for Disease Control and Prevention. JAMA, 2020. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih. gov/pubmed/ 32091533 3.
- Yu, P., Zhu, J., Zhang, Z., Han, Y. & Huang, L. A familial cluster of infection associated with the 2019 novel coronavirus indicating potential person-to-person transmission during the incubation period. J Infect Dis, 2020. https://www.ncbi.nlm. nih.gov/pubmed/32067043
- WHO. Coronavirus disease (COVID-2019) situation reports, 2020. https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novelcoronavirus-2019/situation-reports
- Meyer, K. C. The role of immunity in susceptibility to respiratory infection in the aging lung. Respir Physiol 128, 23-31, 2001. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/11535259 6.
- Curbelo, J. et al. Inflammation biomarkers in blood as mortality predictors in community-acquired pneumonia admitted patients: Importance of comparison with neutrophil count percentage or neutrophil-lymphocyte ratio. PLoS One 12, e0173947, 2017. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/ pubmed /28301543
- Doss M. Treatment of COVID-19 with Individualized Immune Boosting Interventions. Preprint available on OSF Preprints at: https://osf.io/6zy9u/ Published on March 20, 2020
- Hohenheim TP. Nutritional Treatment of Coronavirus-Covid 19-CoV 2-Orthomolecular Medicine: IVC 3 x 30.000 mg Ascorbate per Day. BoD–Books on Demand; 2020 Mar 12.
- Jasim SA, Naji MA. A Review Novel Antiviral Agents: A Medicinal Plant Perspective, http. www. blackwell-synergy. com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j. 2003:1365-2672.
- Choo S, Chin VK, Wong EH, Madhavan P, Tay ST, Yong PV, Chong PP. antimicrobial properties of allicin used alone or in combination with other medications. Folia Microbiologica. 2020 Mar 23:1-5.
- Salih RH, Odisho SM, Al-Shammari AM, Ibrahim OM. Antiviral effects of olea europaea leaves extract and interferonbeta on gene expression of newcastle disease virus. Adv Anim Vet Sci. 2017;5(11):436-5.
- 15. Akram M, Tahir IM, Shah SM, Mahmood Z, Altaf A, Ahmad K, Munir N, Daniyal M, Nasir S, Mehboob H. Antiviral potential of medicinal plants against HIV, HSV, influenza, hepatitis, and coxsackievirus: A systematic review. Phytotherapy Research. 2018;32(5):811-22



BlaOXA-48 Genotypic Detection of Carbapenem Resistance in Isolates of Pseudomonas Aerūginosa

Shaista Bakhat, Yasmeen Taj, Faisal Hanif, Saman Nadeem

ABSTRACT

Objective: To determine the prevalence of carbapenem resistance in strains of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* at a molecular level by detecting OXA-48 gene which transcribe for resistance to the antibiotic carbapenem among indoor patients of a tertiary care hospital Karachi.

Study Design and Setting: This observational cross-sectional study was conducted from September 2018 to May 2019 at PNS Shifa hospital of Karachi.

Methodology: Total 140 strains of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* were received and cultured from pus samples. These samples were collected from different wards like medicine, surgery, burn unit, ICU, ENT, plastic surgery, paedriatic and family ward. Carbapenem resistance was screened phenotypically by AST (Antibiotic susceptibility test), MHT (Modified Hodge test) and mCIM (Modified Carbapenem Inactivation Method) in all samples. Only in resistant cases OXA-48 gene was detected by real time PCR (polymerase chain reaction). Data was analyzed by following the proper loading sequence on product specification sheet. Data was statistically analyzed by SPSS version 23.0. Results were expressed as frequencies (percentages).

Results: Out of 140, 17 (12%) were found to be resistant to carbapenem by AST, 20 (14%) by MHT, 25 (17.8%) by mCIM. Out of 25 resistant cases, 4 (16%) presence of OXA-48 gene by real time PCR were detected.

Conclusion: OXA-48 gene showed 16% carbapenem resistance in this study. *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* is an opportunistic organism which causes multidrug resistance especially in hospitalized patients. Carbapenem is the last resort for serious infections.

Т

Т

Т

Т

Т

Т

Т

Т Т

Т

L

Т

Т

Ц

Keywords: carbapenem resistance, OXA-48 gene, Pseudomonas aeruginosa, real time PCR,

INTRODUCTION:

Antibiotic resistance in microorganisms is the major challenge to global health all over the world. Several factors are involved in the emergence of resistance in microorganisms like Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Acinetobacter bauminnii and Enterobacteriaceae group. The major one is the non-judicious use of antibiotics in human beings and animals. These microorganisms exhibit resistance towards multiple drugs. Initially, few antibiotics were ineffective but resistance towards multiple antibiotics is observed all over the world. For the last twenty years, resistance as a result of β -lactamase enzymes occurred towards cephamycins, cephalosporins, carabapenems and monobactum. New resistance mechanisms are evolving and disseminating all over the world and reduce physician's abilities to treat common infections. Bacteria

Shaista Bakhat Senior Lecturer, Department of Pathology Bahria University Medical and Dental College Email: shaistakhurram2@gmail.com Yasmeen Taj Professor Department of Pathology
Bahria University Medical and Dental College
Faisal Hanif Assistant Professor Bahria University Medical and Dental College
Saman Nadeem Trainee FCPS PNS SHIFA Hospital, Karachi
Received: 13-Dec-2019 Accepted: 12-Mar-2020

______ elaborated new type of β -lactamase; extended spectrum β lactamase (ESBL) that is a carbapenemase and pan-drug resistance is expected in near future.¹

> Pseudomonas aeruginosa is an opportunistic and sturdy microorganism that can cause disease in those individuals suffering from debilitating conditions in hospital settings like infections in burn patients and ventilator associated pneumonia. According to CDC (Center for disease control), the elderly, young and sick people are more vulnerable to diseases which are resistant to antibiotics. Pseudomonas aeruginosa exhibits both intrinsic and acquired resistance. Intrinsic resistance is caused by over-expressed efflux pumps and reduction of the uptake of antimicrobial drugs. Genotypic resistance is acquired by mutation in genes encoding influx pumps, efflux pumps, penicillin-binding protein and β lactamases. Bacteria can acquire extensive genetic diversity through acquisition and deletion of genetic elements and this converts non pathogenic form of microorganisms into pathogenic form and plays important role in further dissemination of resistant genes among bacterial population. Antibiotic resistance mediated by β -lactamase is caused by many plasmid borne genes (KPC, IMI, GES, NDM, VIM, GIM and OXA-48) which encode enzymes that inactivate carbapenem.²

> GENEVA WHO has provided the list of resistant pathogens in 2017. These bacteria are genetically equipped with resistant genes. According to this list, Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Acinetobacterbauminnii and Enterobacteriaceae exhibited resistance towards carbapenem. Carbapenems like

(meropenem, imipenem, doripenem and ertapenem) are the last option in some debilitating infections caused by this group of bacteria.³ This drug is capable of treating life threatening infections of extended spectrum β-lactamase producing isolates of Pseudomonas aeruginosa. Excessive use of carbapenem has led towards a pattern of resistance. These resistant genes are grouped into different classes.⁴ According to Ambler's classification, these are categorized into class A serine beta-lactam (KPC), class B metallo beta lactemases that contain zinc at active site (VIM, IMP, NDM), and class D carbapenemase serine beta-lactam (OXA-48). OXA-48 has ability to hydrolyze carbapenems by breaking its beta-lactam ring.⁵ Detection of OXA-48 was first time reported in isolates of Enterobacteriaceae in Turkey in 2001.6 Isolates carrying these genes have been reported all over the world. It was further reported in Europe and Middle East. OXA-48 gene has now also reported in gram negative bacteria in neighboring countries like India, China, Iran and Bangladesh.7-11 Different phenotypic and molecular methods have been employed to detect carbapenem resistance. Molecular methods are gold standard for detection genotypic resistance. At molecular level genes NDM, KPC, VIP and IMP have been reported in Pakistan, but OXA-48 has not been detected in strains of Pseudomonas aeruginosa in our country. This resistant gene was detected with help of real time PCR. It is quantitative test with high level of accuracy, high sensitivity and high specificity.¹²

In this study, we detected bla_{OXA-48} transcribing resistance towards carbapenem 16% in strains of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* in a tertiary care hospital of Karachi within time period of one year.

METHODOLOGY:

This observational cross sectional, study was conducted at PNS Shifa (tertiary care hospital) Karachi. Sample size was calculated by WHO calculator with prevalence rate 10.2%.⁷140 specimens of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* were received from different wards of hospital from Jan 2018-Jan2019. This study was approved by both Ethical Review Committee of Bahria University Medical and Dental College and from PNS Shifa. Written consent was obtained from hospitalized patients after briefing the purpose of research work.

The strains of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* were collected from pus swab of infected site from different body parts. These pus swabs were received at microbiology laboratory from different wards. Repeat samples, out-door patients and patients already on antibiotics were excluded. Samples were collected from several wards like Intensive care unit, Burn unit, Plastic surgery, General surgery, ENT (ear, nose and throat) ward, Paedriatic ward, medicine and family ward. Microorganisms were considered as gram negative *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* on basis of gram staining, blood culture¹³, MacConkey agar¹⁴ and oxidase test (Scien cell). Carbapenem like meropenem $10\mu g$ (oxoid) and imipenem $10\mu g$ (oxoid) susceptibility were checked by antibiotic susceptibility test (disc diffusion method) according to CLSI (clinical laboratory standard institute).¹⁵ Screensing of carbamanimase producing *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* was done by MHT (Modified Hodge Test)¹⁶ and mCIM (Modified carbapenemase inactivation method)¹⁷.

Genotypic resistance of Pseudomonas aeruginosa was confirmed by detecting bla_{OXA-48} gene with help of real time PCR (polymerase chain reaction) as per Figure 1. Microbial DNA was extracted from culture of up to 2X10⁹ bacterial cells with help of Qiagen Medical DNA qPCR assay kit CATALOG NO 330033 BBXX-#####X (R/F) 330043: BBID-####Z (R/F)-3/4/5/6/7/America. Homogenous mixture was prepared by adding 400µl ATL buffer after vertexing at 14,000Xg speed. Mixture was lysed with 40µl proteinase K and vertexed for 10 seconds and Incubated at 56?C for 10 minutes. Buffer APL2 200ml was put into mixture, this mixture was vertexed for 30 seconds and incubated at 70?C for 10 minutes. Then it was spinned in order to remove the drops. Precipitation was done by adding 300µl ethanol and mixed by vertexing for 15-30 minutes. After passing through vacuum pump, the lysate was added into the tube extender of the QIA amp UCP Mini column. Whenever all lysate had been removed through the columns, its pressure was released to Ombar by switching off the vacuum pump. 750µl Buffer APW2 was added to mini column of QIA amp UCP and pressure was released by switching off the vacuum pump. 2ml collection tube held the mini column and centrifuged at 20,000xg; 14,000 rpm for 3 minutes. Mini column was kept in into a new 2ml collection tube with open lid and incubated at 56?C for 3 minutes. Mini column was shifted from collection tube to 1.5ml elution tube. 20-100µl Buffer AVE was used at the center of mini membrane. After incubated at room temperature for a minute, it was centrifuged at 20,000xg; 14,000rpm for elution of DNA. Primers were available in Qiagen kit as per Table 1. OD (optical density) of extracted DNA was confirmed from Dow University of Health Sciences as per Table 2.

Real time PCR was performed for detection of resistant gene. Reaction mixture was arranged with DNA positive control (OXA-48), sample and negative template control .25 μ l reaction mixes were poured into PCR wells.20 μ l reaction mixes was added as per well only for Rotor-Gene. Data was analyzed by following the proper loading sequence on product specification sheet. The real time thermal cycler was used. Calculation of thermal cycle (C_T) was done for each cycle with help of cycler's software. Threshold 0.02 was considered as standard. The values of threshold cycles were shifted for each well to Excel spread sheet.

Data was statistically analyzed by SPSS version 23.0. Results were expressed as frequencies (percentages).

REULTS:

Among the total 140 samples of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa*, 17 cases (12%) exhibited resistance towards carbapenem by (AST method), 20 (14%) resistant cases by MHT and 25

(17.9%) cases by mCIM. These 25 resistant cases were further evaluated for detection of resistant gene OXA-48 as per Figure 2. We detected OXA-48(n=4) (16%) resistant genes, in strains of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa*.

Table 1:	Primers fo	r detection	of OXA-48	in Pseudom	onas aeruginosa
10010 11			01 01111 10		onces eren ergeneober

Targeted Gene	Kit Name	Primer Name	Sequence (5'-3' Direction)	Length Bases	Amplicon Size, bp	Tem in C?	Primer conc, pmol/µl
OVA 49	Qiagen Microbial	Reverse	ACGACGGCATAGTCATTTGC	20	595 or 507	56	15,000.0
UAA-48	DNA qPCR Assay Kit	Forward	AACGGGCGAACCAAGCATTTT	21	383 OF 397	50	ropino

 Table 2: Confirmation of extracted DNA (Optical density)

Samples	Yield
1	54.90g/µl
2	45.81g/µl
3	93.66g/µl
4	67.30g/µl
5	89.43g/µl
6	185.70g/µl
7	288.67g/µl
8	82.10g/µl

Figure 1: Cumulative result OXA-48 positive cases by real time PCR







DISCUSSION:

Pseudomonas aeruginosa is normal flora of human beings but whenever it gets opportunity it will become pathogenic and cause nosocomial infections. These infections are caused by imprudent utilization of antibiotics, surgical intervention and use of equipments. The resistance that is displayed by microorganisms towards multiple antibiotics can be both intrinsic and acquired or extrinsic. Resistant nosocomial infections do not respond to conventional antibiotics, and have for the last ten years inculcated a fear among health care facilitators.¹⁸

There are many phenotypic and genotypic methods for detection of carbapenamase producing Pseudomonas aeruginosa. Phenotypic methods are AST (Antibiotic sensitivity test), CDDT (combination disk diffusion test), MHT (Modified Hodge Test), mCIM (Modified carbapenem inactivation method), and genotypic methods are PCR amplification, MALDI TOFF (Matrix assisted laserdesorption / ionization-time of flight), real timePCR.¹⁹ Carbapenem resistance towards Pseudomonas aeruginosaby phenotypic methods AST n=17 (12%) were detected according to CLSI (Clinical and laboratory standard institutes), MHT n=20 (14%) and mCIM n=25 (17.8%). Abbas et al exhibited carbapenem resistance 9.3% in isolates of Pseudomonasaer uginosa detected by AST which was higher as compared to our study.²⁰ Different studies described mCIM as a simple, accurate and reliable method for detection of carbapenemare in accordance with our study.²¹⁻²³ Phenotypic methods are screening methods. Genotypic methods are used for detection of multiple resistant genes. Multiple genes are involved in resistance like KPC, VIM, IMP, SIM, GES and NDM. In our study we only detected the presence of OXA-48 n=4 (16%) by using real time PCR. OXA-48 has been reported in different parts of the world. First OXA-48 gene was detected in Istanbul, Turkey. It has been found in African countries, Middle East, China, Afghanistan and India.²⁴ Our findings are in accordance with other studies like Bonnin et al recommended real time PCR as highly accurate and specific method.²⁵ This study focused on bla_{OXA-48} as it has not been found in strains of Pseudomonas aeruginosa in previous studies in Pakistan, while it is present in other neighbouring countries. Begum and Shamsuz zaman (2016) detected OXA-48 20% in Dhaka.²⁶ There is threat of dissemination of this gene through horizontal gene transfer as Bangladesh is our neighboring country. According to study in Sudan Mohamed et al, OXA-48 exhibited resistance towards *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* was 22.4% which is quite close to our study.²⁷ Van der zee et al (2014) detected carbapenem resistant gene OXA-48 by real time PCR as accurate and reliable method in association with our study.²⁸

Advances in diagnostic technologies have transformed the scenario of alleviating life threatening infections and have played pivotal role in contribution towards human health. It is the lack of motivation and interest of stake holders that now under minesserious problems such as nosocomial infections and antibiotic resistance by microorganisms like Pseudomonasaeruginosa. Although it is possible to overcome all these fatal infections through strict surveillance of resistant isolates economic problem in a resource poor country like ours hinders progress and allows dissemination of resistant genes. Hence Â-lactamases are transcribed by various genes like VIM, IMP, KPC, and so on. These genes are transferred from resistant strains to sensitive strains and have been reported in Pakistan. OXA-48 which transcribes class D was not previously reported in strains of Pseudomonas aeruginosa in Pakistan.

The foremost limitation of our study is that results cannot be generalized as we took data only from one Military set up where the subject population does not match the demograph of our country. OXA-48 gene showed 16% carbapenem resistance because of small sample size. Our study included only hospitalized patients. There are multiple carbapenemase genes and their allelic variants we looked for only OXA-48 gene using uniplex primers.

CONCLUSION:

Carbapenem resistance in strains of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* due to the gene bla_{OXA-48} is accounted for 16% of tested cases, microorganisms can acquire extensive genetic diversity through acquisition of resistant genes and this converts a non pathogenic bacteria into pathogenic, which can disseminate at high rate, creating an antibiotic resistance crisis. Detection of these cases and establishing surveillance programs for control of antibiotic resistance will go a long way in resolving this problem.

- 1. Ventola CL. The antibiotic resistance crisis: part 1: causes and threats. Pharmacy and therapeutics. 2015; 40(4):277.
- Chang HH, Cohen T, Grad YH, Hanage WP, O'Brien TF, Lipsitch M. Origin and proliferation of multiple-drug resistance in bacterial pathogens. Microbiol. Mol. Biol. Rev.. 2015;79(1):101-16.
- 3. World Health Organization. Implementation manual to prevent and control the spread of carbapenem-resistant organisms at the national and health care facility level: interim practical manual supporting implementation of the Guidelines for the prevention and control of carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriaceae, Acinetobacter baumannii and Pseudomonas aeruginosa in health care facilities. World Health Organization; 2019.

- 4. Zanganeh Z, Eftekhar F. Correlation of oxacillinase gene carriage with the genetic fingerprints of imipenem-resistant clinical isolates of Acinetobacter baumannii. JJM. 2015 8(9).
- 5. Codjoe FS, Donkor ES. Carbapenem resistance: a rev. Med Sci. 2018; 6(1):1.
- Akta^o Z, Kayacan ÇB, Schneider I, Can B, Midilli K, Bauernfeind A. Carbapenem-hydrolyzing oxacillinase, OXA-48, persists in Klebsiellapneumoniae in Istanbul, Turkey. Chemotherapy. 2008; 54(2):101-6.
- Kazi M, Khot R, Shetty A, Rodrigues C. Rapid detection of the commonly encountered carbapenemases (New Delhi metallo-β-lactamase, OXA-48/181) directly from various clinical samples using multiplex real-time polymerase chain reaction assay. IJMS. 2018 1;36(3):369.
- Mohanty S, Maurya V, Gaind R, Deb M. Phenotypic characterization and colistin susceptibilities of carbapenemresistant of Pseudomonas aeruginosa and Acinetobacter spp. The Journal of Infection in Developing Countries. 2013; 7(11):880-7.
- 9. Guo L, An J, Ma Y, Ye L, Luo Y, Tao C, Yang J. Nosocomial outbreak of OXA-48-producing Klebsiellapneumoniae in a Chinese hospital: clonal transmission of ST147 and ST383. PLoS One. 2016; 11(8):e0160754.
- Moghadampour M, Rezaei A, Faghri J. The emergence of bla OXA-48 and bla NDM among ESBL-producing Klebsiellapneumoniae in clinical isolates of a tertiary hospital in Iran. ActamicrobiologicaetimmunologicaHungarica. 2018; 65(3):335-44.
- Khatun R, Shamsuzzaman SM. Detection of OXA-181/OXA-48 carbapenemase producing Enterobacteriaceae in Bangladesh. Ibrahim Medical College Journal. 2015;9(2):45-51.
- 12. Bakthavatchalam YD, Anandan S, Veeraraghavan B. Laboratory detection and clinical implication of oxacillinase-48 like carbapenemase: the hidden threat. Journal of global infectious diseases. 2016; 8(1):41.
- 13. Golle A, Janezic S, Rupnik M. Low overlap between carbapenem resistant Pseudomonas aeruginosa genotypes isolated from hospitalized patients and wastewater treatment plants. PloS one. 2017; 12(10):e0186736.
- 14. Al-Ahmadi GJ, Roodsari RZ. Fast and specific detection of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa from other pseudomonas species by PCR. Annals of burns and fire disasters. 2016 31; 29(4):264.
- 15. Wenzler E. Feature Article Applying Fluoroquinolone Pharmacokinetics, Pharmacodynamics, and Updated Clinical Breakpoints for Gram-Negative Pathogens to Determine Optimal Dosing. CLSI AST News Update.4 2019.
- 16. Song W, Hong SG, Yong D, Jeong SH, Kim HS, et al. Combined use of the modified hodge test and carbapenemase inhibition test for detection of carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae and metallo-β-lactamase-producing Pseudomonas spp. Annals of laboratory medicine. 2015; 35(2):212-9.
- 17. Walthall K, Anderson K, Reese N, Lonsway D, KamileRasheed J, Karlsson M. Evaluation of the RAPIDEC CARBA NP, Conventional CarbaNP, and the Modified Carbapenem Inactivation Method (mCIM) Tests for Phenotypic Detection of Carbapenemase-Producing Organisms. American Journal of Clinical Pathology. 2018; 150(suppl_1):S123-4.

- Judd WR, Ratliff PD, Hickson RP, Stephens DM, Kennedy CA. Clinical and economic impact of meropenem resistance in Pseudomonas aeruginosa–infected patients. American journal of infection control. 2016; 44(11):1275-9.
- 19. Buehrle DJ, Shields RK, Clarke LG, et al. Carbapenemresistant Pseudomonas aeruginosa bacteremia: risk factors for mortality and microbiologic treatment failure. Antimicrob agents and chemother. 2017; 61(1):e01243-16.
- Abbas SH, Naeem M, Adil M, Naz SM, Khan A, Khan MU. Sensitivity patterns of Pseudomonas aeruginosa isolates obtained from clinical specimens in Peshawar. Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad. 2015 ;27(2):329-32.
- Pierce VM, Simner PJ, Lonsway DR, Roe-Carpenter DE, Johnson JK, Brasso WB, et al. Modified carbapenem inactivation method for phenotypic detection of carbapenemase production among Enterobacteriaceae. Journal of clinical microbiology. 2017; 55(8):2321-33.
- 22. Sfeir MM, Satlin MJ, Fauntleroy KA, et al. Blood-Modified Carbapenem Inactivation Method (Blood-mCIM): a Phenotypic Method for Detecting Carbapenemase-Producing Enterobacteriaceae Directly from Positive Blood Culture Broths. Journal of clinic microb. 2019.
- 23. Pawar S, Mohite ST, Datkhile K, et al. Closing the Gap Between Phenotypic and Genotypic Detection of Carbapenem Resistant Enterobacteriaceae by New Modified Carbapenem Inactivation Method. J of Clin and Diag. Res. 2018; 12(11).

- 24. Baran I, Aksu N. Phenotypic and genotypic characteristics of carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriaceae in a tertiary-level reference hospital in Turkey. Annals of clinical microbiology and antimicrobials. 2016;15(1):20.
- 25. Bonnin RA, Bogaerts P, Girlich D, Huang TD, Dortet L, et al. Molecular characterization of OXA-198 carbapenemase-producing Pseudomonas aeruginosa clinical isolates. Antimicrobial agents and chemotherapy. 2018; 62(6):e02496-17.
- 26. Begum N, Shamsuzzaman SM. Emergence of carbapenemaseproducing urinary isolates at a tertiary care hospital in Dhaka, Bangladesh. Tzu Chi Medical Journal. 2016; 28(3):94-8.
- Mohamed SE, Alobied A, Hussien WM, Saeed MI. blaOXA-48 carbapenem resistant Pseudomonas aeruginosa clinical isolates in Sudan. Journal of Advances in Microbiology. 2018:1-5.
- Van der Zee A, Roorda L, Bosman G, Fluit AC, et al. Multicentre evaluation of real-time multiplex PCR for detection of carbapenemase genes OXA-48, VIM, IMP, NDM and KPC. BMC infectious diseases. 2014; 14(1):27.



Superficial Surgical Site Infection after Primary Closure Versus Delayed Primary **Closure of Wound in Perforated Appendicitis**

Yabinda Sahrish, Shamaila Ayub, Zainab Abdullah Kaludi, Khurram Zia, Muhammad Athar Khan, Nadia Khalid

ABSTRACT

Objective: To assess the superficial surgical site infection after primary closure versus delayed primary closure of wound in perforated appendicitis.

Study Design and Setting: This was an observational study conducted at Darul Sehat Hospital & Civil Hospital Karachi during March 2019 to August 2019

Methodology: All patients of either gender between 18-50 years of age undergoing open Appendectomy through standard gridiron incision in emergency having consented for participation in the study prior to surgery and with per-operative finding of perforated appendix in emergency were included. Patients on steroids or immunosuppressive agents, smoker staking 5 or more cigarettes per day, patients with history of Diabetes Mellitus, chronic liver disease and chronic renal failure were excluded from the study. Patients with perforated appendix were randomly allocated into two Groups. Group A received delayed primary closure at 3rd post-operative day while in Group B primary closure was done immediately after appendectomy. All patients were examined for signs and symptoms of superficial surgical site infection at the 5th postoperative day before discharge from the hospital. SPSS version 13 was used for data analysis. Chi square test was applied to compare the outcome (superficial surgical site infection) in both groups. P-value <0.05 was considered as significant.

Results: A total sixty patients were allocated in each group. Wound infection was very high among patients with immediate closure (40%) as compared to group which received delayed primary closure (15%) (p=0.020).

Conclusion: The superficial surgical site infection was significantly higher after primary closure versus delayed primary closure of wound in perforated appendicitis.

Keywords: Perforated Appendicitis, Surgical Wound Infection, Wound Closure Techniques,

INTRODUCTION:

Appendicitis is one of the most common causes of acute abdominal pain; with an incidence of 110 / 100,000.1 Wound infection at the surgical site is the most common complication after surgery. ^{2,3} The superficial surgical site is the actual incision site and is also called the surgical wound. They are often used interchangeably. Surgical wound infections can have serious consequences for patients and care facilities: _____

Yabinda Sahrish Senior Registrar, Surgery Department Liaquat College of Medicine and Dentistry, Karachi
Shamaila Ayub Assistant Professor, Surgery Department United Medical and Dental College, Karachi
Zainab Abdullah Kaludi Senior Registrar, Surgery Department Shaheed Mohtarma Benazir Bhutto Medical College, Karachi
Khurram Zia Assistant Professor, Surgery Department Liaquat College of Medicine and Dentistry, Karachi
Muhammad Athar Khan Associate Professor, Department of Community Medicine Liaquat College of Medicine & Dentistry, Karachi Email: matharm@yahoo.com
Nadia Khalid Senior Lecturer, Department of Community Health Sciences Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi
Received: 27-Nov-2019 Accepted: 08-Mar-2020

surgical site infections (SSI) increase postoperative hospital stays, patient mortality, and the need for reoperations. The latest estimates indicated 15.7% of hospital-acquired infections were due to SSI and reported as third most prevalent form of healthcare-related infections.⁴ Obesity is considered a risk factor for surgical site infection (SSI). A trend of increasing BMI from normal obesity may increase the risk for SSI risk morbidly has been observed in almost all types of surgery.⁵

The wound infection rate is 4.7% for uncomplicated appendicitis but increases up to 34.1% in perforated appendicitis. ⁶ In perforated appendicitis; there is a contamination of the incision margins with colonic bacteria and results in surgical site infection during immediate postoperative day. To minimize this contamination and reducing the chances of infection, delayed primary closure of wound is advocated by some surgeons in perforated appendicitis. In this technique wound is left open, dressed daily for 3-5 days with anti-bacterial solution (Povidone-iodine) and then closed primarily.

Superficial surgical site infection (SSI) is common after appendectomy, especially in complicated appendicitis (i.e. gangrene and rupture); the incidence is 9% to 53%. It increases pain, length of stay and costs. The risk factors related to SSI are divided into patient-related factors, surgeryrelated factors and microbial-related factors. ⁷ A study by Siribumrungwong et al confirmed the results of previous systematic reviews and meta-analysis, which also indicate that lower superficial SSI closure (PC) in primary wounds is better than delayed primary wound closure (DPC)) Group, 23% (12%, 33%) and 26% (10%, 42%). ^{8,9}

There is still controversy among surgeons about the appropriate method of wound closure in perforated appendicitis. Most surgeons favor primary closure as it is more satisfying for the patients, reduces length of hospital stay and treatment cost as no additional procedure has to be performed and infection rate comparable to delayed closure. ^{8,9}Several studies and randomized controlled trials (RCTs) have tried to answer this question in the past, with mixed results. ^{10,11}Meka et al. concluded that the risk of SSI in ruptured appendicitis showed no difference between PC and DPC techniques. In low-risk SSI patients, PC does not increase the risk of SSI. ¹²

As one would expect, this difficulty is less common in today's era of laparoscopic appendectomy. However, open appendectomy is still standard practice in many parts of the world. In fact, even in the UK and Europe, one-third of appendectomy is still performed in an open way. ¹³ Wound infections is an extremely cumbersome morbidity for the patients. It not only increases hospital stay but also leads to poor scar and social burden on patients and their family.¹⁴ As perforated appendicitis is an already known cause for post-operative wound infection in the selected cases (an intervention at the time of surgery) that reduces post-operative wound infection and results into better patient management and satisfaction. To assess the superficial surgical site infection after primary closure versus delayed primary closure of wound in perforated appendicitis. This study aimed to investigate the effect of delayed primary closure on wound infection by comparing it to primary closure so that hospital stay and operative cost can be reduced and early discharge achieved.

METHODOLOGY:

This was the comparative observational study conducted at Darul Sehat Hospital & Civil Hospital Karachi during March 2019 to August 2019. All patients of either gender between 18-50 years of age undergoing open Appendectomy through standard gridiron incision in emergency having consented for participation in the study prior to surgery and with peroperative finding of perforated appendix in emergency were included.Patients on steroids or immunosuppressive agents, smokers taking 5 or more cigarettes per day, patients with history of Diabetes Mellitus, chronic liver disease and chronic renal failure were excluded from the study. The sample size was calculated using website open epi.com. Considering average infection rates of 2.9% and 38.9% in the study and control group respectively and taking 95% confidence interval and 95% power of the test, the sample size was 24 patients in each group. Total 60 patients in both groups were assessed for wound closure. Non-probability - consecutive sampling was used and patients were randomly allocated in

Group A (Study group) and Group B (Control group) using random allocation software version 1.0.0.Group A was comprises of patients with delayed wound closure and Group B was comprises of primary wound closure. Initial resuscitation was done with intravenous fluids and analgesics. At induction, all patients were given 1gm of third generation cephalosporin and 500mg of Metronidazole for prophylaxis against infection. After that all patients underwent open Appendectomy via grid iron incision. In the group A, the skin and subcutaneous tissue was closed at 3rd post-operative day. However, in the group B, the wound was simply closed at the time of surgery. Similar post-operative antibiotics i.e. Cephalosporins and Metronidazole were given for 5 days in both groups.

All patients were examined for signs and symptoms of superficial surgical site infection at the 5th post-operative day before discharge from the hospital. Grading for examination of wound for infection on 5thpost-operative day was assessed as Grade 0 Normal healing, Grade 1 Normal healing with bruising, Grade 2 Erythema plus fever >380, Grade 3 Clear or hemoserous discharge, Grade 4 Purulent discharge, Wound infection was labeled to grade 2 and above. The study was executed after approval of Ethical Review Committee of Liaquat College of Medicine & Dentistry, Karachi. Confidentiality was protected by using password-protected files, encryption when sending information over the Internet, and even old-fashioned locked doors and drawers. Confidentiality of all record was maintained as per hospital policy. SPSS version 13 was used for data entry and analysis. Chi square test was applied post stratification to compare the outcome (superficial surgical site infection) in both groups. P-value > 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

RESULTS:

Mean age of the patients was 23.31 ± 10.06 years. Mean BMI of the patients was 19.11 ± 2.99 Kg/m².Duration of surgery of >30 minutes was higher in both groups with 29 (96.7%) in each group (Table – I). Among grading, grade 0 was found to be higher 11 (36.7%) in group A whereas grade 3 was found to be higher 9 (30%) in group B. Significant association was observed in between wound infection and group.

In group B; 24 patients (40%) suffered from wound infection as compared to group A in which 9(15%) patients got infected (Table – II). Wound infection was significantly higher among patients with group B as compared to group A (p-value 0.020). Post stratification analysis didn't show any significant difference in infection rate among the groups on the basis of gender, age, operative time and BMI.

DISCUSSION:

In perforated appendicitis there is a contamination of the incision margins with colonic bacteria which leads to surgical site infection in the immediate post-operative day. There is

	Group A (n=60)	Group B (n=60)
Age of the patients (years)	23.5 ± 11.3	22.8 ± 13.4
Male : Female	35:25	37:23
BMI of the patients (Kg/m ²)	20.6 ± 4.1	19.8 ± 5.2
Operative time (minutes)	43.5 ± 12.3	41.8 ± 13.7

Table - I: Patient characteristics of the two groups



Figure I: Comparison of grading with respect to group

Southampton wound grading system: Grade 0 Normal healing, Grade 1 Normal healing with bruising, Grade 2 Erythema plus fever > 380, Grade 3 Clear or hemoserous discharge, Grade 4 Purulent discharge. Grade 2 and above was considered as wound infection.

Table - II: Comparison of wound infection between groups

Group	Wound	Infection	Total	P_value*	
Gloup	Yes	No	Total	I -value	
А	9 (15%)	51 (85%)	60 (100%)		
В	24 (40%)	36 (60%)	60 (100%)	0.020	
Total	33 (27.5%)	87 (72.5%)	120 (100%)		

* = Chi square test

still controversy among surgeons about the appropriate method of wound closure in perforated appendicitis. A lot of surgeons favor primary closure as it is difficult to brief patient that his/her wound would be left open after surgery and obviously it adds an additional procedure to all the patients and ultimately to the healthcare costs.¹⁵⁻¹⁸However, studies suggest that delayed primary closure is associated with a significantly lower wound infection rate thus reducing the length of hospital stay, operative cost and more patient satisfaction.^{6, 19,20,21}

In our study, wound infection was significantly higher among patients with group B (40%) as compared to group A (15%) although the infection rate came out to be higher in both groups when compared to international literature. Chiang and colleagues have shown that in cases of perforated appendicitis wound infection rate in delayed primary closure group is 2.9% as compared to 38.9% in primary closure group.²⁰ A recent systematic review conducted by Hureibi

et al. in 2019, they retrieved 471 studies; eight met the eligibility criteria and were included in the analysis. These trials included 1,263 patients, of whom 623 patients underwent delayed closure and 640 primary closures. Surgical Site Infections (SSI) rates were not significantly different between the DC and PC groups (16.25% & 12.68% respectively. OR=0.60, 95% CI: 0.23-1.54.¹⁰Wound infection is an extremely cumbersome morbidity for the patients. It not only increases hospital stay but also leads to poor scar and social burden on patients and their family. As perforated appendicitis is an already known cause for post-operative wound infection,²² in these selected cases an intervention at the time of surgery that reduces post-operative wound infection.

The SSI rate was lower in the PC than the DPC group, with rates of 5% versus 9% respectively. Patients who received PC would be at an approximately 77.8% lower risk of SSI than patients who received DPC, but this was not significantly different.¹¹ Latif et al reported that delayed primary closure for different pathologies in appendicectomy is a safe approach associated with prolonged admission and adverse scar outcome while the primary closure is the most practiced approach which is associated with better patients satisfaction but morbidity rate being low can be grave and at times mortality is encountered.²³ SSI developed in 40.2 % of patients after closure of incisions. Primary closure group had a higher incidence of SSI and longer hospital stay.²⁴ Delayed primary closure employs a safe means of avoiding this morbidity and its associated cost issues and patient disappointment.

CONCLUSION:

The superficial surgical site infection was significantly higher after primary closure versus delayed primary closure of wound in perforated appendicitis.

- 1. Wilasrusmee C, Siribumrungwong B, Phuwapraisirisan S, Poprom N, Woratanarat P, Lertsithichai P, et al. Developing and validating of Ramathibodi Appendicitis Score (RAMA-AS) for diagnosis of appendicitis in suspected appendicitis patients. World J Emerg Surg. 2017 Nov 9;12:49. doi: 10.1186/s13017-017-0160-3.
- 2. Ronan O,Connell P. The vermiform appendix. In: William NS, Bulstrode CJ, Ronan O'Connell P, editors. Bailey and Love's short practice of surgery. 25th ed. London: Edward Arnold; 2008 p.1204-18.
- 3. Khan NK, Fayyad T, Cecil TD, Moran JB. Laparoscopic versus Open Appendicectomy: the risk of post-operative infectious complications. J SocLaparoscSurg2007; 11:363-7.
- Thelwall S, Harrington P, Sheridan E, Lamagni T. Impact of obesity on the risk of wound infection following surgery: results from a nationwide prospective multicentre cohort study in England. ClinMicrobiol Infect. doi:10.1016/j.cmi. 2015.07. 003

- Meijs AP, Koek MBG, Vos MC, Geerlings SE, Vogely HC, de Greeff SC. The effect of body mass index on the risk of surgical site infection. Infect Control HospEpidemiol. 2019;40(9):991–996. doi:10.1017/ice.2019.165
- 6. Grosfeld JL, Solit RW. Prevention of wound infection in perforated appendicitis: experience with delayed primary wound closure. Ann Surg Nov 1968;168(5):891-95
- Noorit P, Siribumrungwong B, Thakkinstian A. Clinical prediction score for superficial surgical site infection after appendectomy in adults with complicated appendicitis. World J Emerg Surg. 2018;13:23. doi:10.1186/s13017-018-0186-1
- Siribumrungwong B, Noorit P, Wilasrusmee C, AmmarinThakkinstian. A systematic review and meta-analysis of randomised controlled trials of delayed primary wound closure in contaminated abdominal wounds. World J EmergSurg2014; 9:49.
- Siribumrungwong B, Chantip A, Noorit P, Wilasrusmee C, Ungpinitpong W, Chotiya P, et al. Comparison of Superficial Surgical Site Infection Between Delayed Primary Versus Primary Wound Closure in Complicated Appendicitis: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Ann Surg. 2018 Apr; 267(4):631-637. doi: 10.1097/SLA.00000000002464.
- Hureibia K, Abrahama P, Sunidar O, Alaraimi B, Elzaidi E. To close or not to close? A systematic review and metaanalysis of wound closure in appendicectomy. International Journal of Surgery Open 2019; 16: 9-13.
- 11. Ahmad M, Ali K, Latif H, Naz S, Said K. Comparison of primary wound closure with delayed primary closure in perforated appendicitis. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad 2014;26(2):153e7.
- Meka M, Anasuri B. Comparison of superficial site infection between delayed primary and primary wound closures in ruptured appendicitis IntSurg J. 2018 Apr;5(4):1354-1357
- 13. Collaborative NSR. Multicentre observational study of performance variation in provision and outcome of emergency appendicectomy. Br J Surg2013;100(9):1240
- Ahmad M, Ali K, Latif H, Naz S, Said K. Comparison of rate of surgical wound infection, length of hospital stay and patient convenience in complicated appendicitis between primary closure and delayed primary closure. Age 2012;35(14.55). 31.38-11.07.

- 15. Pettigrew RA. Delayed primary wound closure in gangrenous and perforated appendicitis. Br J Surg. 1981;68(9):635-38.
- Khan KI, Mahmood S, Akmal M, Waqas A. Comparison of rate of surgical wound infection, length of hospital stay and patient convenience in complicated appendicitis between primary closure and delayed primary closure. J Pak Med Assoc. 2012;62:596.
- 17. Siribumrungwong B, Srikuea K, Thakkinstian A, Comparison of superficial surgical site infection between delayed primary and primary wound closures in ruptured appendicitis. Asian J Surg. 2014 Jul;37(3):120-4.
- Chatwiriyacharoen W, Surgical wound infection post surgery in perforated appendicitis in children. J Med Assoc Thai. 2002;85(5):572-76.
- Lemieur TP, Rodriguez JL, Jabobs DM, Bennett ME, West MA. Wound management in perforated appendicitis. Am Surg1999;65(5):439.
- 20. Chiang R-A, Chen S-L, Tsai Y-C. Delayed primary closure versus primary closure for wound management in perforated appendicitis: a prospective randomized controlled trial. J Chin Med Assoc2012;75(4):156e9.
- Shawn JP, Timothy LP. Acute appendicitis. In: Schein M, Wise L. editors. Controversies in surgery, Volume (4) NewYork, Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg; 2001.p.141-53
- 22. Jaffe BM, Berger DH, BrunicardiFC(eds). The appendix. In: Schwartz's principles of surgery. 9th ed. Texas: McGraw Hill; 2010 p.1073-89.
- 23. Latif A, Jamil A, Ansar A, Sarwar S, Sarwar M. Techniques of Wound Closure in Appendicular Surgery: A Prospective Comparative Study at AllamaIqbal Memorial Teaching Hospital. PJMHS 2017;11(2):677-80
- 24. Lateef IO, Jelilat IO, OlaniyiAM, Adedayo KO, Olateju AO, Adebukola OG et al.Prospective Study of Two Management Strategies for Dirty Abdominal Incisions following Laparotomy for Ruptured Appendicitis.JMSCR2018;6(2):1263-69



Association of Hyperuricemia With Hypertension In Pakistani Population

Attia Khaliq, Abdul Moueed Tariq, Abdul Latif Khattak, Karamat Ali, Shahzeb Ahmad Satti, Hafiz Yasir Rehman

ABSTRACT

Objective: To find an association between Hyperuricemia and Hypertension in patients presenting in outpatients department for regular check-up.

Study design and Setting: Case Control Study design conducted at Pak Emirates Military Hospital Rawalpindi (PEMH), Medical Outpatient department (OPD) from 4th Feb, 2017 to 4th Aug, 2017.

Methodology: A total of 200 patients, with 100 cases and 100 controls fulfilling the selection criteria were included in the study, which were selected from Medical OPD of PEMH. An informed written consent was taken. The Demographic such as age, gender were obtained. Veriable upon selection into study group, the blood samples were taken and two groups of patients were made on the basis of normal or raised uric acid levels. The Serum Uric Acid (SUA) was measured in the patients. Then blood pressure was measured by using sphygmomanometer by researchers themselves. If BP level was >140/90mmHg on 2 separate occasions, or patient is already a known case of hypertension, then hypertension was labeled.

Results: The mean age (years) in the study was 54.79 + 8.96. There were 136 (68%) male and 64 (32%) female patients. The frequency and percentage of hypertension in cases and control groups was (84%) and (41%) patients respectively which was statistically significant with a p-value of 0.000. The Odds ratio was found to be 7.55.

L

L

L

I

L

L

L

L

L

l

L

I

L

L

Conclusion: It was concluded that there was an association found between Hyperuricemia and Hypertension.

Key words: Hypertension, Hyperuricemia, Uric Acid.

INTRODUCTION:

I

I

н

I

I

L

I

I

I

The hypertension is very much prevalent and it affects approximately one-third of world population and is one of the common cause of death and disability.^{1,2} Though the cause of hypertension is not known in most of the patients, SUA(serum uric acid) has been thought to activate the renin – angiotensin system, which results in damage to prerenal blood vessels.³ Recently, a new study has shown that the mild hyperuricemia induces the arteriopathy and hypertension and this has brought renewed interest into this hypothesis.^{4,5}

Attia Khaliq FCPS, Department of Medicine, Pak Emirates Military Hospital, Rwp Cantt

Abdul Moueed Tariq Resident, Department of Medicine, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta Cantt Email: amoueed@hotmail.com

Abdul Latif Khattak Classified Medical Specialist, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta Cantt

Karamat Ali FCPS, Department of Medicine, PNS Shifa Hospital, Karachi

Shahzeb Ahmad Satti Classified Medical Specialist, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta Cantt

Hafiz Yasir Rehman Resident, Department of Medicine, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta Cantt

Received: 10-Apr-2019 Accepted: 03-Mar-2020 The global prevalence of hypertension in adults is around 40%.⁶ SUA is produced as result of a catabolism of normal purine, which is excreted mostly in urine but also through the gastrointestinal tract. Many studies have shown SUA concentrations >7 mg/dL is an independent and one of the other major risk factor associated with hypertension, a reduction in SUA is associated with lowering BP.^{7,8} The mean uric acid levels and number of hyperuricemic subjects were found to be significantly higher in hypertensive cases than normotensive controls.^{9,10} In a study conducted by Redon and colleagues on patients from European countries showed that 25% of population had hyperuricemia. It was associated with greater prevalence of metabolic syndrome, diabetes mellitus, rate of uncontrolled hypertension in these patients.¹¹ In a study conducted by Xiaoyun Lin et al in china concluded that, in males, hyperuricemia was an independent risk factor of hypertension with an adjusted OR of 1.131.¹² The hyperuricemia was also associated with post partum hypertension as concluded by Caraline C. Mars and colleagues with OR of 2.44.¹³

The younger individuals and women are at higher risk as compared to others.^{14,15} In one of study in 2011, among cases of hyperuricemia, the frequency of hypertension was 36.6% and among patients of normal serum uric acid level was 18.8%. The difference was found to be significant (P<0.01).¹⁶

Similarly NHANES 2009-2012 study has found that among cases of hyperuricemia, the frequency of hypertension was 38% while among patients of normal serum uric acid level was 20%. The difference was found to be significant

(P<0.01).¹⁷ In a study done in kenya by C.B. Mibey Sylvia and colleagues showed that prevalence of hyperuricemia was 44% in hypertensive patients; with 37.6% and 47.3% in males and females respectively.¹⁸ In a study by Kuwabara M et al in Japan showed that the OR for association between hyperuricemia and hypertension were 1.79 in the total study population, 1.58 in men and 1.60 in women.¹⁹ The regional studies in Pakistan revealed that hyperuricemia was found in 40.3% and 37.4% in hypertensive population.²⁰

The rationale of this study was to assess the association between Hyperuricemia and Hypertension in patients presenting in outpatient department for regular check-up for other chronic illnesses in our populatin. It has been noticed in previous studies, that hyperuricemia may lead to increased cardiovascular events and accelerate the BP level. Therefor the study was aimed to find the association between Hyperuricemia and Hypertension in patients presenting in outpatients department for regular check-up.

METHODOLOGY:

This was a case control study done in Medical OPD of PEMH Rawalpindi, from 4th Feb, 2017 to 4th Aug, 2017 with a sample size of 200 cases: 100 cases and 100 controls. The sample size was calculated using 80% as power of test, with level of significance 5% and taking 18.8% as prevalence of hypertension in patients without hyperuricemia and 36.6% in those patients who were having hyperuricemia.⁸ The cases were selected by non-probability, consecutive sampling technique. An Informed written consent was taken. The Patients with age between 35 to 70 years of either gender, presenting in OPD for regular checkup as follow up cases of various diseases (after applying exclusion criteria) were considered for selection. The patients taking drugs such as thiazide & loop diuretics, pyrazinamide, Cytotoxic drugs and those Patients with CKD, eclampsia, lymphoma, leukemia were excluded from the study. The demographic variables as age, gender were obtained.

From recruited patients, the blood samples were taken to determine the serum uric acid levels. After obtaining lab results patients were categorized as cases (those with hyperuricemia) and controls(those with normal serum uric acid levels), using the upper limit of normal range for both genders as cut off for hyperuricemia i.e > 7.4mg/dl for males and > 5.8mg/dl for females. Then blood pressure was measured by using sphygmomanometer by researchers themselves. If BP level was >140/90mmHg on 2 separate occasions, or patient is already diagnosed case of hypertension on anti hypertensive therapy, then hypertension was labeled.

The Data analyzed in SPSS version 20. The descriptive statistics was calculated for both qualitative and quantitative variables. The quantitative variables like age, blood pressure were analyzed as mean and standard deviation. The qualitative variables such as gender and hypertension were presented as frequency and percentage. The Chi square test was

applied to compare hypertension between 2 groups and the Odd ratio was calculated. The effect modifiers such as gender, Diabetes, age, dyslipidemia, History of Ischemic heart disease were controlled by stratification. P-value < 0.05 was taken as statistically significant.

RESULTS:

A total of 200 patients were enrolled in of the study protocol applying the strict inclusion and exclusion criteria. The two groups of patients were made randomly. The cases consist of those patients who were found to have hyperuricemia whereas patients in control group were without hyperuricemia (normal serum uric acid level). There were 136 (68%) male and 64 (32%) female patients in our study, as shown in chart No. 01. The Mean age (years) in the study was 54.79+8.96 with ranges from 35 to 70 years.

The descriptive statistics blood pressure was measured twice time. The mean systolic Blood pressure in mmHg at 1^{st} and 2^{nd} reading was 136.75+16.20 and 136.17+16.02 respectively whereas mean diastolic Blood pressure in mmHg at 1^{st} and 2^{nd} reading was 86.32+9.71 and 85.50+8.73, as shown in Table No. 01.

The Frequency of hypertension in the study was 125 (62.5%) whereas 75 (37.5%) patient were without hypertension, as shown in Table No. 02

The objective was to find out the association between hyperuricemia and hypertension in patients presenting in outpatients department for regular check-up. The Frequency and Percentage of hypertension in both the groups was 84 (84%) and 41 (41%) patients respectively. The Chi Square test was used to compare hypertension in both the groups. The P value and odds ratio, as shown in Table No. 03

DISCUSSION:

The global prevalence of hypertensionin adults 25 years and above was around 26.4% and this figure is estimated to increase to about 60% to a total number 1.5 billion in year 2025.^{6,21} In a study conducted in Japan, 43 million individuals were estimated to have high blood pressure with male and female prevalence of 60% and 45% respectively.



Figure 1: Gender Distribution

Reading		n	Mean (mmHg)	Std. Deviation
1 st reading	Blood pressure (systolic)	200	136.75	16.20
1 reading	Blood pressure (diastolic)	200	86.32	9.71
2 nd reading	Blood pressure (systolic)	200	136.17	16.02
2 reading	Blood pressure (diastolic)	200	85.50	8.73

Table 1: Descriptive statistics of Blood Pressure (systolic	c &
diastolic) 1 st and 2 nd reading	

Table 2: Frequency & Percentage of Hypertension

		Frequency	Percentage
Hypertension	No	75	37.5%
	Yes	125	62.5%
	Total	200	100%

Table. 3: Association of Hyperuricemia and Hypertension in both the groups

	Two groups				
	(hype	Cases eruricemia)) Control P (without val hyperuricemia)		Odd Ratio
Hypertension	Yes	84	41		
		84%	41%	0.000	7.55
	N	16	59	0.000	
	INO	16%	59%		
Total		100	100		
Total		100%	100%		

In developing countries one of the most common cause of death is Coronary artery disease. The cardio-vascular diseases has been the cause of more than 17.5million deaths in year 2012 globally.²² The one of a major risk factor for cardiovascular death and morbidity is hypertension.²³

The Hyperuricemia also results in an increased risk for cardiovascular disease. It is also associated with gout, renal dysfunction and the metabolic syndrome. The association between hypertension and hyperuricemia is being studied worldwide in recent years. The hyperuricemia plays a vital role in the development of hypertension, and association between the two, has been studies previous in many studies. The association between hyperuricemia and CV diseases in patients with hypertension is also being reported.²⁴ Many studies have shown that drugs that reduce serum uric acid levels ,also reduce BP in patients with hyperuricemia.25,26 There are various mechanisms involved by which increased blood pressure occurs in patients with elevated uric acid.²⁷ Our study result showed that there were 84% of patients with hyperyricemia, which were hypertensive while only 41% without hyperuricemia had increased blood pressure. There was a strong association between hypeuricemia and hypertension with Odds ratio of 7.55. In a study done by Yokokawa et al, Hyperuricemia was 1.79 times more common

in men with hypertension in comparison with those without than hypertension and almost 6 times more prevalent in hypertensive women with odds ratio of 5.92, while odds ratio in our study population was 7.55.⁸

In research done by Poudel et al, the mean SUA levels and number of patients with hyperuricemia was, significantly higher in hypertensive group, than those without hypertension (28.8% vs 13.7%) with Odds ratio of 2.55.²⁸ Shrivastav et al showed that the mean SUA levels and hyperuricemiac patients were significantly higher in newly diagnosed cases of essential hypertension as compared to prehypertensive or normotensive controls (37.33% vs 14%). In our study, percentage of hypertension in patients with hyperuricemia was 84% and without hyperuricemia, it was 41% respectively. In a study in Pakistan, that the SUA levels were significantly increased in patients with hypertension $(6.51 \pm 1.45 \text{ mg/dl})$ than those without hypertension $(4.72 \pm 1.83 \text{ mg/dl})$.²⁹ In another study by Bâ Hamidou Oumar et al, the prevalence of hyperuricemia was found to about 66% in hypertensive patients, while it was 84% in our study.³⁰ Therefore, blood pressure should be monitored regularly in patients with hyperuricemia or gout. Patients with Hypertension should be monitored for increased serum uric acid levels. This will help us treat raised uric acid levels to reduce the burden of patients with hypertension as well reduce the risk of other cardiovascular diseases.

CONCLUSION:

It was concluded that the association was found between Hyperuricemia and Hypertension.

- 1. Grayson PC, Kim SY, LaValley M, Choi HK. Hyperuricemia and incident hypertension: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Arthritis care & research. 2011;63(1):102-10.
- 2. Wang J, Qin T, Chen J, Li Y, Wang L, Huang H, et al. Hyperuricemia and risk of incident hypertension: a systematic review and meta-analysis of observational studies. PloS one. 2014;9(12):e114259.
- 3. Borghi C, Rosei EA, Bardin T, Dawson J, Dominiczak A, Kielstein JT, et al. Serum uric acid and the risk of cardiovascular and renal disease. Journal of hypertension. 2015;33(9):1729-41.
- 4. Tsai C-W, Lin S-Y, Kuo C-C, Huang C-C. Serum Uric Acid and Progression of Kidney Disease: A Longitudinal Analysis and Mini-Review. PloS one. 2017;12(1):e0170393.
- Takahashi A, Takabatake Y, Isaka Y, Saitoh T, Yoshimori T. Hyperuricemia-induced inflammasome and kidney diseases. Nephrology Dialysis Transplantation. 2015;31(6):890-6.
- 6. Mills KT, Bundy JD, Kelly TN, Reed JE, Kearney PM, Reynolds K, et al. Global Burden of Hypertension: Analysis of Population-based Studies from 89 Countries. Journal of Hypertension. 2015;33:e2.
- 7. Kanbay M, Jensen T, Solak Y, Le M, Roncal-Jimenez C, Rivard C, et al. Uric acid in metabolic syndrome: from an innocent bystander to a central player. European journal of internal medicine. 2016;29:3-8.

- Yokokawa H, Fukuda H, Suzuki A, Fujibayashi K, Naito T, Uehara Y, et al. Association between serum uric acid levels/hyperuricemia and hypertension among 85,286 Japanese workers. The Journal of Clinical Hypertension. 2016;18(1):53-9.
- Mallat SG, Al Kattar S, Tanios BY, Jurjus A. Hyperuricemia, hypertension, and chronic kidney disease: an emerging association. Current hypertension reports. 2016;18(10):74.
- Geraci G, Mulè G, Mogavero M, Geraci C, Nardi E, Cottone S. Association Between Uric Acid and Renal Hemodynamics: Pathophysiological Implications for Renal Damage in Hypertensive Patients. The Journal of Clinical Hypertension. 2016;18(10):1007-14.
- Redon P, Maloberti A, Facchetti R, Redon J, Lurbe E, Bombelli M, et al. Gender-related differences in serum uric acid in treated hypertensive patients from central and east European countries: findings from the Blood Pressure control rate and CArdiovascular Risk profilE study. Journal of Hypertension. 2019;37(2):380-8.
- Lin X, Wang X, Li X, Song L, Meng Z, Yang Q, et al. Genderand Age-Specific Differences in the Association of Hyperuricemia and Hypertension: A Cross-Sectional Study. International Journal of Endocrinology. 2019;2019:9.
- 13. Marrs CC, Rahman M, Dixon L, Olson G. The association of hyperuricemia and immediate postpartum hypertension in women without a diagnosis of chronic hypertension. Hypertension in Pregnancy. 2018;37(3):126-30.
- Chen Y-Y, Kao T-W, Yang H-F, Chou C-W, Wu C-J, Lai C-H, et al. The association of uric acid with the risk of metabolic syndrome, arterial hypertension or diabetes in young subjects-An observational study. Clinica Chimica Acta. 2018;478:68-73.
- Saladini F, Mos L, Fania C, Garavelli G, Casiglia E, Palatini P. Regular physical activity prevents development of hypertension in young people with hyperuricemia. Journal of hypertension. 2017;35(5):994-1001.
- Yokokawa H, Fukuda H, Suzuki A, Fujibayashi K, Naito T, Uehara Y, et al. Association Between Serum Uric Acid Levels/Hyperuricemia and Hypertension Among 85,286 Japanese Workers. Journal of clinical hypertension (Greenwich, Conn). 2016;18(1):53-9.
- 17. Krishnan E. Interaction of inflammation, hyperuricemia, and the prevalence of hypertension among adults free of metabolic syndrome: NHANES 2009-2010. Journal of the American Heart Association. 2014;3(2):e000157.
- Sylvia CM, Some F, Kimaiyo S, Kwobah C, Oyoo G. Prevalence and risk factors for hyperuricemia among patients with hypertension at Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital, Eldoret, Kenya. African Journal of Rheumatology. 2018;6(1):3-9.

- 19. Kuwabara M, Niwa K, Nishi Y, Mizuno A, Asano T, Masuda K, et al. Relationship between serum uric acid levels and hypertension among Japanese individuals not treated for hyperuricemia and hypertension. Hypertension research : official journal of the Japanese Society of Hypertension. 2014;37(8):785-9.
- Ahmed N, Anwar W, Waqas H. Obesity, hyperlipidemia, and hyperuraecemia in young and old hypertensive patients. Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad. 2009;21(4):53-6.
- 21. Kearney PM, Whelton M, Reynolds K, Muntner P, Whelton PK, He J. Global burden of hypertension: analysis of worldwide data. The lancet. 2005;365(9455):217-23.
- 22. Goyal A, Kahlon P, Jain D, Soni RK, Gulati R, Chhabra ST, et al. Trend in prevalence of coronary artery disease and risk factors over two decades in rural Punjab. Heart Asia. 2017;9(2):e010938-e.
- Patel P, Ordunez P, DiPette D, Escobar MC, Hassell T, Wyss F, et al. Improved Blood Pressure Control to Reduce Cardiovascular Disease Morbidity and Mortality: The Standardized Hypertension Treatment and Prevention Project. The Journal of Clinical Hypertension. 2016;18(12):1284-94.
- Acevedo A, Benavides J, Chowdhury M, Lopez M, Pena L, Montenegro A, et al. Hyperuricemia and Cardiovascular Disease in Patients with Hypertension. Connecticut medicine. 2016;80(2):85-90.
- 25. Gois PHF, de Moraes Souza ER. Pharmacotherapy for hyperuricemia in hypertensive patients. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. 2017(4).
- 26. Madero M, Castellanos FER, Jalal D, Villalobos-Martín M, Salazar J, Vazquez-Rangel A, et al. A pilot study on the impact of a low fructose diet and allopurinol on clinic blood pressure among overweight and prehypertensive subjects: a randomized placebo controlled trial. Journal of the American Society of Hypertension. 2015;9(11):837-44.
- 27. Abeles AM. Hyperuricemia, gout, and cardiovascular disease: an update. Current rheumatology reports. 2015;17(3):13.
- Poudel B, Yadav BK, Kumar A, Jha B, Raut KB. Serum uric acid level in newly diagnosed essential hypertension in a Nepalese population: a hospital based cross sectional study. Asian Pacific journal of tropical biomedicine. 2014;4(1):59-64.
- 29. Jawed S, Khawaja TF, Sultan MA, Ahmad S. The effect of essential hypertension on serum uric acid level. Biomedica (Lahore). 2005:98-102.
- 30. Oumar BH, Ichaka M, Kéita MA, Adama D, Bella DI, Souleymane C, et al. Prevalence of Hyperuricemia (HU) in Arterial Hypertension. Science. 2015;4(4):76-9.



Comparison Of Periodontal Health Of Orthodontic And Non-Orthodontic Patients

Natasha Zaidi, Yousuf Moosa, Syed Ahmed Omer, Saima Mazhar, Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi, Amir Akbar Shaikh

Objective: To compare the periodontal health status among orthodontic and non-orthodontic groups aged between 14-30 years of both genders.

Study design And Setting: This comparative cross sectional study was conducted at Department of Orthodontics and Periodontics from January 2019-till June 2019 at dental Hospital of Bahria Dental College Karachi.

Methodology: Those patients aged 14-30 under orthodontics treatment for about 3 months and were able to give consent were included in the study. Periodontal status among both groups (65 orthodontics and 65 non orthodontic) patients was evaluated with the help of CPITN probe on index teeth. To assess the oral hygiene status; the questionnaire was formulated regarding the use and frequency of toothbrush; use of interdental cleaners such as interdental brush, use of mouthwash, use of tongue cleaners and dental appointments. A single observer from periodontics department was appointed for observation and record data of patients coming to orthodontic department and to carry out a clinical examination. The data was scrutinized using SPSS 23, and using the chi-square test various other comparisons were performed.

Results: Statistically significant association was observed in CPITN scores between the orthodontic and non-orthodontic patients (p < 0.05). Patients who underwent orthodontic treatment had increased plaque accumulation and probing depth which resulted in periodontal tissue destruction.

Conclusion: It was concluded that the periodontal condition of ortho patients was deteriorating as compare to non ortho patient. There was no noticeable attachment loss found that could lead to mobility of the tooth and its loss.

Key words: calculus, non-orthodontics, orthodontics, periodontal status, plaque.

INTRODUCTION:

Orthodontic treatment has extensive effect on dentofacial complex. It helps in proper alignment of dentition by orthodontic treatment modalities; improving occlusion, enhancing esthetics and maintaining oral hygiene. Oral hygiene can be affected by different abnormalities in teeth alignment. Plaque retention is one of the causative factor leads to imbalance in micro biota of oral cavity; further accumulation of plaque results in malocclusion which is more often seen in crowded dentition; commonly a feature

Natasha Zaidi Senior Lecturer, Department of Periodontology Bahria University Medical and Dental College Email: natashazaidi85@gmail.com
Yousuf Moosa Associate Professor & HOD Periodontology Sir Syed College of Medical Sciences for Girls
Syed Ahmed Omer Assistant Professor & HOD Department Science of Dental Material, Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi
Saima Mazhar Senior Lecturer, Department of Periodontology Bahria University Medical and Dental College
Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi Associate Professor & HOD Community Dentistry Bahria University Medical and Dental College
Amir Akbar Shaikh Associate Professor, Department of Community Dentistry Sir Syed College of Medical Sciences for Girls
Received: 12-Jul- 2019 Accepted: 17-Feb-2020

of lower anterior. Open bite, spacing, cross bite impacted teeth, crowding, narrow arches and rotation of teeth are the atypical features of malocclusion.¹

The initial inflammation of gingival tissue occurring around the gums, surrounding the teeth is known as gingivitis, when left untreated progresses into periodontal disease. On the other hand; the fixed orthodontic appliances; when horn in the gingival sulcus rendered plaque accumulation; results in food deposition. This cementation of ortho appliance and the food accumulation results while brushing and at times it is difficult to clean that debris further deteriorating the oral health.² Since patient fails to maintain appropriate oral hygiene, they are likely to develop gingivitis as it progresses within 21 days of its occurrence.¹

Fixed orthodontic appliances increases the growth of microbial flora due to deposition of plaque and calculus and results in bleeding gums.³⁻⁷ and other periodontal associated problems such as gingival recession, gingival hypertrophy, alveolar bone hammering, pocketing.^{8,9} The predominant initiators of plaque are gram positive organisms which later get replaced by gram negative and then the anaerobes.¹

Oral hygiene preservation during orthodontic treatment is only possible by proper teaching to the patient, their enthusiasm, collaboration and their approach towards their treatment played an active role to maintain oral hygiene.¹⁰A lot of researches proved that patients either lack knowledge of proper hygiene maintenance or show carelessness in maintaining it. Despite having the knowledge some patients still fail to follow proper oral hygiene instruction.^{11, 12} In order to overcome caries and periodontal problems during orthodontic treatment; there is a need to educate patients regarding maintenance of oral hygiene and how to control the calculus deposition¹³ and indeed it was the rationale of the study to assess the periodontal health among orthodontic patients and further to educate them accordingly. It is important to guide orthodontic patients about oral hygiene maintenance before starting the treatment.¹⁴ To address this; it is essential to practice proper brushing technique regularly. Awareness regarding different types of orthodontic appliances and brushes should be provided to the patients especially the interdental brushes.¹⁵ Therefore this study was aimed to compare the periodontal health status of orthodontic and non orthodontic patients.

METHODOLOGY:

All those patients who were aged between 14-30 years of age and visited to orthodontic and periodontics department for regular dental check-up in the Dental Hospital of BUMDC from January 2019 to June 2019 were examined for this study. This study was conducted after the approval obtained from Ethical Review Committee of BUMDC. Those patients aged 14-30 under orthodontics treatment for about 3 months and were able to give consent were included in the study; while those patients having pathological or congenital condition such as craniofacial anomalies because of the compromised periodontal tissue condition and those who were seeking prosthesis treatment specially removable prosthetic appliances were excluded from the study. The Sample size was calculated by considering the prevelance of 10%¹. The calculated sample size was 139 subjects .Total 65 patients from each respective department were taken into consideration were divided into test group (orthodontic patients) and control groups (non-orthodontic patients). Gender distribution details filled in figure 1. A single observer from periodontics department was appointed for observation and record data of patients coming to orthodontic department and to carry out a clinical examination. To obtain intraexaminer reliability, ten patients were examined on two occasions at a 1-week interval using the Community Periodontal Index and kappa test value of 0.95 was obtained.

Periodontal status among both groups was evaluated with the help of CPITN probe on index teeth.² To assess the oral hygiene status; the questionnaire was formulated and included questionnaire were regarding the use and frequency of toothbrush; use of interdental cleaners such as interdental brush, use of mouthwash, use of tongue cleaners and dental appointments.

The periodontal condition of all the patients was assessed conferring to WHO protocol, by the use of an axenic CPITN probe on the index teeth and a mouth mirror under a favorable light source. A tooth was examined to obtain the pocket depth, spot calculus and to check any bleeding response. The areas chosen for examination were the distal, midline and mesial aspects of the facial and palatal/lingual areas. The measure of the depth of gingival sulcus or pocket was carefully examined with the tip of the probe. The probing depth was measured by introducing the probe alongside the long axis of the tooth, between the tooth and gingiva starting at the distobuccal area of the index tooth. The corresponding maximum score for each sextant was calculated and noted down in the appropriate box. The dentition was classified into 6 sextants. The CPITN code noted on the index teeth according to their status were 0,1,2,3,4, denoting healthy gums, bleeding gums on the use of probe, presence of calculus on the gingival surfaces, existence of a low pocket of about 4 to 6 mm or a profound pocket measuring about 6mm or more. While x decoded a sextant with less than 2 teeth (excluded sextant).

The collected data was analyzed using the Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) version 23 and comparisons of CPITN codes were performed using the chi-square test, with a value of P < 0.05 regarded as significant.

RESULTS:

There were total 130 patients evaluated and comprised of 35 males and 95 females within 14-30 years of age. The periodontal pockets score was compared among both groups. It was revealed CPITN score was 57% in ortho group having periodontal pockets scoring of 3 and 4 on CPITN probe; and (17%) in non-orthodontic group pocket depth with same score (3 and 4 score) on CPTIN probe. The elevation in periodontal disease was found to be statistically significant between ortho and non-ortho groups (p < 0.05) (Table-1).

A CPITN score of 3 and 4 indicated the presence of a pocket in 4(6%) patients of orthodontic group who were interdental brushers. At the same time the same CPITN score of 3 and 4 was also found in about 34 (52%) patients who were not using the interdental brushes-Graph-2.

According to the results; from the total 130 patients, 4 of 40 interdental brush users that was about 10% had 3 and 4 CPITN score along with the periodontal pockets. Periodontal pockets were present in 46 (51%) of the 90 patients who were not using any sort of interdental assistance and CPTIN score was 3 and 4. (Graph-3). Table 3-depicted the progression of periodontal disease (p < 0.05) among patients who are not using dental aids to the ones using it.

According to the responses revealed: both groups were brushing their teeth with a tooth brush ranging 66% of them doing it once every day while 30% did it twice daily and only 1% doing it thrice daily. Whilst when it came to the use of interdental cleaners, in the ortho group 47% were interdental brush users, and in the non-ortho group, only 15% patients used dental floss. Volunteered tongue cleaners were 12% from orthodontic group and 5% from nonorthodontic. At the same time use of mouth wash was practiced by 10% orthodontic patients and 38% normal patients not undergoing ortho treatment. Total 20% patients of orthodontic follow up and 10% were routine diagnostic patients.



Figure 1: Gender Distribution among Ortho and Non-Ortho patients





Figure 3: Relationship of CPITN Scores between Interdental and non-interdental Brush users



Interdental Aid Users I Non-Interdental Aid Users

Table 1: Comparison of CPITN Score among Ortho and Non-Ortho groups

CPITN Score	Ortho group N=65	Non-Ortho group N=65	P-Value
0	2	13	
1	20	31	
2	6	10	0.000*
3	36	11	
4	1	0	

Table 2: Comparison of CPITN Score between interdental and non-interdental aid users among all patients

CPITN	Score 0,1,2	Score 3,4	p-value
Interdental aid users	36(90%)	4(10%)	
(N=40)			0.000
Non-interdental aid users	44(48%)	46(51%)	0.000
(N=90)			

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of the study was to compare the periodontal health among patients seeking orthodontic help to the ones not undergoing orthodontic care. In this study; the CPITN score was increased among orthodontic treatment receiving patients. Momina et al.¹⁶ revealed that the arrangement of brackets provides retentive sites and bionomic surroundings for accumulation of biofilm, furthermore the CPITN scores observed in this study harmonize with those fallouts. Excessive bleeding and inflammation worsen the periodontal health resulting in surveillance of noticeable raise in plaque and gingival index of test group. Three months after placement of fixed appliances there was foremost augment in clinical and microbial characteristics, comparable outcomes shown by Marda et al.¹⁷

Undoubtedly, the CPITN score of orthodontic and non orthodontic groups were contradicting, admitting the fact that score for group using interdental brush were lower as compared to the ones not using brushing. Since orthodontic appliances placement hinder maintenance of proper oral hygiene causing deposition of plaque leading to increase in pocket depth, which directly contributes to increase in CPITN score and the same observation reported by Nasir et al.¹⁸

As reported by Angelina et al,¹⁹ the most affected area periodontally in orthodontic patient is the interdental area which agrees with the observation of this study. This truly confirms that orthodontic appliances are prone to plaque accumulation, eventually initiating periodontal problems. These results were in agreement with other studies.²⁰ A clinically healthy gingiva has ascertained depth which depicted by different methods as 1.5 mm and 1.8mm.²¹

Radiographic analysis indicated the areas of bone loss presuming the formation of pockets.²²This study agrees with Fatemah et al²³who reported orthodontic patients bearing fixed appliances have slight attachment loss with increase in pocket depth.

The primary etiological and commencing factor for any gingival or periodontal regression is plaque and its cleanliness becomes a challenge by fixed appliances placement. Earlier colonies initiating plaque are gram positive rods and cocci, transforming into gram negative and anaerobic organisms introducing periodontal defects.²⁴ Orthodontic treatments render the patient to achieve appropriate oral hygiene during the treatment period. This in turn causes plaque accumulation

which can trigger pathological conditions, since orthodontic appliances serve as mechanical trappers for plaque. Henceforth periodontal conditions in orthodontic patients can be bypassed by enduring plaque control therapy.

Encouraging the adolescents into proper oral hygiene maintenance can reduce the burden of dental distress.^{25,26} Oral hygiene tools for orthodontic patients such as floss threaders, interdental brushes are available to control the plaque accumulation.²⁷

The limitation of the study was the effects of orthodontic treatment upon periodontal health. Further studies can be conducted to assess the periodontal health after the exclusion of orthodontic appliances. Therefore; in a nutshell, proper oral hygiene measures along with interdental brushes can reduce the plaque accumulation.

CONCLUSION:

It was concluded that the periodontal condition of ortho patients was deteriorating as compare to non ortho patient There was no noticeable attachment loss found that could lead to mobility of the tooth and its loss.

- 1. Moosa Y, Han LN, Safdar J, Sheikh OA, Pan YP. Periodontal status of Pakistani orthodontic patients. Brazilian Oral Research. 2015; 29(1): 1-5.
- Leonardo T, Roberto F, Cleverson OS, Dimitris NT. Plaqueinduced gingivitis: Case definition and diagnostic considerations. J Periodontol. 2018; 89(Suppl 1):S46–S73.
- 3. Irum N, Aamir MB, Uzma B, Hina M. Periodontal tissue; effect of fix orthodontic treatment. Professional Med J. 2017; 24(6):930-934.
- Amrinder ST, Nitin B. Gingival Hyperplasia a Sequalae of Orthodontic Therapy- A Case Report. Acta Scientific Dental Sciences. 2018; 2(6): 84-86.
- Hala A, Nayer A, Khaled AEG. Management of Gingival Hyperplasia in Patients with Fixed Orthodontic Appliances Using Topical Herbal Preparations (A Comparative Clinical and Microbiological Study. Acta Scientific Dental Sciences. 2019; 3(1): 02-11.
- Alice SP, Luana SA, Julio E, Fabrýcio BZ, Marisa M. Gingival enlargement in orthodonticpatients: Effect of treatment duration. American Journal of Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics. 2017; 152(4): 477-482.
- Silvia Ci, Guido P, Roberta C, Loredana C. Orthodontic Fixed Appliance and Periodontal Status: An Updated Systematic Review. Open Dent J. 2018; 12: 614–622.
- Bollen AM, Cunha-Cruz J, Bakko DW, Huang GJ, Hujoel PP. The effects of orthodontic therapy on periodontal health: a systematic review of controlled evidence. The Journal of the American Dental Association. 2008 Apr 30; 139(4):413-22.
- Ristic M, Vlahovic Svabic M, Sasic M, Zelic O. Clinical and microbiological effects of fixed orthodontic appliances on periodontal tissues in adolscents. Orthod Craniofac Res 2007; 10:187-195.
- Kadu A, Chopra SS, Gupta N, Jayan B, Kochar GD. Effect of the personality of the patient on pain perception and attitude towards orthodontic treatment. J Indian Orthod Soc. 2015;49(2):89-95.

- 11. Elanchezhiyan S, Raja. Awareness on gingival health among orthodontic correction seeking individuals. J Indian Acad Dent Spec Res. 2010;1(3):19-21.
- Anuwongnukroh N, Dechkunakorn S, Kanpiputana R. Oral Hygiene Behavior during Fixed Orthodontic Treatment. Dentistry. 2017; 7(10): 1-5.
- 13. Baheti MJ, Toshniwal NG. Survey on oral hygiene protocols among orthodontic correction-seeking individuals. J Edu Ethics Dent.2015;5(1):8-13.
- 14. Arici S, Alkan A, Arici N. Comparison of different toothbrushing protocols in poor-tooth brushing orthodontic patients. Eur J Orthod. 2007;29(5):488-92.
- 15. Matiæ S, Ivanoviæ M, Nikoliæ P. Evaluation of a prevention programme efficiency for patients with fixed orthodontic appliances. Vojnosanit Pregl. 2011;68(3):214-9.
- Momina T, Anam A, Muhammad MS. Study to know outcome of orthodontic treatment and its effect on periodontal health. Indo Am. J. P. Sci. 2018; 05(08): 8249-8253.
- Marda A, Elhamzaoui S, MansariAE, Souly K, Farissi F, Zouhdi M, Zaoui F, Bahije L. International Journal of Dentistry. 2018; article ID 5939015. Published online 2018. Doi.org/10. 1155/2018/5939015.
- Nasir N, Ali S, Bashir U, Ullah A. Effect of orthodontic treatment on periodontal health. Pakistan Oral &Dental Journal. 2011; 31(1): 111-114..
- Angelina G, Giorgio P, Anna B, Giampietro F, Giulio R. International Journal of Dentistry. 2016; article ID 4723589. Published online 2016. Doi.org/10.1155/2016/4723589.
- 20. Thilagrani PR, Abhay PPA, Muqtadir SMQ, Hemlata R, Anurag T, Debashish D. Association of Periodontal Health with Orthodontic Appliances among Indian Patients. J Int Oral Health. 2015; 7(1): 44–47.
- 21. Vandana KL, Shivani S, Savitha B, Vivek HP. Assessment of Gingival Sulcus Depth, Width of Attached Gingiva, and Gingival Thickness in Primary, Mixed, and Permanent Dentition. Journal of Dental Research and Review. 2017; 4(2):42-49.
- 22. Elham SAA, Eman MA, Dafi QT. Periodontal health knowledge and awareness among subjects with fixed orthodontic appliance. Dental Press Journal of Orthodontics. 2018; 23(5):40.e1-40.e9.
- 23. Fatemah AA, Faiza AO. The Effect of Fixed Orthodontic Appliances Versus Clear Aligner on Periodontal Health: A Review of the Literature. Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences. 2018; 17(1): 19-22.
- 24. Spyridon NP, Anastasia AP, Theodore E. Effect of orthodontic treatment on periodontal clinical attachment: A systematic review and meta-analysis. European Journal of Orthodontics. 2017. Published online 2017. DOI: 10.1093/ejo/cjx052.
- 25. Amal HA, Lara TE. Oral Hygiene Performance among a Sample of Sudanese Orthodontic Patients. Journal of Dentistry and Oral Hygiene. 2015; 1(1): 1-8.
- 26. Huang J, Yao Y, Jiang J, Li C. Effects of motivational methods on oral hygiene of orthodontic patients. A systematic review and meta-analysis. 2018; 97(47): 1-8.
- 27. Lu H, Tang H, Zhou T, Kang N. Assessment of the periodontal health status in patients undergoing orthodontic treatment with fixed appliances and invisalign system: A meta-analysis. Medicine. 2018; 97(13):1-10.



Clinical Profile Of Hepatocellular Carcinoma-Experience At A Tertiary Care Hospital

Rafi ud din, Fauzia Anjum, Abdul Moueed Tariq, Abdul Latif Khattak, Rao Saad Ali Khan, Khawar Shabbir

ABSTRACT

Objective: To determine the characteristics of Hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC) in patients visiting PEMH Rawalpindi.

Study Design and Setting: Cross-sectional Study conducted at Department of Gastroenterology/hepatology in Pak Emirates Military Hospital Rawalpindi (PEMH) from Oct 2015 to Jan 2018.

Methodology: In this study total 100 patients, with HCC of both genders were included. All the cases were discussed in multidisciplinary team (MDT) meetings which were held once every week. A decision on the best possible management for the given case was arrived at in the MDT meeting. All the relevant features of each case were recorded in the Performa. Descriptive statistics were used to calculate mean, standard deviation and frequencies for gender, various presenting features, co-morbidities and clinical features. Data was analyzed on SPSS version 21. P value <0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

Results: Sixty seven men and 33 women with HCC were included in this study with a mean age of 58.23 years. The abdominal pain was the most common symptom present in 66 (66%) patients. Edema was seen in 30 (30%) and palpable splenomegaly in 26(26%). Diabetes mellitus was the most common co-morbidity found in 20(20%) patients. HCV was the commonest cause of HCC present in 79(79%) patients. Vascular involvement was seen in 15 (15%) patients. Most (62%) patients had a single HCC lesion and most belonged to Child –Pugh class A (68%) and BCLC stage B (42%). ECOG performance status was good in most patients with 49% patients scoring 0. The AFP levels were raised in 58 (58%) of the patients.

Conclusion: HCV was the most common underlying etiology. Most of the patients were asymptomatic at the time of diagnosis. Majority of subjects reported with the complaint of abdominal pain and had no underlying co morbidity. The metastasis was negative in majority of cases.

Key Words: Hepatocellular Carcinoma, Hepatitis C, Splenomegaly.

INTRODUCTION:

The Primary liver cancer is the 6th most common cancer world wide.¹ Hepatocellular carcinoma is one of the most common tumors involving the liver while it is the 2nd leading cause of cancer related death.² In year 2018; total of 841,000 (4.7%) new cases of liver cancers were reported and further

Rafi Ud Din

I

I

I Classified Medical Specialist, Department of Gastroenterology, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta Email: rudin2005@gmail.com I I Fauzia Anjum I Consultant Gynacologist, T Hameed Latif Hospital Lahore I Abdul Moueed Tariq Registrar Medicine, Department of Gastroenterology, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta I T I Abdul Latif Khattak Classified Medical Specialist, Department of Gastroenterology, Combined Military Hospital, Quetta T I L Rao Saad Ali khan Classified Medical Specialist, Department of Gastroenterology, Pak Emirates Military Hospital Rawalpindi Khawar Shabbir Classified Medical Specialist, Department of Gastroenterology, Combined Military Hospital, Peshawar T T I Received: 31-Jul-2019 Accepted: 11-Dec-2019 L

incidences are increasing.^{3,4} There are various risk factors associated with development of HCC including hepatitis B, hepatitis C, toxins exposure such as aflatoxins, lifestyle risk factors such as obesity, smoking and alcohol consumption. While 44% of HCC cases were attributable to chronic hepatitis B infection; Hepatitis C was responsible for 21% of cases.⁵ Certain diseases such as hemochromatosis, Wilson and Alpha -1 anti trpysin deficiency are also associated with increased risk of HCC.5

The etiological factors are different in different populations. HCC is one of the commonly occurring tumors in Pakistan with age-standardized rate 7.64/100000 for men and 2.8/100000 for women.⁵ The majority of cases occurred having the background of liver cirrhosis.^{6,7} The etiology during last few decades has changed from a majority of HCC cases previously being positive for HBV to a clear majority now being positive positive for HCV infection. Though the incidence of HCC are on rise and the overall associated mortality is decreasing.⁸

Majority of HCC cases are identified in patients who are already diagnosed with Chronic liver disease secondary to any other cause. The patients may be asymptomatic at the time of diagnosis or they may present with worsening of their disease. Increased surveillance of patients with liver disease with Ultrasonography for HCC, has led to increased number of patients identified at an asymptomatic stage. Patients may present with variety of symptoms including abdominal pain, abdominal distension, appearance of or worsening of jaundice, weight loss, anorexia, sarcopenia, fatigue, vomiting. The treatment as well as prognosis of HCC depends on size, number of lesions, local as well systemic and extra hepatic spread and over all wellbeing of patient. The prognosis of untreated HCC is poor; overall median survival is 9 months. The main cause behind death was progression of tumor in these untreated patients.⁹ As the Barcelona Clinic Liver Cancer (BCLC) stage worsened it resulted in progressive and significant decrease in median survival of the patients.¹⁰

Despite being a common tumor in our population, clinical features of this tumor have not been adequately described in local literature.¹¹ In Pakistan there is dearth of central cancer registries framework and data primarily comes from single center experiences. Several studies have been published describing one or more aspects of HCC but detailed clinical profile studies are limited.^{58,11} Due to a paucity of published literature on HCC patients' profile, a need was felt to document the common clinical and laboratory features of HCC in Pakistani population for future use as a reference. Therefore; the aim of the study was to determine the characteristics of HECM and the to PEMH Rawalpindi.

METHODOLOGY:

It was a cross sectional study carried out from Oct 2015 to Jan 2018 at department of Gastroenterology, Pak Emirates Military Hospital (PEMH) Rawalpindi. The sample size was calculated using a prevalence of 5.2/100000 (7.6/100000 for males and 2.8/100000 for females) and keeping the confidence level at 95% and margin of error at 5%.¹² All patients diagnosed with HCC in PEMH and those coming with the diagnosis of HCC were enrolled in the study with non-probability convenience sampling. After taking consent and providing the rationale of the study; the history and clinical examination was performed; followed by investigations. Functional status of patients was recorded according to the ECOG scoring system. Investigation carried out for all cases included complete blood counts, Liver function tests including albumin, Prothrombin time and INR, renal function tests, hepatitis serology, Alfa fetoprotein (AFP) levels, ultrasonography and contrast enhanced CT scan of abdomen. Few investigations were only performed where indicated such as Upper GI endoscopy, PCR for HBV and/or HCV, MRI abdomen, liver biopsy, Doppler sonography for vascular involvement, tumor markers (CA-19-9, CEA). Patients were categorized according to BCLC and Child-Pugh classification systems. Data was analyzed in SPSS version 21. The descriptive statistics for gender and etiological factors for HCC such as frequency, percentage was calculated along with mean and SD for age. The frequency and percentages for various presenting features, associated co-morbid conditions were calculated. The

descriptive statistics were used to calculate frequencies, means and standard deviation for various clinical, radiological and biochemical features of HCC. P value <0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

RESULTS:

Total one hundred patients were enrolled in the study. The gender distribution is shown in figure-1. The clinical presentation was varied as shown in table 1. Twenty seven (27%) patients were asymptomatic at presentation and were diagnosed as a result of screening or imaging for an unrelated problem. In symptomatic patients, abdominal pain was the most common symptom which was present in 66(66%)whereas haematemesis was the least common presenting symptom seen in only 5(5%) patients. Sixty three (63%) patients reported 2 or more symptoms at the time of diagnosis. Presenting features are tabulated in Table -1. Most patients (69%) had no other co-morbidities whereas diabetes mellitus was found in 20(20%) patients as shown in Table No 2. Other co-morbidities included hypertension and ischemic heart disease. HCV was the most common underlying etiology and was found positive in 79(79%) patients. Distribution of etiology of cirrhosis is given in figure-2. The Clinical profiling of the patients with HCC presenting to PEMH is shown in the Table No. 3. In an overwhelming majority (90%), no extra-hepatic metastatic deposits were identified. Vascular involvement was found at the time of diagnosis in 15(15%) patients with tumor most commonly involving a branch of portal vein. In most patients size of the tumor was more than 5 cm at the time of diagnosis. Most patients (62%) presented with a single tumor nodule and the size of largest lesion in most patients (60%) was more than 5 cm. Most patients (68%) were in Child-Pugh class A at the time of diagnosis and in majority (42%) BCLC tumor stage was found to be "B". Functional status of most patients (49%) was unimpaired at the time of diagnosis of HCC. The AFP levels were normal in 42% of patients while out of remaining 58% it was overwhelmingly raised to more than 1000 ng/ml in 19% of patients.

DISCUSSION:

The incidence and prevalence of HCC was high due to high prevalence of chronic viral hepatitis in our study sample. HCC more commonly affects men than women and this was reflected in the gender distribution of cases in this study with two thirds of patients being men.¹³ The difference in the incidence of HCC in both genders has led to the hypothesis of a protective role of estrogens in female population.^{13,14} As many as 27% patients were asymptomatic at the time of diagnosis which is a significantly high figure as other studies like Kumar et al¹⁵ reported that 91.6% of patients with HCC were symptomatic at the time of diagnosis. The performance status as depicted by ECOG performance score 0 or 1 was seen in 87% of the patients. Studies have shown that those patients having better performance status had better survival rates.¹⁶

S NO	Parameter	Number of Patients (%)
1	Asymptomatic	27(27%)
2	Abdominal Pain	66(66%)
3	Ascites	15(15%)
4	Weight Loss	55(55%)
5	Haematemesis	5(5%)
6	Anorexia	43(43%)
7	Jaundice	9(9%)
8	Multiple symptoms	63(63%)
9	Palpable splenomegaly	26(26%)
10	Edema	30(30%)
11	Anemia(Hb<10g/dl)	24(24%)
12	Thrombocytopenia	21(21%)
13	Renal dysfunction	5(5%)

Table 1: Presentation of HCC	

Figure 1: Gender Distribution



morbidities

S NO	Condition	Number Of Patients(%)
1	No co-morbid illness	69(69%)
2	Diabetes mellitus	20(20%)
3	Hypertension	3(3%)
4	Ischemic heart disease	2(2%)
5	Diabetes mellitus &	5(5%)
	Hypertension	



Figure 2: Distribution of Etiology

The effects of tumor size in HCC on clinical presentation and its role as a prognostic factor remain unclear .The 5year mortality was higher in patients with tumor sizes more than 5 cm in comparison with those with sizes less than 5 cm,¹⁸ Similarly, regardless of the tumor size in patients, the absence of vascular invasion or fibrosis was associated with better survival rates^{19, 20, 21}. The AFP levels were normal in 42% of patients. The previous studies found that elevated AFP levels are associated with higher pathological grade, more advanced BCLC stage, and larger tumors.^{22,23,24}

The vascular involvement was seen in only 15% of patients as compared to 35% in a study done in china.²⁵ Vascular involvement adversely affects the survival in HCCpatients independent of treatment modality being used. Patients with vascular involvement represent a distinct tumor phenotype of HCC. It is associated with younger age, aggressive tumor and poor performance status.²⁶ The majority of patients in our study had BCLC stage A or B tumor with a single tumor nodule with preserved functional status and few patients were asymptomatic as well at the time of presentation.²⁷ One possible explanation for high percentage of patients diagnosed before the development of symptoms and at an early stage may be the fact that majority of patients were known to have chronic liver disease due to chronic viral hepatitis and were also entitled to free medical treatment and hence were more likely to keep their appointments for surveillance of HCC. This could have led to an increasing number of patients being diagnosed at an earlier stage. Another possible reason for majority of patients falling in earlier tumor stages may be the referral bias; since PEMH is a tertiary care hospital and patients are referred to this center after being worked up at other hospitals in the country. It is possible that HCC patients with advanced stages of tumor were never referred to PEMH. Thus a referral bias cannot be excluded.

On the other hand, the size of tumor nodule in majority of patients was more than 5 cm which argues against the assumption that sticking to a surveillance program might have picked up patients at an earlier stage. It is therefore more likely that patients with more advanced disease did not report to this hospital.

The limitation of our study was possible referral bias. Another limitation was data being from a single center which might not necessarily be generalizable to the rest of country. It is recommended that future researches on HCC be carried out at multiple centers and referral bias be minimized. It is of critical importance for all the healthcare professionals involved in care of patients with HCC, to make themselves familiar with the common clinical features of this important tumor. Regular surveillance should be done in all at risk patients as per recommended guidelines to diagnose the HCC at an early stage, where the patients can be offered a treatment modality with favorable outcomes. If we are able to diagnose HCC at an early stage, outlook can be favorable

		Number of patients(%)
Metastases	Nil	90(90%)
Wietastases	Yes	10(10%)
	Nil	85(85%)
Vaccular involvement	Main portal vein	4(4%)
vascular involvement	Branch of portal vein	9(%)
	Portal & Mesenteric veins	1(1%)
	Inferior vena cava & Portal vein	1(1%)
	< 3	17(17%)
Tumor size (cm)	3-5	23(23%)
	>5	60(60%)
	1	62(62%)
Number of HCC lesions	2	11(11%)
	3 or more	27(27%)
	А	68(68%)
Child-Pugh Class	В	30(30%)
	С	1(1%)
	0	1(1%)
	А	34(34%)
BCLC Stage	В	42(42%)
	С	18(18%)
	D	5(5%)
	0	49(49%)
ECOC Saara	1	38(38%)
ECOG Scole	2	7(7%)
	3	6(6%)
	<8.5	42(2%)
Alfo Estomatoin Loval (/1)	8.6 - 100	24(24%)
Alla retoprotein Level (ng/ml)	100.1 - 1000	15(15%)
	>1000	19(19%)

Table 3: Clinical Profiling of HCC Patients

for these patients with potentially curative treatments now available

CONCLUSION:

HCV was the most common underlying etiology. Significant number of the patients were asymptomatic at the time of diagnosis. Majority of subjects reported with the complaint of abdominal pain and had no underlying co morbidity. No metastases were found in majority of cases.

- 1. McGlynn KA, Petrick JL, London WT. Global epidemiology of hepatocellular carcinoma: an emphasis on demographic and regional variability. Clin Liver Dis. 2015;19(2):223-38.
- Sia D, Villanueva A, Friedman SL, Llovet JM. Liver Cancer Cell of Origin, Molecular Class, and Effects on Patient Prognosis. Gastroenterology. 2017;152(4):745-61.
- Rawla P, Sunkara T, Muralidharan P, Raj JP. Update in global trends and aetiology of hepatocellular carcinoma. Contemp Oncol (Pozn). 2018;22(3):141-50.

- 4. Hafeez Bhatti AB, Dar FS, Waheed A, Shafique K, Sultan F, Shah NH. Hepatocellular Carcinoma in Pakistan: National Trends and Global Perspective. Gastroenterology Research and Practice. 2016;2016:10.
- Baecker A, Liu X, La Vecchia C, Zhang ZF. Worldwide incidence of hepatocellular carcinoma cases attributable to major risk factors. European journal of cancer prevention : the official journal of the European Cancer Prevention Organisation (ECP). 2018;27(3):205-12
- 6. Butt AS, Abbas Z, Jafri W. Hepatocellular carcinoma in pakistan: where do we stand? Hepat Mon. 2012;12(10 HCC):e6023-e
- Butt AS, Hamid S, Wadalawala AA, Ghufran M, Javed AA, Farooq O, et al. Hepatocellular carcinoma in Native South Asian Pakistani population; trends, clinico-pathological characteristics & differences in viral marker negative & viralhepatocellular carcinoma. BMC research notes. 2013;6(1):137.
- Hester D, Golabi P, Paik J, Younossi I, Mishra A, Younossi ZM. Among Medicare Patients With Hepatocellular Carcinoma, Non-alcoholic Fatty Liver Disease is the Most Common Etiology and Cause of Mortality. J Clin Gastroenterol. 2019.

- 9. Giannini EG, Farinati F, Ciccarese F, Pecorelli A, Rapaccini GL, Di Marco M, et al. Prognosis of untreated hepatocellular carcinoma. Hepatology. 2015;61(1):184-90.
- Giannini EG, Farinati F, Ciccarese F, Pecorelli A, Rapaccini GL, Di Marco M, et al. Prognosis of untreated hepatocellular carcinoma. Hepatology (Baltimore, Md). 2015;61(1):184-90.
- 11. Khokhar N, Aijazi I, Gill ML. Spectrum of hepatocellular carcinoma at Shifa International Hospital, Islamabad. Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad. 2003;15(4)
- 12. https://www.calculator.net/sample-sizecalculator.html?type=1&cl=95&ci=5&pp=5.20&ps=&x=78 &y=14
- 13. Liu P, Xie S-H, Hu S, Cheng X, Gao T, Zhang C, et al. Agespecific sex difference in the incidence of hepatocellular carcinoma in the United States. Oncotarget. 2017;8(40):68131-7.
- Keng VW, Largaespada DA, Villanueva A. Why men are at higher risk for hepatocellular carcinoma? J Hepatol. 2012;57(2):453-4.
- 15. Kumar R, Saraswat MK, Sharma BC, Sakhuja P, Sarin SK. Characteristics of hepatocellular carcinoma in India: a retrospective analysis of 191 cases. QJM : monthly journal of the Association of Physicians. 2008;101(6):479-85.
- Nishikawa H, Kita R, Kimura T, Ohara Y, Sakamoto A, Saito S et al. Clinical implication of performance status in patients with hepatocellular carcinoma complicating with cirrhosis. J Cancer 2015; 6:394-402
- 17. Wu G, Wu J, Wang B, Zhu X, Shi X, Ding Y. Importance of tumor size at diagnosis as a prognostic factor for hepatocellular carcinoma survival: a population-based study. Cancer Manag Res. 2018;10:4401-10.
- Dai CY, Lin CY, Tsai PC, Lin PY, Yeh ML, Huang CF, et al. Impact of tumor size on the prognosis of hepatocellular carcinoma in patients who underwent liver resection. Journal of the Chinese Medical Association: JCMA. 2018;81(2):155-63.
- 19. Truant S, Boleslawski E, Duhamel A, Bouras AF, Louvet A, Febvay C, et al. Tumor size of hepatocellular carcinoma in noncirrhotic liver: a controversial predictive factor for outcome after resection. European journal of surgical oncology : the journal of the European Society of Surgical Oncology and the British Association of Surgical Oncology. 2012;38(12):1189-96

- Nishikawa H, Kita R, Kimura T, Ohara Y, Sakamoto A, Saito S, et al. Clinical implication of performance status in patients with hepatocellular carcinoma complicating with cirrhosis. J Cancer. 2015;6(4):394-402.
- 21. Hsu CY, Lee YH, Hsia CY, Huang YH, Su CW, Lin HC, et al. Performance status in patients with hepatocellular carcinoma: determinants, prognostic impact, and ability to improve the Barcelona Clinic Liver Cancer system. Hepatology (Baltimore, Md). 2013;57(1):112-9
- 22. Sauzay C, Petit A, Bourgeois AM, Barbare JC, Chauffert B, Galmiche A, et al. Alpha-foetoprotein (AFP): A multi-purpose marker in hepatocellular carcinoma. Clinica chimica acta; international journal of clinical chemistry. 2016;463:39-44.
- 23. An SL, Xiao T, Wang LM, Rong WQ, Wu F, Feng L, et al. Prognostic Significance of Preoperative Serum Alphafetoprotein in Hepatocellular Carcinoma and Correlation with Clinicopathological Factors: a Single-center Experience from China. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention : APJCP. 2015;16(10):4421-7
- 24. ai D-S, Zhang C, Chen P, Jin S-J, Jiang G-Q. The prognostic correlation of AFP level at diagnosis with pathological grade, progression, and survival of patients with hepatocellular carcinoma. Sci Rep. 2017;7(1):12870-.
- 25. Lee YH, Hsu CY, Huang YH, Hsia CY, Chiou YY, Su CW, et al. Vascular invasion in hepatocellular carcinoma: prevalence, determinants and prognostic impact. Journal of clinical gastroenterology. 2014;48(8):734-41.
- 26. Hsieh C-H, Wei C-K, Yin W-Y, Chang C-M, Tsai S-J, Wang L-Y, et al. Vascular invasion affects survival in early hepatocellular carcinoma. Mol Clin Oncol. 2015;3(1):252-6.
- 27. Park JW, Chen M, Colombo M, Roberts LR, Schwartz M, Chen PJ, et al. Global patterns of hepatocellular carcinoma management from diagnosis to death: the BRIDGE Study. Liver international: official journal of the International Association for the Study of the Liver. 2015;35(9):2155-66.



Hepatitis B and C Infection in Gujrat, Pakistan: A Cross Sectional Study

Sajid Mehmood, Abdullah Mashori, Hira Khalid, Asim Mushtaq, Jagdesh, Muhammad Zeeshan Hyder

ABSTRACT

Objective: This study was aimed to investigate the prevalence of Hep B and C, gender distribution, route of transmission, family history of Hepatitis and treatment options.

Study Design and Setting: This was a cross sectional study conducted at Dr Mujahid's Lab Bhimber road Gujrat, Pakistan.

Methodology: A total of 1181 individuals were included in this study. Among these 1181 individuals, 528 individuals were screened for hepatitis B and C by immuno chromatographic test (ICT) at Dr. Mujahid's Lab, Bhimber road, Gujrat while rest of the 653 individuals were asked about the hepatitis status by using a well-structured questionnaire. Other related questions were also included like age, sex, marital status, mode of transmission, and about treatment to evaluate the risk factors associated with disease. Data was analyzed by using SPSS 17.

Results: Prevalence of hepatitis B and C was 1.37% and 8.26% in surveyed while 1.5% and 9.1% in screened population of district Gujrat respectively. In surveyed hepatitis C patients, 72% were females and 28% were males. Among these, 91% patients were married and only 9% were unmarried. In case of hepatitis C, 9% stated polluted water, 9% medicines, 5.5% family history, 3.7% barber, 2% endemic, 2% dental surgery, 2% unhygienic food and 2% typhoid fever as a cause of infection while for hepatitis B, 33% individual's stated low standard hoteling as a cause of infection. Overall, incidence of hepatitis was higher in screened individuals as compared to surveyed.

Conclusion: This study concluded that hepatitis prevalence is high in district Gujarat. Moreover, Hepatitis C is more frequent than hepatitis B in this area.

Key Words: Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C, Prevalence

INTRODUCTION:

Hepatitis B and C infections appeared as a major health issues globally including Pakistan.¹ These viruses are one of the major causes of severe liver disorder, counting cirrhosis-related end stage liver disease and hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC).² Hepatitis B virus is infectious and spread chiefly by blood, body-fluid contact, and vertical transmission.³ HBsAg in serum is the primary sero indicator

Sajid Mehmood Professor, Department of Biochemistry, Islam Medical and Dental College, Sialkot, Pakistan Email: mehmood.sajid@gmail.com
Abdullah Mashori Associate Professor, Department of Biochemistry, Pir Abdul Qadir Shah Jeelani Institute of Medical Sciences, GAMBAT, Khairpur MIRS
Hira Khalid Demonstrator, Department of Biochemistry, Islam Medical and Dental College, Sialkot, Pakistan
Asim Mushtaq Demonstrator, Department of Biochemistry, Islam Medical and Dental College, Sialkot, Pakistan
Jagdesh Professor, Department of Biochemistry, Islam Medical and Dental College, Sialkot, Pakistan
Muhammad Zeeshan Hyder Associate Professor, Department of Biosciences, COMSATS Institute of Information Technology, Islamabad, Pakistan
Received: 02-Sep-2019 Accepted: 12-Mar-2020

of active HBV infection, whichever acute or chronic.⁴ HCV infection is also widespread worldwide. It is transmitted in similar way to HBV and it is expected that approx 3% of the world's inhabitants carry HCV, with 3 to 4 million new infections every year.⁵ Lack of information and health knowledge regarding safe dental treatments and general surgeries are the main threats for both hepatitis B and C transmission in Pakistan. There is a need to arrange awareness campaigns for health care professionals and general population to reduce this burden in our country.⁶

Both hepatitis B and C are prevalent in Pakistan. On the whole, prevalence varies between 2.6% and 5.3% for HBsAg and anti-HCV antibodies in Pakistan.⁷ The estimated risk of HCV in Pakistan is 2.4-6.5%.⁸ In case of hepatitis C, initially there are no symptoms but its infection can result in chronic liver disease which may cause liver fibrosis and result cirrhosis. The end result in some cases is hepatocellular carcinoma which appears several years later.⁹

Transmission of HBV is usually from contact with infected blood or blood products. It such, reuse of contaminated syringes and needles, vertical transmission, sexual contact and blood transfusion.¹⁰ Hepatitis C also spreads via direct contact with the blood of an infected person. Earlier studies of clinical investigations had identified that transfusion of blood products is the main risk factor in the conduction of HCV infection.¹¹ Therefore, this study was aimed to investigate the prevalence of Hep B and C, gender distribution, route of transmission, family history of Hepatitis and treatment options.

METHODOLOGY:

This study was consisted of two parts, 1st part was a survey with questionnaire Performa for patients. A total of 653 Performa's were filled randomly by individuals from district Gujrat, Pakistan. Informed consent of individuals including name, sex, age, address, contact number, NIC number along with hepatitis B and C related patient history such as route of infection, duration of disease, transfusion history, family hepatitis history, diabetes, obesity, injected drug users, surgery, vaccination status in case of hepatitis B, treatment type, treatment duration and different diagnostic tests related hepatitis were collected.

The 2nd part was consisted of screening 528 individuals randomly for hepatitis B and C by ICT (Acu-check) for further evaluation of hepatitis prevalence in district Gujrat. Three ml of blood was collected from each individual by disposable syringe and placed for clotting. Blood was centrifuged for three minutes at 5000 rpm to separate serum. Serum was collected in new apondrofs for qualitative detection of hepatitis B virus surface antigens and hepatitis C virus antibodies by immuno chromatographic assay. The data was enetered on SPSS version 17 and P value <0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

RESULTS:

A total of 653 individuals were recruited for part 1 of this study from Gujrat city and territories to estimate the prevalence of hepatitis in district Gujrat. Out of 653 surveyed individuals 371 were females and 282 were males. All the individuals were categorized in two age groups (Group 1: =40 years, Group 2: >40 years). Only 63 individuals were positive for hepatitis with 9 (1.37%) individuals positive for hepatitis B and 54 (8.26%) for hepatitis C.

Another 528 healthy individuals were screened for hepatitis by ICT to estimate its frequency in general population. There were 57% males and 43% females of screened individuals. A total of 10.6% individuals were positive for hepatitis

> Total HBV HCV Age (Years) positive positive positive (%) (%) (%) Males 16(2.45) 6(0.91) ≤40 10(1.52) >40 0(0)5(0.76) 5(0.76) Females ≤40 13(1.99) 1(0.15) 12(1.83) >4029(4.44) 2(0.3)27(4.13)

Table-1a: Prevalence of hepatitis in screened individuals

including 9.1% positive for hepatitis C and 1.5% positive for hepatitis B.

In case of surveyed individuals 442 were married and 211 were unmarried. Out of 442 married individuals, 51 (11.53%) were positive for hepatitis including 49 (11%) positive for hepatitis C and 2 (0.45%) positive for hepatitis B. In unmarried individuals, 12 (5.6%) were positive for hepatitis with 5 (2.3%) positive for hepatitis C and 7 (3.3%) positive for hepatitis B. The risk of getting hepatitis seems to be four times higher in married people (Table 2).

Liver enzymes were elevated in both gender for hepatitis B and C. In hepatitis B patients, 55% individuals had elevated ALT while 41% individuals with hepatitis C showed elevated ALT levels. Elevated AST levels were same for both hepatitis B and C. In both types of hepatitis patients, up to 15% individuals were diabetic while 22% were obese with higher percentage in case of hepatitis C for both cases. Injected drug users were only 11% and 4% for hepatitis B and C respectively. Blood transfusion rate was very low in both hepatitis B and C cases (Figure 1).

Mostly patients did not know how they infected as only 33% and 35% individuals provide supposed information about their route of infection of hepatitis B and C respectively while rest of the patients have no idea about their infection route. In both hepatitis B and C, 33% patients had family history of hepatitis. The household hepatitis contact was 11% and 22% for hepatitis B and C respectively. Only few patients had their spouse infected with hepatitis (Figure 2).

Mostly patients preferred allopathic medicine for hepatitis treatment. As in case of surveyed individuals, more than 75% individuals provide information about allopathic medicine. Only few individuals were using homeopathic medicine hepatitis treatment.

About 11% and 9% patients used both homeopathic and allopathic medicines for hepatitis B and hepatitis C treatment respectively. Some individuals were not familiar with type

Age (Years)	Total positive (%)	Hepatitis B (%)	Hepatitis C (%)		
	Ma	ales			
≤40	12(2.27)	7(1.32)	5(0.94)		
>40	10(1.89)	1(0.18)	9(1.7)		
Females					
≤40	13(2.46)	0(0)	13(2.46)		
>40	21(3.97)	0(0)	21(3.97)		

Table 1b: Prevalence of hepatitis in surveyed individuals

Table 2: Prevalence of hepatitis B and C in married and unmarried individuals

Marital Status	No. of individuals	Positive	HCV Positive	HBV Positive
Married	442	51 (11.53%)	49 (11%)	2 (0.45%)
Unmarried	211	12 (5.6%)	5 (2.3%)	7 (3.3%)
Total	653	63 (9.6%)	54 (8.2%)	9 (1.3%)



Figure 1- Relationship of hepatitis with Biochemical parameters.

Figure 2- Relationship between hepatitis types with family status







of medicine which they used. Surprisingly, 13% patients were not using any medicine for HCV. Only 33% and 31% of surveyed patients were cured in case of hepatitis B and C respectively (Figure 3).

DISCUSSION:

In Pakistan, mostly people are ignorant to health-related issues counting hepatitis B and C infections due to low literacy rate. Most of the HBV and HCV infected patient's diagnosed hepatitis when they visited doctor for other health issue such as dental treatment and surgeries. Similarly, in our survey, mostly patients were unaware of disease and they diagnosed when they came to doctor for some other health problems.

In present study, 1.37% and 1.5% of surveyed and screening individuals had hepatitis B respectively. For hepatitis C, we founded 8.26% and 9% of surveyed and screening individuals correspondingly. These are almost similar to other studies including Khan et al ¹² and Basit et al.¹³ Basit et al established that 1.3%, 8.4% and 3% for HBV, HCV and co infection of hepatitis B and C respectively. The gender wise hepatitis B distribution was also nearly similar to Basit et al, as he founded 6.3% and 3.7% for males and females while in this study the distribution was 6.7% and 3.3% for males and females respectively. We founded 2.8% and 7.2% hepatitis C male and female patients while Mushtaq et al stated 3.7% and 6.3% hepatitis C male and female's patients respectively¹⁴, indicating an increasing trend of hepatitis C in females.

In present study, males had higher prevalence of hepatitis B which was also established by Wasfi and Sadek, 2011¹⁵ while in case of hepatitis C females had higher prevalence supported by Mushtaq et al.¹⁴ Mushtaq et al also conducted the study in district Gujrat. Individuals >40 years of age had high frequency of hepatitis C than younger individuals. It was reported by many studies that prevalence of hepatitis C rises after 40 years of age.^{16,17} We founded similar results for hepatitis C with 61% and 62.5% individuals aged greater than 40 years of surveyed and screening population while hepatitis B contradicted this with 78% and 87.5% individuals aged less than 40 years of surveyed and screening individuals respectively. The prevalence of hepatitis C was higher in married individuals than in unmarried. It was supported by different studies including Adekeye et al and Ayele and Solomon.^{18,19} In present study, 91% hepatitis C patients were married while for hepatitis B the result was again contradicted. It might be due to the reason of high number (59%) of individuals with age less than 40 years. The higher prevalence in married people can be due to the pre-exposure of hepatitis which later can be transmitted to spouse or elderly people had less information and knowledge about infectious diseases and their prevention. To reduce the incidence of hepatitis, general screening of blood, awareness about hepatitis B and C transmission and risk factors should be addressed to general population by campaigns.

CONCLUSION:

It was concluded that hepatitis C was more prevalent than hepatitis B in district Gujrat. High prevalence was found for females in case of hepatitis C while for hepatitis B it was vice versa.

- 1. World Health Organization fact sheets. Hepatitis C. Geneva:World Health Organization; 2000. Available at: http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs164/en/(accessedAugust 2012).
- 2. World Health Organization: Western Pacific regional plan for hepatitis B control through immunization. Philippines: Regional Office for the Western Pacific Manila; [http://www.wpro. who.int/publications/publications.htm].
- 3. Lok AS, McMahon BJ. Chronic hepatitis B. Hepatology 2007;45:507–539.
- 4. Sood S, Malvankar S. Seroprevalence of Hepatitis B surface antigen, antibodies to the Hepatitis C virus, and human immunodeficiency virus in a hospital-based population in Jaipur, Rajasthan. Indian J Community Med. 2010;35:165–169. doi:
- 5. World Health Organization: Hepatitis C. Available at [http://www.who.int/mediacentre/ factsheets/fs164/en].
- Qureshi H, Arif A, Riaz K, Alam SE, Ahmed W, Mujeeb SA. Determination of risk factors for hepatitis B and C in male patients suffering from chronic hepatitis. BMC Res Notes. 2009;2:212.
- Bosan A, Qureshi H, Mohammad K, Ahmad I, Hafiz R. A review of hepatitis viral infections in Pakistan. J Pak Med Assoc. 2010;60(12):1045-1058.
- Jafri W, Subhan A. Hepatitis C in Pakistan: magnitude, genotype, disease characteristics and therapeutic response. Trop Gastroenterol. 2008;29:194-120.
- Tong MJ, El-Farra NS, Reikes AR, Co RL. Clinical outcomes after transfusion-Associated Hepatitis C. N. Engl. J. Med. 1995;332:1463-1466.

- 10. Petersen N, Barrett, Bond, Berquist, Favero, Bender, Maynard. Hepatitis B surface antigen in saliva, impetiginous lesions, and the environment in two remote Alaskan villages. Applied and environmental microbiology. 1976;32:572-574.
- Aslam M, Aslam J. Seroprevalence of the antibody to hepatitis C in select groups in Punjab region of Pakistan. J. Clin. Gast. 2001;33:407-11.
- 12. Najib UK, Lubna S, Ijaz A, Aqib I, Iqbal M, Farzana R, et al. Prevalence of hepatitis B in the blood donors of NW.F.P And FATA Regions and the current scenario of HBV infection in Pakistan. African Journal of Biotechnology. 2010;9(37):6162-6166.
- Abdul B, Kashif R, Iqbal A, Mehwish S, Sameerah M, Humera S, et al. Prevalence of Hepatitis B and C Infection in Pakistan. Journal of Infection and Molecular Biology 2014; 2(3):35– 38.
- Mushtaq A, ariq MA, ashid U, froz A, eeshan N, sif AR, et al. Estimation of HCV viral load and liver enzymes among different patients groups of District Gujrat, Pakistan. ABB. 2013;4:866-871.
- Rey-Cuille MA, Seck A, Njouom R, Chartier L, Sow HD, Njankouo M, et al. Low immune response to hepatitis B vaccine among children in Dakar, Senegal. PLoS One 2012;7(5):15–18.
- Abdel HM, Kelly D. Chronic hepatitis B in children and adolescents: epidemiology and management. Pediatric Drugs 2013;15(4):311–317. doi: 10.1007/s40272-013-0010-z.
- Adekeye AM, Chukwuedo AA, Zhakom PN, Yakubu RS. Prevalence of Hepatitis B and C among Blood Donors in Jos South LGA, Plateau State, Nigeria. Asian J. Med. Sci. 2013;5(5):101–104.
- Ayele AG, Solomon GS. Prevalence and Risk Factors of Hepatitis B and Hepatitis C Virus Infections among Patients with Chronic Liver Diseases in Public Hospitals in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. Trop. Med. 2013;2:1–7.
- 19. Wasfi OAS, Sadek NA. Prevalence of hepatitis B surface antigen and hepatitis C virus antibodies among blood donors in Alexandria, Egypt. East. Medit. Health J.2011;3:238–242.



Frequency of Electrolyte Disorders and Its Effect On Mortality Among Children Admitted In Pediatric Intensive Care Unit

Maryam Haider, Ammara Hameed, Sara Fatima, Meher Afroze, Nadeem Noor, Uzma Arshad

ABSTRACT

Objective: To determine the frequency of electrolyte disorders, i.e., serum sodium and potassium and to evaluate its effect on mortality rate among children admitted at the pediatric intensive care unit.

Study Design and Setting: This was a descriptive cross sectional study conducted at Pediatric Intensive care unit of Civil Hospital Karachi from April to December 2017

Methodology: Informed consent was obtained from 150 parents of the children who fulfill the inclusion criteria. Laboratory data (serum sodium and serum potassium) were recorded during the stay in the pediatric intensive care unit. Data was analyzed using SPSS version 20. Mean \pm S.D was calculated for quantitative variables. Frequency and percentage were calculated for gender, electrolyte disorders and mortality. Effect modifiers were controlled by stratification of age, gender and electrolyte disorders (Hypernatremia, Hyponatremia, Hyperkalemia, and Hypokalemia). Post-stratification, Chi-squared test was applied. P-value = 0.05 was taken as significant.

Results: Out of 150 patients, electrolyte disorders in terms of serum sodium and potassium, were found in 86(57.3%) children. Mortality in children with electrolyte disorders was found to be 46(53.5%) which was significantly higher (P<0.001) than patients without electrolyte disorders 40(46.5%). Hypernatremia was found in 48(32%), hyponatremia 24(16%), hyperkalemia 21(14%) and hypokalemia in 42(28%) patients.In comparison; of electrolyte disorders with mortality; significant association was found in hypernatremia (P<0.001), and hyperkalemia (P<0.001).

Conclusion: The most common electrolyte abnormalities were hypernatremia and hypokalemia. Mortality was significantly higher in subjects with electrolyte disorders, especially hypernatremia and hyperkalemia.

L

L

L

L

L

L

н

L

Keywords: Electrolyte Disorders, Intensive care unit (ICU), Mortality, Potassium, Sodium

INTRODUCTION:

Electrolytes such as sodium and potassium play a vital role in maintaining cellular structure and function, generating energy and controlling the potential for action across cell membranes, especially those of muscles and nerve cells, which play an important role in critically ill patient's outcome.^{1,2}Any disruption in the serum level of these

Marvam Haider

Т

L

I

I

L

L

н

Т

L

I

н

Assistant Professor, Department of Paediatrics Jinnah Medical College Hospital, Karachi Email: dr.maryamhaider@hotmail.com Ammara Hameed Senior Registrar, Department of Paediatrics Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Sara Fatima Paediatrics Emergency Medicine Fellow, Agha Khan University Hospital, Karachi

Meher Afroze

Assistant Professor, Department of Paediatrics, Jinnah Medical College Hospital, Karachi

Nadeem Noor

Assistant Professor, Department of Paediatrics, Jinnah Medical College Hospital, Karachi

Uzma Arshad

Assistant Professor, Department of Paediatrics, Jinnah Medical College Hospital, Karachi

Received: 06-Feb-2020 Accepted: 22-Apr-2020

electrolytes may lead to a variety of clinical disorders including neuromuscular dysfunction and life-threatening cardiac arrhythmias, particularly where more than one electrolyte is deficient.^{3,4} The most severe complications of hypokalemia are cardiac arrhythmia and acute respiratory failures due to respiratory muscles paralysis while other adverse effects include muscle weakness, fatigue, rhabdomyolysis, nausea and constipation.^{5, 6}Although hyperkalemia is associated with neuromuscular symptoms such as extreme muscle weakness or ascending muscle paralysis, it can also cause paresthesiaas, palpitation, and cardiac conduction that can lead to adverse outcome in patients in intensive care unit patients.⁷ Hyponatremia is also a frequent electrolyte abnormality observed in critically ill patients.^{8, 9} Severe acute decline in serum sodium concentration may cause neurologic dysfunction such as seizures and coma. The most severe complication of hyponatremia is cerebral edema that may lead to catastrophic conditions like brain stem herniation and cardiac arrest¹⁰. On the other hand; hypernatremia can cause brain hemorrhage like subdural and subarachnoid hemorrhages due to the rupture of bridging veins because of a decrease in brain volume. The clinical symptoms are progressive that might commence with irritability, agitation, lethargy, and irritability and can progress to twitching, seizures, and coma¹¹. Thus, maintaining the levels of potassium and sodium within acceptable limits is therefore well understood in most

intensive care units. They are known as prognostic predictors and their disruption can be avoided by considering the appropriate intravenous fluids and nutrition¹².

Ample literature on electrolyte imbalance have concentrated on the occurrence and prevalence of such electrolyte disorders in patients in the intensive care unit but there is scarce literature on the impact of such disorders on mortality rate. Pakistan has a greater number of children with electrolyte disorders admitted every day to pediatric intensive care unit. Despite of this, the research on the prevalence of electrolyte disorders and its effect on mortality rates are lacking within our population. In fact, due to a lack of resources and clinical expertise about the treatment of electrolyte disorders, mortality in our population is estimated to be higher than in the western world.^{13, 14} Therefore, the aim of this study was not only to assess the frequency of serum sodium and potassium disorders but also to assess their effects on mortality rate in children admitted to the pediatric intensive care unit in Civil Hospital Karachi. The outcome of this study would be beneficial to take aggressive measures against electrolyte imbalances to reduce the mortality.

METHODOLOGY:

All children between the ages of 2 months to 12 years who were admitted in Pediatric Intensive Care Unit, Civil Hospital Karachi from April to December 2017 with duration of at least 48 hours of PICU stay, were included in the study. Patients undergoing emergency or elective surgical procedures, patients on diuretic therapy and patients with documented chronic or co-morbid illness were excluded such as endocrinopathy, cerebral palsy, chronic liver disease, congenital heart disease. Patients were enrolled through non-probability consecutive sampling. The demographic data of all the participants regarding age, sex and admitting diagnosis was noted on a predesigned proforma. Blood samples were drawn on admission to find out the initial serum levels of sodium, potassium. Then, the levels were repeated 24 hourly or earlier (if needed). Determination of electrolytes was the standard examination in all patients admitted to the pediatric intensive care unit at Civil Hospital, Karachi. No personal identity revelation was made on the questionnaires and confidentiality of all data was maintained during the study phases. There is no conflict of interest or funding source to declare. The normal serum levels of sodium and potassium are given below¹⁵.

Normal serum sodium level 135mEq/L-145 mEq/L.

Normal serum potassium level 3.4mEq/L-5.3 mEq/L.

Any value below or above the following cut-off values was considered to be anomalous suggesting an electrolyte imbalance.

For this study, Mortality was recorded for those patients, who died after at least 48 hours of admission in Pediatric Intensive care unit. Sample size of the study (n=142) was

calculated by taking prevalence of hypernatremia i.e. 6.3%.¹⁶ Confidence Interval of 95% and margin of error 4%. For convenience, a total of 150 patients were enrolled. Data was analyzed using SPSS version 20. Mean ± S.D was calculated for quantitative variables. Frequency and percentage were calculated for gender, diagnosis at admission, electrolyte disorders and mortality. Effect modifiers were controlled by stratification of age, gender and electrolyte disorders (Hypernatremia, Hyponatremia, Hyperkalemia, and Hypokalemia). Post-stratification, Chi-squared test was applied. P-value = 0.05 was taken as significant.

RESULTS:

A total number of 150 patients were included in this analysis with a mean age of 50.33 months \pm 46.46 (Table.1) with Confidence Interval (42.84-57.83). Out of these 150 patients, 93 (62%) were male and 57 (38%) were female.Regarding the admitting diagnosis, majority i.e. 52 (34.66%) had respiratory illness, 36(24%) had neurological illness, 28 (18.66%) had sepsis/infection, 12 (8%) had cardiovascular problem, 10 (6.66%) had gastrointestinal ailment and 12(8%) were categorized in miscellaneous group including endocrine diseases.

Mixed electrolyte disorders (serum sodium and potassium abnormality) were found in 86(57.33%) children. Hypernatremia was found in 48(32%), Hyponatremia 24(16%), Hyperkalemia 21(14%) and Hypokalemia was found in 42(28%) children. Hypernatremia and Hyperkalemia were significantly more common in patients who expired (62.5%) (P=0.0001), and (28.8%) (P=0.0001) respectively (Figure 2 & 3).

Overall, mortality was found to be 34.66% (52 out of 150 patients). Mortality in children with electrolyte disorders was found to be 46(53.5%) which was significantly higher (P=0.0001) than children without electrolyte disorders 40(46.5%) (Figure 1).

DISCUSSION:

This comprehensive case study was carried out at Civil Hospital Karachi to assess the prevalence of electrolyte disorders and their impact on mortality in children admitted in pediatric intensive care unit.

Fluids and electrolyte disturbances are one of the most common clinical problems encountered in the intensive care unit. Disturbances in fluid and electrolyte homeostasis can occur in critical conditions such as severe burns, sepsis, trauma, heart failure and brain damage. In most cases, electrolyte disturbances may remain subtle and may lead to higher mortality and morbidity.¹⁷

In our study, mixed electrolyte disorders were found in 86(57.33%) children. Since the four electrolyte disorders (Hypo/Hypernatremia, Hypo/Hyperkalemia) were considered together and imbalance among any of them was noted, this might be the reason for the high incidence. Cummings BM
Parameter	Frequency	Percentage%
Mean Age(in months)	55.33±46.46	
Gender		
Boy	93	62
Girls	57	38
Admitting diagnosis		
Respiratory	52	34.66
CNS	36	24
Sepsis/infection	28	18.66
CVS	12	8
GIT	10	6.66
Miscellaneous	12	8
Electrolyte Disorders		
Yes	86	57.33
No	64	42.77
Hypernatremia		
Yes	48	32
No	102	68
Hyponatremia		
Yes	24	16
No	126	84
Hyperkalemia		
Yes	21	14
No	129	86
Hypokalemia		
Yes	42	28
No	108	72
Patients Survived		
Yes	98	65.34
No	52	34.66

Table 1. Demographic characteristics and main clinical variables (n=150)





Figure 3. Comparison of mortality with serum potassium levels (n=150)



found potassium abnormalities alone to be around 40%.¹⁸ Another study focused at all five electrolytes showed 60% incidence.² This proves the statement that electrolyte abnormalities are very common in critically ill children.

Majority had respiratory (34.66%), neurological (24%) and infective/sepsis (18.66%) etiology as noted in previous studies.^{2, 19, 20} The reason for less number of gastrointestinal cases (3.96%) could be the initial stabilization in ER and later shifting to ward upon improvement thus bypassing the PICU stay. This is important because gastroenteritis in children is the major source of electrolyte imbalance, but prompt and proper treatment may avoid PICU admission.

A study conducted in Kathmandu identified hyponatremiato be 56%, followed by hypokalemia 46%. Almost 37% of patients had mixed electrolyte imbalances²¹. However, our study showed hyponatremia (16%), hypokalemia (28%) and mixed electrolyte disorders (57.33%)

In another study, published in India, mixed electrolyte imbalances were observed in 33% of children. The most frequent electrolyte imbalance was Hyperkalemia which was found in 14.4% similar to our study in which hyperkalemia was found in 14% patients. Hyponatremia was found to be 6.9% compared to 16% of hyponatremia in our study²².

Figure 1. Comparison Of Overall Mortality With Mixed Electrolyte Disorders (N=150)



Frequency of Electrolyte Disorders and Its Effect On Mortality Among Children Admitted In Pediatric Intensive Care Unit

Another prospective study showed that severe hyponatremia was associated with three fold increase risk of morbidity and mortality²³.

Most of the literature has reported hyponatremia to be more prevalent than hypernatremia i.e. 23.2% vs. $16.7\%^{15}$, 27.43% vs. $3.5\%^6$, 50.5% vs. $9.4\%^2$. Sachdev A noted hyponatremia to be $19.3\%^{20}$. However, hypernatremia was found in 48% of cases and hyponatremia in 16% cases. This might be due to the institutional policy of using 0.9% dextrose saline as maintenance intravenous fluid rather than half strength or other hypotonic solutions in children above one month of age.

One research concluded that potassium imbalance is frequent among children admitted in PICU. Hyperkalemia was observed in 5.4% of 727 children enrolled in this study, while in our study hyperkalemia was reported in 14%. This variation in prevalence could be due to the fact that in this study hyperkalemia was defined as a serum potassium value > 6 mEq / L. However, in this study serum potassium levels > 5.3 mEq / L are considered to be hyperkalemia.²⁴

In a study conducted by Kathryn Maitland, it was found that extreme hyperkalemia wasassociated with falciparum malaria in 9 children (16%), of whom 7 (78%) died shortly after admission²⁵.

Overall mortality in this study was 34.66% (52/150). However, mortality documented by Panda I was $23.73\%^{6}$ and by Jan M et al as $22.8\%^{26}$.

In one local study, results showed that out of 101 children enrolled, electrolyte imbalances were present in 85 (84.15%) children. Among these patients, the most frequent abnormality noted was hypocalcemia which was seen in 49 (57.64%) patients, followed by hypernatremia in 32 (37.64%) cases and hypophosphatemia in 30 (35.29%) patients. Hypokalemia was observed in 26 (30.58%) and hypermagnesemia in 18 (21.17%) children. The study found that electrolyte imbalances in critically ill children are associated with a higher risk of mortality. Early mortality, i.e. within 48 hours of admission, was reported in 14 cases of which 12 had electrolyte disturbances.²⁷.

In another study carried out at a hospital in India in PICU, results revealed that out of132 children enrolled in the study, 71 (53.79%) had an electrolyte abnormalities. Among these patients, 29 (40.85%) had hyponatremia, 9 (12.68%) had hypernatremia, 13 (18.31%) had hyperkalemia, 8 (11.27%) had hypokalemia. They also found that patients with electrolyte abnormalities had relatively longer hospital stays.²⁸ The limitation of this study was the smaller sample size; a study with large sample size with multiple centers in Pakistan to validate the results of should be conducted in future. Electrolyte disturbances in children become obvious during illness and early detection and management of these derangements is essential to avoid serious life-threatening situation. They are considered as significant and reliable

indicator of mortality as shown by this study. Another limitation as this study was that the mortality might be primarily due to underlying clinical disorder and not the electrolyte disturbances. For this purpose, children with documented chronic or co-morbid illnesses should have been excluded and mortality was recorded only in those patients with duration of PICU stay of at least 48 hours. Serial serum electrolytes tests are helpful in preventing severe life-threatening circumstances. Thus, the need for early interventions to correct these imbalances is imperative in reducing the mortality.

CONCLUSION:

The results of this study showed higher mortality in children with electrolyte disorders especially hypernatremia and hyperkalemia, thus, concluding that electrolyte imbalance was a significant predictor of prognosis in seriously ill patients.

- 1. Sedlacek M, Schoolwerth AC, Remillard BD. Electrolyte disturbances in the intensive care unit. Semin Dial 2006;19(6):496-501.
- 2. Agarwal N, Rao Y, Saxena R, Acharya R. Profile of serum electrolytes in critically ill children: A prospective study. Indian J child Health. 2018;5(2):128–132.
- 3. Rukesh CC, Shalini B. Correlation between serum electrolytes and clinical outcome in children admitted to PICU. IOSR J Dent Med Sci. 2017;16(11):24–27.
- Ducceschi V, D'Andrea A, Liccardo B, Sarubbi B, Ferrara L, Romano GP, Santangelo L, Iacono A, Cotrufo M. Ventricular tachyarrhythmias following coronary surgery: predisposing factors. International journal of cardiology. 2000 Mar 31;73(1):43-8.
- Lee JW. Fluid and electrolyte disturbances in critically ill patients. Electrolytes & Blood Pressure. 2010 Dec 1;8(2):72-81.
- 6. Panda I, Save S. Study of association of mortality with electrolyte abnormalities in children admitted in pediatric intensive care unit. Int J ContempPediatr. 2018;5:1097–1103.
- 7. Viera AJ, Wouk N. Potassium disorders: hypokalemia and hyperkalemia. American family physician. 2015 Sep 15;92(6):487-95.
- 8. Friedman B, Cirulli J. Hyponatremia in critical care patients: frequency, outcome, characteristics, and treatment with the vasopressin V2-receptor antagonist tolvaptan. Journal of critical care. 2013 Apr 1;28(2):219-e1.
- Amin A, Deitelzweig S, Christian R, Friend K, Lin J, Belk K, Baumer D, Lowe TJ. Evaluation of incremental healthcare resource burden and readmission rates associated with hospitalized hyponatremic patients in the US. Journal of hospital medicine. 2012 Oct;7(8):634-9.
- Kilic O, Demirkol D, Ucsel R, Citak A, Karabocuoglu M. Hypophosphatemia and its clinical implications in critically ill children: a retrospective study. Journal of critical care. 2012 Oct 1;27(5):474-9.
- 11. Adrogue HJ, Madias NE. Hypernatremia. New England Journal of Medicine. 2000 May 18;342(20):1493-9.

- Reddy A, Thapar RK, Gupta RK. Electrolyte disturbances in critically ill children admitted to pediatric tertiary care centre. J Evol Med Dent Sci. 2017;6:3269–3273.
- 13. Syed M, Khawaja FB, Saleem T, Khalid U, Rashid A, Humayun KN. Clinical profile and outcomes of paediatric patients with diabetic ketoacidosis at a tertiary care hospital in Pakistan. Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association. 2011;61(11):1082.
- 14. Wasay M, Zaidi S, Jooma R. Non communicable diseases in Pakistan: burden, challenges and way forward for health care authorities.
- 15. Elala G, Shimelis D. Patterns of electrolyte abnormalities in children 0-15 years of age admitted to pediatric emergency and intensive care units of a tertiary hospital. IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences. 2018;17(2):12-6.
- Mousavi SA, Shahabi S, Mostafapour E, Purfakharan M, Fereshtehnejad SM, Amini J, Khojandi M, Raji H. Comparison of the serum electrolyte levels among patients died and survived in the intensive care unit. Tanaffos. 2012;11(4):36.
- Marshall DC, Salciccioli JD, Goodson RJ, Pimentel MA, Sun KY, Celi LA, Shalhoub J. The association between sodium fluctuations and mortality in surgical patients requiring intensive care. Journal of critical care. 2017 Aug 1;40:63-8.
- Cummings BM, Macklin EA, Yager PH, Sharma A, Noviski N. Potassium abnormalities in a pediatric intensive care unit: frequency and severity. J Intensive Care Med. 2014;29(5):269–274.
- Haque A, Bano S. Improving outcome in pediatric intensive care unit in academic hospital in Pakistan. Pak J Med Sci. 2009;25(4):605–608.

- Sachdev A, Pandharikar N, Gupta D, Gupta N, Gupta S, Venkatraman ST. Hospital acquired hyponatremia in pediatric intensive care unit. Indian J Crit Care Med. 2017; 21:599–603.
- 21. Shah GS, Das BK, Kumar S, Singh MK, Bhandari GP. Acid base and electrolyte disturbance in diarrhoea. Kathmandu University medical journal (KUMJ). 2006 Dec;5(17):60-2.
- 22. Subba Rao SD, Thomas B. Electrolyte abnormalities in children admitted to pediatric intensive care unit. Indian pediatrics. 2000;37(12):1348-53.
- 23. Singhi S, Prasad SV, Chugh KS. Hyponatremia in sick children: a marker of serious illness. Age. 1994 Jan;125:126-30.
- 24. Singhi S, Gulati S, Prasad SV. Frequency and significance of potassium disturbances in sick children. Indian pediatrics. 1994 Apr;31(4):460.
- 25. Maitland K, Pamba A, Fegan G, Njuguna P, Nadel S, Newton CR, Lowe B. Perturbations in electrolyte levels in Kenyan children with severe malaria complicated by acidosis. Clinical infectious diseases. 2005 Jan 1;40(1):9-16.
- 26. Jain M, Sha A, Parajapati R. Study of electrolyte imbalance in critically ill children. Int J Int Med Res. 2015;2(2):56–59.
- 27. Naseem F, Saleem A, Mahar IA, Arif F. Electrolyte imbalance in critically ill paediatric patients. Pakistan journal of medical sciences. 2019 Jul;35(4):1093.
- 28. Chary DC, Shalini B. Correlation between serum electrolytes and clinical outcome in children admitted to PICU. IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences16. 2017; 11:24-7.



Correlation Between Clinical Oral Dryness Score and Salivary Flow Rates in Active and Passive Smokers

Seeme Nigar, Sobia Hassan, Sidra Fahim, Ahmed Bin Khalid, Faisal Salim

ABSTRACT

Objective: To evaluate the mean clinical oral dryness score (CODs) and salivary flow rate (SFR) in subjects exposed to active and passive smoking. The secondary aim was to determine the correlation between CODs and SFR and potential factors associated with CODs and SFR in our subjects.

Study Design and Setting: The clinical observational study was conducted at the Outpatient department of oral diagnosis at Altamash Institute of Dental Medicine, Karachi from Jan 2019-Jul 2019.

Methodology: A total of 217 participants of ages 15 – 80years coming for routine dental checkup of either gender were included. A thorough oral examination was performed for all the subjects. A non-stimulated saliva sample was collected from the oral cavity of subjects in a graduated container. The salivary flow rate was noted in ml/min for 5 minutes. Assessment of oral dryness/hypo-salivation was examined through CODs (clinical oral dryness score). The data were analyzed using SPSS software version 23.

Results: The mean COD score and SFR were calculated as 1 and 0.42 ml/5min respectively. The Pearson's correlation between COD score and SFR level was calculated as -0.281 (negative correlation) such as the SFR significantly decreased when the COD score increased (p<0.05). The age, gender, smoking status, betel quid and areca nut consumption showed statistically significant difference in mean COD score and SFR levels (p<0.05).

Conclusion: Salivary flow rate was significantly decreased with increase in COD score thus having an implication on oral dryness feeling in these participants.

Keywords: Areca nut, Betel quid, Mouth dryness, Hypo-salivation, Smoking.

INTRODUCTION:

The oral tissues are continuously bathed with saliva in healthy individuals. The continuous flow of saliva helps to maintain oral hemostasis and helps in defense against microorganisms.¹⁻³ The salivary flow rate shows great variation from 0.3 - 0.65ml/min level to 1.5-6 ml/min when stimulated by chewing or by mild strength citric acid.⁴ The salivary glands have secretions which plays vital role in the protection of mucosa from feeling of dryness. The feeling

Seeme NigarMSc Trainee, Department of Oral PathologyAltamash Institute of Dental Medicine,Defense, Karachi
Sobia Hassan Associate Professor, Department of General Pathology Altamash Institute of Dental Medicine, Defense, Karachi
Sidra Fahim Senior Lecturer, Department of Oral Medicine/Periodontology Altamash Institute of Dental Medicine, Defense, Karachi Email: sidra.raf@gmail.com
Ahmed Bin Khalid MSc Trainee, Department of Periodontology Altamash Institute of Dental Medicine, Defense, Karachi
Faisal Salim Senior Dental Surgeon, Health Department Government of Baluchistan, Quetta
Received: 22-Oct-2019 Accepted: 07-Apr-2020

of dry mouth is a subjective and complex condition and affects approximately 46% of the population.⁵ Clinically, mouth dryness may differ from a small decrease in salivary flow with temporary inconvenience to severe deterioration of oral health and concomitant psychosomatic indisposition. The hypofunction of saliva has mainly been associated with decrease in salivary flow rate (SFR) and estimated as below 3 ìL/cm³/min.^{1,2,6} Hence, the most appropriate technique for the diagnosis salivary gland disorder is to measure SFR and it can be used as easily available, safe and non-invasive diagnostic modality to diagnose different systematic and oral conditions.^{7,8}

Clinical oral dryness score (CODS) is a new tool designed to assess oral dryness by clinical and visual inspection of the oral cavity based on several signs of oral dryness such as the presence of frothy saliva, the dryness of the oral mucosa and stickiness of the dental mirror to the tongue or the buccal fold. CODS closely determines both the unstimulated salivary flow and the thickness of mucin layer over the epithelium (mucosal wetness) suggesting a physiological basis to the feeling of dryness.⁹ Osailan et al. also suggested CODS as a reliable tool for the estimation of hyposalivation severity.³

Hence, literature has shown varying results such as weak to no correlation between mouth dryness and SFR.^{5,10-12} In Pakistan, there is lack of baseline data, and international data isn't applicable in our population due to variation in genetic and personal habits. Therefore, the aim of current study was to evaluate the mean CODS and SFR among patients exposed to active & passive smoking. The secondary aim was to determine the degree of correlation between CODS and SFR in these patients. The potential factors associated with changes in SFR and CODS were also determined in this study.

METHODOLOGY:

The clinical observational study was conducted at the department of oral pathology at Altamash Institute of Dental Medicine, Karachi from January 2019-July 2019. The sample size was estimated using WHO sample size calculator, by taking statistics for mean salivary flow rate as 1.93 ± 0.65^{13} , keeping margin of error as 8.65% and confidence level as 95%. The non-probability consecutive sampling technique was employed which gave a sample size of 217 patients in total. All the patients of 15-80 years coming for routine dental checkup of either gender were included in the study. Patients who were taking systemic medications such as betablockers or steroids, patients with severe head or neck injury, undergoing radiotherapy, wearing dentures, patients with learning disability or pregnant women were excluded from the study.

Approval from ethical review committee was obtained prior to the commencement of study. All the participants were informed about the nature of the study and written informed consent was taken. A pre-designed proforma was used to collect the demographic information, along with the data regarding smoking habit of each individual (frequency and duration). An individual who had smoked >100 cigarettes (including hand-rolled cigarettes, cigarillos, cigars) in their lifetime and had smoked at least one cigarette in the past month or 28 days were labelled as active smokers. The data regarding the consumption of betel quid (pan) and areca nut (chalia) was also obtained. An individual who had consumed betel quid or areca nut more than 100 times in their lifetime and had consumed at least five times in the past month or 28 days were labelled as consumers. A thorough oral examination was performed for all the subjects. Each subject was advised not to eat, drink, smoke or perform any oral hygiene methods for a minimum of 60 minutes before and during the collection of the saliva sample. The subject was seated upon the dental chair. A non-stimulated saliva sample was collected from the oral cavity of each subject who were asked to drool in a graduated cup every 1 minute for 5 minutes, in a ventilated and well illuminated room. The saliva collection was performed within the working hours of the OPD at Altamash Institute of Dental Medicine, Karachi. SFR was measured in ml/5min. Assessment of oral dryness/ hypo-salivation was examined through CODS (clinical oral dryness score)¹⁴. The data were analyzed using SPSS computer software version 22. Quantitative variables such as age, COD score and salivary flow rate (SFR) were reported as mean and standard deviation. Qualitative variables like gender, ethnicity, smoking status and consumption of betel quid and areca nut were reported as frequency and percentage.

Effect modifiers like age, gender, ethnicity, smoking status, consumption of betel quid and areca nut were addressed through stratification. Post-stratification independent t-test was applied. P-value of <0.05 was taken as statistically significant.

RESULTS:

In this study, a total of 217 participants attending for routine dental checkups were evaluated. The mean age of the study participants was reported as 32.86 ± 6.30 years ranging from 22- 55 years. Out of 217 participants, 145 were males (66.8%) whereas 72 were females (33.2%). More than half of the participants were Urdu speaking (58.5%) and 19.8% spoke in Sindhi. About 24.9% of the participants were active smokers and average number of cigarettes smoked by them per day was reported as 5.09 ranging from 1-11 cigarettes per day. Out of 217 participants, 16.6% were betel quid and areca nut consumers. (Table 1)

Figure 1 shows the average COD score to be 1 within the range of 0-4. Whereas, Figure 2 shows that the mean SFR was 0.42 ml/5min ranging from 0.2-1 ml/5min. The Pearson's correlation between COD score and SFR level was calculated as -0.281 (negative correlation). It was inferred from our results that CODS was a significant predictor of SFR, as the value of SFR significantly decreased with an increase in the COD score (p<0.05).

Stratification of mean COD score and SFR ml/5min was done with respect to potential effect modifiers. The age, gender, smokers, betel quid and areca nut consumers showed statistically significant difference in mean COD score and SFR level (p<0.05). (Table 2)

DISCUSSION:

In last few decades, multiple researches have reported different aspects of mouth dryness and salivary flow rate. Yet, there is a big gap in the evidence for relation between salivary flow rate and oral dryness. In the present study, the mean CODS was estimated as 1±1.12 in patients coming for routine dental check up and mild dryness (COD score 1-3) was present in majority of them. A study conducted by et al. also demonstrated similar results in healthy controls i.e. mean CODS of 1.0 ± 0.9 whereas SFR value in our study were estimated at 0.42±0.10 ml/5min.³ Hijjaw O et al. in their research found the mean stimulated whole saliva flow rate as $0.46 (\pm 0.44)$ mL/5min which is slightly higher than that seen in present study.¹⁰ In the present study, a negative weak correlation was observed between CODS and SFR (r=-0.281). Hence the results suggest that flow of saliva significantly decreased when the COD score increased (p<0.05). In line with our findings, Correia et al. found moderate negative correlation between CODS and SFR (r=-0.515, p<0.05). Patients with no oral dryness (CODs 0-1) had high rate of unsimulated SFR>0.5ml/5min whereas patients with moderate dryness had decreased rate of unsimulated SFR>0.1ml/5min (p<0.01).¹⁵ In a study by Correlation Between Clinical Oral Dryness Score and Salivary Flow Rates in Active and Passive Smokers

Table 1: Descriptive Characteristics of Study Population

Quantitative variables	Mean	SD
Age in years	32.86	6.304
Qualitative variables	n	%
Gender		
Female	72	33.2
Male	145	66.8
Ethnicity		
Sindhi	43	19.8
Balochi	20	9.2
Pathan	15	6.9
Punjabi	12	5.5
Urdu	127	58.5
Smokers		
Active	54	24.9
Passive	163	75.1
Betel quid (Pan)		
Yes	36	16.6
No	181	83.4
Areca nut (Chalia)		
Yes	36	16.6
No	181	83.4

Figure 1: Descriptive Statistics of Salivary Flow Rate



Figure 2: Descriptive Statistics of Clinical Oral Dryness Score



Farsi, it was seen that participants who complained of mouth dryness had significantly lower salivary flow rate as compared to non-complainers.⁴ Osailan et al. also found negative correlation between CODS and SFR(p<0.01) in their research.³ In the study by Jager et al., the relationship between

Table 2: Stratification of Cod Score And Salivary Flow Rate

		COD	s		SFR	
Variables	Mean	SD	P-value	Mean	SD	P-value
Age groups						
=35 years</td <td>0.87</td> <td>0.99</td> <td>0.001</td> <td>0.42</td> <td>0.10</td> <td>0.01</td>	0.87	0.99	0.001	0.42	0.10	0.01
>35 years	2.59	1.27	0.001	0.35	0.07	0.01
Gender						
Male	1.14	1.11	0.000	0.38	0.06	0.001
Female	0.72	1.07	0.009	0.46	0.14	0.001
Ethnicity						
Sindhi	1.00	1.17		0.41	0.10	
Balochi	0.80	0.76		0.44	0.14	0.631
Pathan	0.60	0.82	0.509	0.40	0.08	
Punjabi	1.17	1.03	1	0.39	0.05	
Urdu	1.07	1.18		0.41	0.10	
Smokers						
Passive	0.87	1.05	0.001	0.43	0.09	0.001
Active	1.43	1.22	0.001	0.37	0.14	
Betel Quid						
No	0.92	1.07	0.01	0.42	0.11	0.001
Yes	1.44	1.22	0.01	0.35	0.08	0.001
Areca nut						
No	0.88	1.04	0.001	0.43	0.11	0.001
Yes	1.61	1.29	0.001	0.34	0.06	0.001

CODS and SFR was evaluated and a weak negative correlation between CODS and hyposalivation group (r=-0.33, p<0.01), moderate correlation between CODS and normal & high salivation groups was observed respectively (r=-0.56, p<0.01 & r = -0.55, p<0.01).¹⁴ Hence CODS, being a sensitive tool, can be utilized in general oral examination and for distinguishing patients with normal salivation from those with hyposalivation.

In the current study, the average age of the participants was estimated as 32.86 years. Majority of our selected patients were males (66.8%) and less than and equal to thirty five years of age (92.1%). Mouth dryness significantly increased with increase in age (p<0.05) whereas SFR significantly decreased (p<0.05). Furthermore, males showed significantly high values of CODS and lower values of SFR as compared to females (p<0.05). Dissimilar findings were witnessed in the study by Farsi in which no statistically significant difference was found in dry oral cavity with respect to age and gender (p>0.05).⁴ Ship et al. and Osterberg et al. also showed no change in SFR with increase in age but Nederfors et al. found higher prevalence of oral dryness with increase in age.¹⁶⁻¹⁸ This might be due to increase in medication intake among elderly patients.

In the present study, the mean SFR of active smokers, betel quid and areca nut consumers was significantly low whereas CODS wassignificantly high as compared to passive smokers and non-consumers of betel quid and areca nut(p<0.05). In the studies by Alaee et al., Singh et al. and Rad M et al. significantly low mean SFR was reported in smokers as compared to non-smokers (p<0.05).^{13,19,20} Whereas, the studies by Khan GJ et al. and Rehan et al. found no statistically significant relationship between smokers and SFR (p>0.05).821 Furthermore Rehan et al. also concluded in their study that tobacco consumption had no effect on resting mouth SFR. Patil et al. in their study showed that consumers of cigarettes or chewable tobacco or both had significant effect on progression of oral abrasions.²² In the study by Abdul et al. significantly high ratio of SFR among areca nut consumers (35.7 mm) was reported when compared to SFR of healthy individuals at 3rd min (30.7mm), but with increasing frequency, duration and exposure of areca nut consumption the SFR significantly decreased.²³ The personal habits such as smoking, consumption of areca nut and betel quid influence the individual's oral health in the long term. Previously, it has been demonstrated that the presence of nicotine in the smoke and alkaloids in areca nut directly affect the SFR as well as oral and dental health.^{24,25} Initially with the consumption of these products the flow of saliva improves, but salivary secretion is usually decreased with long-term use. Among the limitation, it was the single centered study and there was an equal distribution of active and passive smokers, which may affect the correlation. It is recommended that COD score is a useful, simple and adequate tool for the routine investigation for evaluating patients complaining of mouth dryness.

CONCLUSION: Salivary flow rate was significantly decreased with increase in COD score thus having an implication on oral dryness feeling in these participants.

- 1. Dodds M, Roland S, Edgar M, Thornhill M. Saliva A review of its role in maintaining oral health and preventing dental disease. Bdj Team. 2015;2:15123.
- Tiwari M. Science behind human saliva. J Nat Sci Biol Med. 2011;2(1):53-8.
- Osailan SM, Pramanik R, Shirlaw P, Proctor GB, Challacombe SJ. Clinical assessment of oral dryness: development of a scoring system related to salivary flow and mucosal wetness. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol Oral Radiol. 2012;114(5):597-603.
- 4. Farsi NM. Signs of oral dryness in relation to salivary flow rate, pH, buffering capacity and dry mouth complaints. BMC Oral Health. 2007;7:15.
- Löfgren CD, Wickström C, Sonesson M, Lagunas PT, Christersson C. A systematic review of methods to diagnose oral dryness and salivary gland function. BMC Oral Health. 2012;12(1):29.
- 6. Wolff MS, Kleinberg I. The effect of ammonium glycopyrrolate (Robinul)-induced xerostomia on oral mucosal wetness and flow of gingival crevicular fluid in humans. Arch Oral Biol. 1999;44(2):97-102.
- Shimazaki Y, Fu B, Yonemoto K, Akifusa S, Shibata Y, Takeshita T, et al. Stimulated salivary flow rate and oral health status. J Oral Sci. 2017;59(1):55-62.

- Rehan F, Khan BRS, Memon MS, Naqvi S, Khan R, Sultan Z. Analysis of resting mouth salivary flow rate and salivary pH of tobacco chewers and smokers. J Pak Dent Assoc. 2016;4:159-63.
- 9. Challacombe SJ, Proctor GB. Clinical assessment. Bdj. 2014;217:486.
- Hijjaw O, Alawneh M, Ojjoh K, Abuasbeh H, Alkilany A, Qasem N, et al. Correlation between Xerostomia index, Clinical Oral Dryness Scale, and ESSPRI with different hyposalivation tests. Open Access Rheumatol. 2019;11:11-8.
- Sreebny LM, Valdini A, Yu A. Xerostomia. Part II: Relationship to nonoral symptoms, drugs, and diseases. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol. 1989;68(4):419-27.
- Ship JA, Fox PC, Baum BJ. How much saliva is enough? 'Normal' function defined. J Am Dent Assoc. 1991;122(3):63-9.
- 13. Rad M, Kakoie S, Niliye Brojeni F, Pourdamghan N. Effect of Long-term Smoking on Whole-mouth Salivary Flow Rate and Oral Health. J Dent Res Dent Clin Dent Prospects. 2010;4(4):110-4.
- 14. Jager DHJ, Bots CP, Forouzanfar T, Brand HS. Clinical oral dryness score: evaluation of a new screening method for oral dryness. Odontol. 2018;106(4):439-44.
- 15. Correia J, Martins A, Romao V, Pinto J, Gonçalves A, Simão R, et al. Association Of Clinical Oral Dryness Score With Unstimulated Salivary Flow Rate In Xerostomia Patients. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal2017.
- Ship JA, Baum BJ. Is reduced salivary flow normal in old people? Lancet. 1990;336(8729):1507.
- 17. Osterberg T, Birkhed D, Johansson C, Svanborg A. Longitudinal study of stimulated whole saliva in an elderly population. Scand J Dent Res. 1992;100(6):340-5.
- 18. Nederfors T, Isaksson R, Mornstad H, Dahlof C. Prevalence of perceived symptoms of dry mouth in an adult Swedish population--relation to age, sex and pharmacotherapy. Community Dent Oral Epidemiol. 1997;25(3):211-6.
- 19. Singh P. Collaborating centres: Rediscovering an extended arm of World Health Organization. J Indian Assoc Public Health Dent. 2015;13(1):11-3.
- 20. Alaee A,Azizi A, Valaei N, Moeini SH. The Correlation between Cigarette Smoking and Salivary Flow Rate J Res Dentomaxillofac Sci. 2017;2(3):5-9.
- 21. Khan GJ, Javed M, Ishaq M. Effect of smoking on salivary flow rate. Gomal Journal of Medical Sciences. 2010;8(2).
- 22. Patil PB, Bathi R, Chaudhari S. Prevalence of oral mucosal lesions in dental patients with tobacco smoking, chewing, and mixed habits: A cross-sectional study in South India. J Family Community Med. 2013;20(2):130-5.
- Abdul Khader NF, Dyasanoor S. Assessment of Salivary Flow Rate and pH Among Areca Nut Chewers and Oral Submucous Fibrosis Subjects: A Comparative Study. J Cancer Prev. 2015;20(3):208-15.
- 24. Petrusic N, Posavac M, Sabol I, Mravak-Stipetic M. The Effect of Tobacco Smoking on Salivation. Acta Stomatol Croat. 2015;49(4):309-15.
- 25. Venkatesh D, Puranik RS, Vanaki SS, Puranik SR. Study of salivary arecoline in areca nut chewers. J Oral Maxillofac Pathol. 2018;22(3):446.

Diabetes Self-Management Education and Practices among Type 2 Diabetic Patients

Muhammad Sajid Abbas Jaffri, Saja Riyaz, Sara Riyaz, Mah Rida

ABSTRACT

Objective: To compare the knowledge and practices of diabetes self- care management among type 2 diabetic patients in two hospitals of Karachi.

Study Design and Setting: A cross sectional study was carried out at two Tertiary Care Hospital of Karachi from March 2018 to August 2018.

Methodology: A total of 120 subjects of type 2 diabetes were included in the study. Data was collected through structured questionnaire. Knowledge regarding diabetes includes normal blood sugar level, symptoms of low and high blood sugar and management of these symptoms. Structured questionnaire was used to collect information of sociodemographic characteristics, knowledge and attitude of diabetes and self-care management practices. Data was analyzed by SPSS version 21. P value less than 0.05 considered as significant

Results: Majority of the participants were females (55%) and males were (45%). The duration of diabetes in majority of participants, (43.3%) was less than 5 years. From total 53.3% of our study participants were aware about the knowledge of diabetic complications. Approximately ,59.6% participants thought visit to eye specialist is important and about 44.16% thought that monthly visit to hospital for general health is important for diabetic patients. When asked about early signs of development of complications 48.3% participants thought that development of foot ulcers ,83% thought diabetes was strongly associated with obesity. Total, 76.6% participants thought that plan of meal is important. Total, 30.83% participants were in agreement with this thought that diabetes was strongly associated with obesity.

Conclusion: The knowledge of self-care practices in diabetic patients was average in this study.

KEY WORDS: Diabetes Complications, Diabetes mellitus, Diabetes self-management education (DSME).

Т

L

I

L

INTRODUCTION:

Diabetes mellitus (DM) is a medical condition characterized by chronic hyperglycemia resulting from defects in insulin secretion, insulin action, or both. This may lead to longterm complications microvascular or macrovascular which includes damage, dysfunction and failure of various organs, in particular the eyes, kidneys, nerves, heart and blood vessels. Type 2 diabetes occur most commonly due to inability of the body to use insulin properly, resulting in increased blood glucose levels.¹

Diabetes self-management education (DSME) is defined as "the process of facilitating the knowledge, skill, and ability necessary for diabetes self-care"1.Diabetes self-management education (DSME), the process of teaching individuals to

Muhammad Sajid Abbas Jaffri Professor and HOD, Department of Medicine Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi I Email: drsajid.jaffry@live.com Saja Riyaz L House Officer, Department of Medicine PNS SHIFA Hospital, Karachi I Sara Riyaz House Officer, Department of Medicine Hayatabad Medical Complex I Mah Rida House Officer, Department of Medicine PNS SHIFA Hospital, Karachi Received: 18-Dec-2019 Accepted: 15-Apr-2020

manage their diabetes, has been considered an important part of the clinical management of individuals with diabetes.² DSME provides informed support, self-care and selfmanagement instructions in order to improve quality of life and decreases the probability of diabetes complications.

It was estimated that in 2017 there were 451 million (age 18-99 years) people with diabetes worldwide. These figures were expected to increase to 639 million by 2045.³ In Pakistan approximately 7.89% populations is affecting with diabetes mellitus per annum. In this context, Pakistan is ranked seventh in diabetes prevalence.⁴ Diabetes prevalence has been rising more rapidly in middle and low-income countries. According to WHO, the global prevalence of diabetes is 8.5% in 2014 and the burden of diabetes has doubled from 1980 to 2014. Several studies revealed that lifestyle modification in obese patient has been effective in achieving a very good glycemic control.⁵A study in Malaysia shows that public hospitals having specialist diabetologist were more inclined towards treating the complication of diabetes while in public health clinics having general practitioners for the treatment of diabetes, only focused on controlled blood pressure and HbA1c under normal ranges.⁶ The mortality risk of Type 2 can be reduced by DSME among type 2 DM patients.⁷ In a review including 118 unique interventions reported significant changes (61.9%) in A1C. Overall mean reduction in A1C was observed from 0.74 and 0.17 in intervention and control groups; as average absolute reduction in A1C of 0.57.8

In a study of DSME programs among older adults revealed an absolute reduction in HbA(1c), lipid profile and blood pressure.⁹ The study by Sherifali D⁹ depicted that DSME programs improves the clinical outcomes by maintaining the blood pressure and lipid profile, and eventually improves the health status and quality of life of an individual.¹⁰DSME programs required proper assessment, interactive teaching methods and multidisciplinary approach.¹¹ The coordinated model of care can be helpful to meet the growing demand of proper accessibility and utility of DSME programs.¹¹ Some studies reflected that there was marked effect of DSME on diabetes distress ,despite of limited participation in DSME programs.¹²

Therefore, this study was aimed to assess the knowledge of DSME among diabetic patient. The outcome of this study would assist to evaluate the awareness of DSME among diabetic patients which has an important role to prevent the diabetes progression and to reduce the seious threat to the life of diabetic patients worldwide.

METHODOLOGY:

A cross sectional study was carried out in PNS Shifa and National Medical Centre Karachi from March 2018 to August 2018 after obtaining approval from IRB BUMDC (No: 56-2018). The sample size calculated was 120 through open epi at 95% confidence interval with a significance level of 5 % at global prevalence of 8.5%.⁰⁴ Non-probability purposive sampling was used to collect data. Verbal consent was obtained after explaining the rationale of the study. Inclusion criteria consisted of Patients with Type 2 diabetes having diabetes for more than 6 months; sociodemographic variables used were age, gender, occupation, weight and BMI. Knowledge regarding diabetes includes normal blood sugar level, symptoms of low and high blood sugar and management of these symptoms. Structured questionnaire was used to collect information of sociodemographic characteristics, knowledge and attitude of diabetes and selfcare management practices. Data was analyzed by SPSS version 21. Frequencies and percentages were used to express categorical variables. For quantitative variables mean and standard deviation was used. Chi square test was used and p value less than 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

RESULTS:

Total 120 participants fulfilled the inclusion criteria from which (55%) were females and (45%) were males. Equal number of participants were taken from PNS Shifa hospital n=60 and National medical center (NMC) n=60 .The included age stratification groups were from 37 to above 70 years. Total 14% were from age group 37-47 years (PNS Shifa=15% NMC=13.3%), age 48-57 were 49.1% (PNS Shifa=45% NMC=53.3%), 30% were from age group 58-67 (PNS Shifa=36.7%, NMC=23.3%) and 6.6% were from age above 70 years (PNS Shifa= 3.3% NMC=10%).

The duration of diabetes in majority of participants was less than 5 years as (43.3%), (25.8%) had 5-10 years of duration, (20%) had the duration of 10-15 years, (10.8%) had duration of 15-20 years. Out of these 120 participants almost half (50.8%) were diagnosed incidentally as type 2 DM whereas (39.2%) participants went to the hospital upon appearance of symptoms other (3.3%) were diagnosed with oral glucose tolerance test and (6.7%) did not exactly remember. Treatment taken by majority of participants was insulin n=26, n=72 on oral hypoglycemic, n=17 on both and n=5 took no treatment. When they were asked about insulin storage 81% from NMC and 92% from PNS Shifa hospital were aware to keep insulin in refrigerator. (Table-1).

About 53.3% participants were aware of symptoms and complications of diabetes and about 35% of participants were not aware of complications others didn't know neither thought it is important to know about complications. 59.6% participants thought visit to eye specialist is important and about 44.16% thought that monthly visit to hospital for general health is important for diabetic patients. When asked about early signs of development of complications 48.3% participants thought that development of foot ulcers and infections is the early sign and 14.16% thought recurrent urinary tract infection is the early sign and 24.16% were in agreement with both important signs of development of complications. When asked about care of feet 61.6% thought that care of feet is important and 38.3% participants were dis agree with importance of foot care. n our study about 76.6% participants thought that plan of meal is important. Total, 30.83% participants were in agreement with this thought that diabetes was strongly associated with obesity. Practice of DSME program was shown in table-2.

DISCUSSION:

Diabetes mellitus is considered as an emerging public health issue due to the global increase in the case incidence of diabetes. In our study majority of participants were female making 55% of the total participants in both health care systems. In our study, the duration of diabetes in majority of participants was less than 5 years as (43.3%), (25.8%) had 5-10 years of duration, (20%) had the duration of 10-15 years, (10.8%) had duration of 15-20 years and these results are are consistent with the results of a study conducted by Muhammad Umar Ahmad et al.¹³

An important finding in our study was that the respondents have a good knowledge about diabetes and its selfmanagement practices, which was opposite to the study done by Muhammad Umar Ahmed et al ¹³ according to which participants have poor knowledge of DSME.

In our study about 76.6% participants thought that plan of meal is important which is important to have a good glycemic control which was shown in a study conducted by Xuelian Jiang et al. in which participants were divided in control and intervention group after a period of 12 month intervention

		Place of Study		
	Responses	NMC (n=60) %	PNS SHIFA (n=60)	P-value
Normal blood sugar level	Yes	43 (71.7%)	44 (73.3%)	0.988
Hormar brood sugar level.	No	17 (28.3%)	16 (26.7%)	0.900
Do you know symptoms of low	Yes	55 (91.7%)	53 (88.3%)	0.762
sugar?	No	5 (8.3%)	7 (11.7%)	0.702
	Lethargy	34 (56.7%)	44 (73.3%)	
Symptoms of low blood sugar.	Confusion	15 (25.0%)	5 (8.3%)	0.071
Symptoms of ion crood sugar	Palpitation	6 (10.0%)	4 (6.7%)	0.071
	Sweating	5 (8.3%)	7 (11.7%)	
	Take sweets	37 (61.7%)	48 (80.0%)	
	Drink juices	12 (20.0%)	9 (15.0%)	0.001
Manage of low blood sugar.	Eats bread	8 (13.3%)	2 (3.3%)	0.081
	Eat fruits	3 (5.0%)	1 (1.7%)	
Do you know symptoms of	Yes	57 (95.0%)	55 (91.7%)	0.717
high blood sugar?	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c } & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	3 (5.0%)	5 (8.3%)	0.717
	Increased thirst	12 (20.0%)	14 (23.3%)	
Symptoms of high blood sugar	Visual blurring	14 (23.3%)	9 (15.0%)	0.402
level.	Leg pain	11 (18.3%)	8 (13.3%)	0.495
	Increased urination	23 (38.3%)	29 (48.3%)	

Table:1- Knowledge of Diabetes regarding DSME among two different Health Care Systems.

Table: 2- Practices of DSME among Diabetes patients of two different Health Care Systems

	Responses	NMC (n=60)	PNS SHIFA (n=60)	P-value
Control of sugar by only diet or along with	Yes	42 (70.0%)	43 (71.7%)	0.026
medicine	Responses ar by only diet or along with Yes No Yes No Yes No Vegetables/fruits Oils Only sea food and nut Only sea food and nut Only poultry Strong association No association No association No association No association No atlenate days sical activity Weekly cal activity Gym workout Brisk walking Cycling Swimming Swimming	18 (29.7%)	17 (26.3%)	0.930
Diam of mool	Yes	42 (70.0%)	50 (83.3%)	0.120
	No	18 (30.0%)	10 (16.7%)	0.130
	Vegetables/fruits	46 (76.7%)	48 (80.0%)	
Proportion of meal	Oils	8 (13.3%)	9 (15.0%)	0.841
Proportion of meal Association with obesity	Only sea food and nuts	1 (1.7%)	0 (0.0%)	0.041
	Only poultry	5 (8.3%)	3 (5.0%)	
	Strong association	18 (30.0%)	19 (31.7%)	
Association with obesity	Weak association	13 21.7%	16 (26.7%)	0.795
	No association	8 (13.3%)	9 (15.0%)	
	Don't know	21 (35.0%)	16 (26.7%)	
	daily	27 (45.0%)	31 (51.7%)	
Engage in physical activity	Alternate days	7 (11.7%)	11 (18.3%)	0.075
Engage in physical activity	Weekly	3 (5.0%)	7 (11.7%)	0.075
	Monthly	23 (38.3%)	11 (18.3%)	
	Gym workout	6 (10.0%)	2 (3.3%)	
Mode of physical activity	Brisk walking	53 (88.3%)	51 (85.0%)	0.044
wode of physical activity	Cycling	0 (0.0%)	5 (8.3%)	0.044
	Swimming	1 (1.7%)	2 (3.3%)	

group had good glycemic control.5

CONCLUSION:

Proper storage of insulin is very necessary for its efficacy according to a research conducted by Chakraborty P et al¹⁴ which evidenced that errors in insulin therapy can result in failure of insulin efficacy and improper storage can result in expiration of insulin before time. In our study 21.6% participants were on only insulin therapy and 14.1% were on both oral and insulin and 97.6% were having knowledge that insulin should be stored in refrigerator which shows that participants have enough knowledge that proper storage of drug is important.¹⁴

In our study, 30.83% thought diabetes was strongly associated with obesity which depicted that people are less aware of association of diabetes with obesity. These results were comparable with the study conducted in India¹⁵ which showed that occurrence of type 2 diabetes is very much common in people who are obese and is less common in those who are non-obese.

In our study, 48.3% thought that engaging in physical activities plays a significant role in a good control of diabetes which is beneficial for maintaining proper health in a diabetic person and these results are consistent with a study which showed that physical activity is critically focus for blood glucose management in individuals with diabetes and pre-diabetes. ¹⁶

It is well known that foot care is important for a diabetic patient.¹⁷ In our study, 53.3% participants agreed that foot protection can prevent from diabetic foot and non-healing infections and these results were higher than reported in a study which showed that 36.6% participants practiced self-foot care.¹⁷

The knowledge of participants about the importance of eye screening in a diabetic person was observed in our study and 59.16% participants responded positively and thought that eye checkup is very important this result was very similar to the study of Kazi Rumana Ahmed conducted in Bangladesh and showed that almost 50% of participants were aware of importance of eye screening. ¹⁸

In our study, 53.3% of participants were aware about the knowledge of diabetic complications which was good enough when compared to a study in Ghana which revealed that 60% of participants had no knowledge about complications of diabetes mellitus. ¹⁹⁻²⁰ However, the small sample size was the limitation of our study and further multi centered and case control studies are recommended. While the rising burden of diabetes, there is a dire need to address the awareness of Diabetes self-management education (DSME) in the health care systems and also focused on community level hence the major goal is to educate the population regarding the complications of diabetes to prevent the disabilities.

The knowledge of self-care practices in diabetic patients was average in this study.With the increasing burden of diabetes in Pakistan the knowledge and attitude of people is augmenting towards diabetes.

- Powers, M., Bardsley, J., Cypress, M., Duker, P., Funnell, M., Hess Fischl, A., Maryniuk, M., Siminerio, L. and Vivian, E. (2015). Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support in Type 2 Diabetes: A Joint Position Statement of the American Diabetes Association, the American Association of Diabetes Educators, and the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics. Journal of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics, 115(8), pp.1323-1334.
- 2. Task Force to Revise the National Standards: National standards for diabetes self-management education programs. Diabetes Educ 21:189–193
- Cho, N., Shaw, J., Karuranga, S., Huang, Y., da Rocha Fernandes, J., Ohlrogge, A. and Malanda, B. (2018). IDF Diabetes Atlas: Global estimates of diabetes prevalence for 2017 and projections for 2045. Diabetes Research and Clinical Practice, 138, pp.271-281.
- 4. Ali I, Hussain A. Diabetes mellitus in Pakistan: A major public health concern. Archives of Pharmacy Practice. 2016;7(1):30.
- Jiang X, Fan X, Wu R, Geng F, Hu C. The effect of care intervention for obese patients with type II diabetes. Medicine. 2017;96(42):e7524
- Chew B,Shariff-GhazaliS,LeeP,CheongA,MasturaI,HaniffJ,et al .Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus Patient Profiles,Diseses Control and Complications at Four Public Health Facilities-A Crosssectional Study based on the Adult Diabetes Control and Management (ADCM) Registry 2009.Medical Journal of Malaysia.2013;68(5):397-404.
- 7. He X,LiJ,WangB,YaoQ,LiL,Song R et al.Diabetes selfmanagement education reduces risk of all-cause mortality in type 2 diabetes patients:a systematic review and meta analysis.Endocrine.2016;55(3):712-731.
- 8. Chrvala C, Sherr D, Lipman R. Diabetes self-management education for adults with type 2 diabetes mellitus: A systematic review of the effect on glycemic control. Patient Education and Counseling. 2016;99(6):926-943.
- 9. Sherifali D, Bai J, Kenny M, Warren R, Ali M. Diabetes selfmanagement programmes in older adults: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Diabetic Medicine. 2015;32(11):1404-1414
- Haas, M.Maryniuk, J.Beck, C.E.Cox, P.Duker, L.Edwards, Fisher, L.Hanson, D.Kent, L.Kolb, S.Mclaughlin, E.Orzeck, J. D.Piette, A.S.Rhinehart, R.Rothman, S.Sklaroff, D.Tomky, G. Youssef, National standards for self-management education and support. Diabetyes. Care. 37 (Suppl 1), S144-S153 (2014)
- Mardanian Dehkordi L, Abdoli S. Diabetes Self-Management Education; Experience of People with Diabetes. Journal of Caring Sciences. 2017;6(2):111-118.
- Santorelli M, Ekanayake R, Wilkerson-Leconte L. Participation in a Diabetes Self-Management Class Among Adults With Diabetes, New Jersey 2013–2015. Preventing Chronic Disease. 2017;14

- Ahmed M, Seriwala H, Danish S, Khan A, Hussain M, Husain M et al. Knowledge, Attitude, and Self Care Practices Amongsts Patients WithType 2 Diabetes in Pakistan. Global Journal of Health Science. 2015;8(7):1
- Chakraborty P, Chowdhury S. Errors of insulin therapy: Reallife experiences from developing world. Journal of Family Medicine and Primary Care. 2017;6(4):724.
- 15. Babu G, Murthy G, Ana Y, Patel P, R D, Neelon S et al. Association of obesity with hypertension and type 2 diabetes mellitus in India: A meta-analysis of observational studies. World Journal of Diabetes. 2018;9(1):40-52.
- Colberg S, Sigal R, Yardley J, Riddell M, Dunstan D, Dempsey P et al. Physical Activity/Exercise and Diabetes: A Position Statement of the American Diabetes Association. Diabetes Care. 2016;39(11):2065-2079.
- 17. Mariam T, Alemayehu A, Tesfaye E, Mequannt W, Temesgen K, Yetwale F et al. Prevalence of Diabetic Foot Ulcer and Associated Factors among Adult Diabetic Patients Who Attend the Diabetic Follow-Up Clinic at the University of Gondar Referral Hospital, North West Ethiopia, 2016: Institutional-Based Cross-Sectional Study. Journal of Diabetes Research. 2017;2017:1-8.

- Ahmed K, Jebunessa F, Hossain S, Chowdhury H. Ocular knowledge and practice among type 2 diabetic patients in a tertiary care hospital in Bangladesh. BMC Ophthalmology. 2017;17(1)
- Obirikorang Y, Obirikorang C, Anto E, Acheampong E, Batu E, Stella A et al. Knowledge of complications of diabetes mellitus among patients visiting the diabetes clinic at Sampa Government Hospital, Ghana: a descriptive study. BMC Public Health. 2016;16(1)
- Saleh F, Mumu S, AraF, Begum H, Ali L. Knowledge and self-care practices regarding diabetes among newly diagnosed type 2 diabetes I Bangladesh: a cross section study.BMC Public Health.2012;12(1).



Dyslipidemia in Newly Diagnosed Diabetic Patients With or Without Micro Albuminuria

Naimatullah Khan, Javed Iqbal Khan, Tariq Mehmood, Aqeel Peter

ABSTRACT

Objective: To assess the dyslipidemia in newly diagnosed diabetic patients and compare it with or without micro albuminuria.

Study Design and Setting: Cross-sectional study at Department of Medicine, Military Hospital Rawalpindi from 01 March 2015 to 31 August 2015.

Methodology: A total of 150 patients who fulfilled the inclusion criteria were included after taking informed consent and approval from hospital ethical committee. Blood sample was obtained from each patient and samples were sent to hospital laboratory and reports were assessed by pathologist. Presence or absence of microalbuminuria, trigiyceridemia (200-499 mg/dl), raised LDL-C (>160 mg/dl) and decreased HDL-C (<40 mg/dl) were noted by researcher himself on a pre-designed performa. The collected data was analyzed statistically by using SPSS version 12.Quantitative variables like age, TG, LDL HDL levels were presented in form of mean ± S.D. Qualitative variables like gender, diabetes mellitus, micro albuminuria and dyslipidemia were presented as frequencies and percentages. Chi-square test was applied to find association between dyslipidemia and micro albuminuria. P value = 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

Results: Mean \pm SD of age was 47.97 \pm 7.08 years. Out of 150 patients 60% were male and 40% were female. Dyslipidemia was found in 42% patients. Highly significant association was found between dyslipidemia and micro albuminuria, i.e. (P=0.0001).

Conclusion: The frequency of dyslipidemia among newly diagnosed diabetic patients with micro albuminuria was significantly higher than in subjects without micro albuminuria.

L

L

L

L

I

L

L

L

L

L

L

Keywords: Dyslipidemia, Micro albuminuria, Newly diagnosed diabetic patients.

INTRODUCTION:

Over the last two decades Diabetes Mellitus (DM) has emerged as one of the challenging epidemics worldwide.¹ Initially DM was considered to be prevalent among developing countries, disease of privileged and senior citizens. It has now become common in developing nation irrespective of age, culture and socioeconomic status. South Asia owing to its demography, lifestyle and dietary habits of its population is emerging as epicenter of this global epidemic.¹ DM is affecting more than 150 million people worldwide. It is estimated that the number of people with DM is expected to rise to 552 million by 2030, with a 69% increase from 2010 to 2030 for developing countries, compared to 20%

Naimatullah Khan Medical Specialist, Department of Medicine PNS Shifa Karachi I Email: drnaimat2266@gmail.com Javed Iqbal Khan Trainee Department of Medicine Nishter Hospital Multan **Tariq Mehmood** Department of Medicine PNS Shifa Karachi **Ageel Peter** Department of Medicine PNS Shifa Karachi Received: 26-Apr-2019 Accepted: 04-Mar-2020 I

for developed countries.^{2, 3} In Pakistan DM is rising at startling rate. According to World Health Organization report, about 12.9 million individuals are suffering from DM and this count accounts for about 10% of total population. According to a survey Pakistan stood among top ten countries in the world with most cases of type 2 Diabetes Mellitus (T2DM).⁵

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

DM is known from ancient times. However, Aulus Cornelius Celsus (30 BC-50 AD) was the first one to describe the symptoms of this disease .⁶ Over time the disease has been extensively studied with regards to its genetics, pathophysiology and treatment options. Today it is considered a complex heterogeneous entity requiring multidisciplinary approach. It progresses slowly over time leading to secondary complications or some time may present suddenly as coma. It is a multifactorial disease usually resulting from interplay between genetic and environmental factors. Genome-Wide Association Studies has shown that individuals with certain genetic variations are more likely to develop this disease⁷. Main pathophysiology leading to this metabolic syndrome is hyperglycemia resulting from either decreased insulin secretion or impaired insulin action on target tissues. This hyperglycemia along with poor circulation in Diabetes Mellitus can harm various organs including kidneys and heart.⁸ Presence of high levels of protein (albumin) in the urine is an early sign of kidney damage. Micro albuminuria is defined as albumin excretion rate of 30-300 mg/day. Frequency of micro albuminuria in newly diagnosed diabetics

was 50%.9 Dyslipidemia is characterized by the elevation of plasma total cholesterol (TC), triglycerides (TG), reduced high- density lipoprotein cholesterol (HDL-C), and increased low-density lipoprotein cholesterol (LDL-C). It contributes significantly to the excess risk of cardiovascular disease.¹⁰ The prevalence of hypercholesterolemia, hypertriglyceridemia, low HDL cholesterol and high LDL cholesterol in subjects with newly diagnosed Diabetes Mellitus are 67.7%,54.9%, 36.8% and 91.7% respectively.11 Results of some studies show association between micro albuminuria and dyslipidemia. In one study, in diabetic patients with and without albuminuria, hypertriglyceridemia was 93.7 vs. 67.3%, decreased HDL-C was 91.3% vs. 81.4% and raised LDL-C was 93.2% vs. 69.5%. However there is a contradiction, as albuminuria was found to be associated with low HDL-C not with TC, TG, and LDL-C. But some researchers have found significant differences in TC, TG and HDL-C between those with or without albuminuria respectively¹². Despite all this there is increasing evidence of relationship between dyslipidemias and albuminuria. Several mechanism have been hypothesized to explain this association. According to one TG rich lipoprotein activates transforming growth factor â pathway (TGF- â) which promotes production of reactive oxygen species (ROS). ROS can cause glomerular damage ¹³.

Although the relationship between dyslipidemias, renal disease and DM has been investigated extensively. There is still a need to study these associations in our population which will not only improve our health care delivery system and protocols but also improve patients holistic health. Keeping this in mind we conducted this study at our clinical setup so as to improve our clinical practice and bring it up to international benchmarks. Therefore the aim of this study was to determine the frequency of dyslipidemia in newly diagnosed diabetic patients and compare it with or without micro albuminuria.

As diabetic patients with micro albuminuria are at more risk of developing cardiac and renal problems but often remain undiagnosed for presence of dyslipidemia. This study would be helpful to manage the cases accordingly and to prevent mortalities and morbidities.

METHODOLOGY:

After taking approval from Hospital ethical committee, I50 patients (sample size was calculated using WHO sample size calculator) who fulfilled the inclusion criteria, i.e. patients having age range 20-70 years of either gender and patients with newly diagnosed type 2 diabetes mellitus (diagnosed within 1 year), were enrolled in the study from OPD. Patients with history of smoking, pregnancy, long standing diabetes, elevated creatinine, overt proteinuria, patients on lipid lowering drugs, ACE inhibitors or angiotensin receptor blockers, hypertensive patients, patients with non-diabetic renal disease and heart failure, were

excluded from the study. The purpose of the study was explained to each patient and informed consent was obtained. All basic demographic information of each patient (name, gender, address and contact number) was noted. Blood samples were obtained from each patient and samples were sent to hospital laboratory and reports were assessed by pathologist. Presence or absence of microalbummuria, triglyceridemia (200-499 mg/dl), raised LDL-C(>160 mg/dl) and decreased HDL-C (<40 mg/dl) were noted. Deranged lipid profile was assessed by spectrophotometric absorption.

The collected data was analyzed statistically by using SPSS version 12.Quantitative variables like age, TG, LDL HDL levels were presented in form of mean \pm S.D. Qualitative variables like gender, diabetes mellitus, micro albuminuria and dyslipidemia were presented as frequency and percentage. Chi-square test was applied to find association between dyslipidemia and micro albuminuria. Effect modifiers were controlled through stratification of age, gender, duration and type of diabetes mellitus to see the effect of these on outcome variables. Post stratification, Chi-square was applied considering P= 0.05 as significant.

RESULTS:

In this study 150 newly diagnosed type 2 diabetic patients were included to assess the dyslipidemia with and without micro albuminuria and results were analyzed as follows:

Mean \pm SD of age was 47.97 \pm 7.08 years. Mean \pm SD of LDL, TG and HDL were 113.67 \pm 19.50, 160.68 \pm 19.30 and 41.32 \pm 7.77 mg/dl respectively. Out of 150 patients 90 (60%) were male and 60 (40%) were female. Dyslipidemia was found in 63(42%) patients. Micro albuminuria was found in 18(12%) patients. In comparison of dyslipidemia with and without micro albuminuria, 12% patients had dyslipedimia with micro albuminuria and highly significant association was found (P=0.0001).

Stratification of dyslipidemia with respect to age, gender, type and duration of diabetes mellitus, LDL, HDL and TG was done, as shown in Table 1 while comparison of dyslipidemias with microalbuminuria is shown in Table 2.

DISCUSSION:

The prevalence of Type II DM is on the increase according to age in spite of awareness programs that have been done in high risk population about DM. The proportion of Type II DM is higher than that of Type I DM and the difference is almost doubled¹⁴. The clinical characteristics which consist of BMI, waist circumference, total cholesterol level, triglyceride level, HDL cholesterol level and LDL cholesterol level among subjects with newly diagnosed DM are similar to those of subjects with diagnosed DM¹⁵. The most common pattern of dyslipidemia in DM are hypertriglyceridemia and low HDL cholesterol level¹⁶. In this study the proportion of dyslipidemia is significantly higher in patients with micro albuminuria.

Clinicopathological	Cases	Percentage	Dyslip	idemia	P
variable	(n=150)	(%)	Yes	No	Value
Age Groups (years) 27-47 >47	68 82	45 55	11 52	57 30	0.0001
Gender Male Female	90 60	60 40	38 25	52 35	0.0001
Type of DM Type II	150	100	63	87	NA
Duration (months) 0-6 7-12	68 82	45 55	30 33	38 49	0.632
LDL (mg/dl) 89-113 >113	87 63	58 42	01 62	86 1	0.0001
HDL (mg/dl) 25-41 >41	77 73	51 49	61 02	16 71	0.0001
TG (mg/dl) 134-160 >160	93 57	62 38	06 57	87 00	0.0001

Table 1. Stratification of Dyslipidemia according toAge groups, Gender, Type and Duration of DM,LDL, HDL and TG

radie 2. Companyon of Dyshblaching while where a noundum
--

DVSI IDIDEMIA	MICRO ALBUMINURIA		D VALUE
DISLIIIDENIIA	POSITIVE	NEGATIVE	I-VALUE
YES	15	48	0.0001
NO	3	84	0.0001

The mean LDL, HDL and TG levels among subjects with newly diagnosed DM with micro albuminuria is significantly different from that in those individuals who do not have micro albuminuria. Unfortunately, this study did not perform qualitative changes in LDL cholesterol, which in particular, theoretically the subjects with DM tend to have higher proportion of small dense LDL particles¹⁷. The mean \pm SD of LDL, TG and HDL was 113.67±19.50, 160.68±19.30 and 41.32±7.77 respectively. As compared with the study of Goff DC et al¹⁸ who reported mean ± SD of LDL,TG and HDL as 125.84±13.56, 165.28±17.48 and 44.69±9.34 respectively, which is comparable with our study. In this study, the proportion of dyslipidemia is higher in male population. In our population the largest proportion is in the range of 30-40 and 40-50 years old and more than half of them have central obesity. The prevalence of hypertension, obesity and central obesity are significantly higher among subjects with dyslipidemia and Type II DM than those with only dyslipidemia. The occurrence of both dyslipidemia and newly diagnosed DM will increase CVD risk components several folds and most of those subjects do not realize the risks^{19,20}. In our study, majority of patients had age group > 47 years (55%) followed by age group 27-47 years (45%). This finding supported by the study conducted by Haffner SM²¹ and Bays HE et al²², which shows that the commonest age of newly diagnosed diabetes between 35 to 70 years with mean age of 50 years. From this data, it can be concluded that aggressive screening and education among high risk population and in general as well are still needed. Since the newly diagnosed DM occurs two fold in the fourth and fifth decade, it is better to start screening population in the third decade and maybe in the second decade among high risk population²³. Unfortunately, this study did not collect history of the family, so the importance of genetic factor cannot be concluded. Among subjects without normal micro albuminuria, there is significant relationship between central obesity and all types of dyslipidemia. But, among subjects with newly diagnosed diabetes mellitus, the relationship between central obesity and dyslipidemia are not significant anymore. Thus, it may show that prevention should be started before glucose intolerance emerges. The occurrence of dyslipidemia among subjects with glucose intolerance will double the risk of CVD²⁴. Screening among high risk population is the best way to detect metabolic changes prior to the occurrence of metabolic diseases. Besides that, earlier life style modification among general population may postpone or prevent CVD especially in high risk population²⁵. Strength of the study was use of consecutive sampling best suited for our study design and sample selection, as our inclusion and exclusion criteria were stringent. The use of objective definitions for predictor and outcome variable also minimizes the source of bias in our study. The main limitations of our study were use of a weak study design that is cross-sectional analysis. Also limited outcomes selected in our study affects the worth of our study. There were many variables and factors that have association with our predictor and outcome variables that could have been included in our study. The use of non-probability sampling also limits generalizability; however we had a small number of patients and no follow up. This study was hospital-based study; hence the figure does not reflect true frequency and severity of the disease. Moreover, the study was conducted in one unit in single hospital which further confined its generalization. It is important for healthcare providers and policy makers to plan preventive strategies for micro albuminuria spread as well as diabetes prevention programs among high risk population. Effective preventive measures are the need of the hour and Pakistan may be considered as one of the areas of highest diabetes prevalence around the globe.

CONCLUSION:

The characteristics of newly diagnosed diabetes mellitus were similar to diagnosed diabetes mellitus. The frequency of dyslipidemia among newly diagnosed diabetic patients with micro albuminuria was significantly higher than that in subjects without micro albuminuria.

- 1. Herath H, Weerasinghe N, Dias H, Weerarathna T. Knowledge, attitude and practice related to diabetes mellitus among the general public in Galle district in Southern Sri Lanka: a pilot study. BMC Public Health. 2017;17(1).
- Sami W, Ansari T, Butt NS, Ab Hamid MR. Effect of diet on type 2 diabetes mellitus: A review. International journal of health sciences. 2017;11(2):65.
- 3. Previti E, Salinari S, Bertuzzi A, Capristo E, Bornstein S, Mingrone G. Glycemic control after metabolic surgery: a Granger causality and graph analysis. American Journal of Physiology - Endocrinology And Metabolism. 2017;:ajpendo. 00042.2017.
- 4. World Health Organization. Global report on diabetes [Internet]. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016. Available from: http://www.who.int/diabetes/global-report/en/
- Akhtar S, Khan Z, Rafiq M, Khan A. Prevalence of Type II diabetes in District Dir Lower in Pakistan. Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences. 2016;32(3).
- 6. Abdel-Gayoum AG. The effect of glycemic control in type 2 diabetic patients with diabetes-related dyslipidemia. Saudi Med J. 2004;25:207-11.
- 7. Prasad R, Groop L. Genetics of Type 2 Diabetes—Pitfalls and Possibilities. Genes. 2015;6(4):87-123.
- Cantley J, Ashcroft F. Q&A: insulin secretion and type 2 diabetes: why do â-cells fail?. BMC Biology. 2015;13(1).
- Afsar B, Elsurer R. The independent relationship between creatinine clearance, micro albuminuria and circadian blood pressure levels in newly diagnosed essential hypertensive and type 2 diabetic patients. J Diabetes Complications. 2012;26:531-5.
- 10. Adar T, Lysy J. Pseudodyslipidemia: are we over-treating dyslipidemia in diabetic patients with undiagnosed gastroparesis? Endocrine. 2014;45:26-7.
- 11. Agaba EI, Agaba PA, Puepet FH. Prevalence of micro albuminuria in newly diagnosed type 2 diabetic patients in Jos Nigeria. Afr J Med Med Sci. 2004;33:19-22.
- 12. Chen SC, Tseng CH. Dyslipidemia, kidney disease, and cardiovascular disease in diabetic patients. Rev Diabet Stud. 2013;10:88-100.
- 13. Chen SC, Tseng CH. Dyslipidemia, kidney disease, and cardiovascular disease in diabetic patients. The review of diabetic studies: RDS. 2013;10(2-3):88.
- Harris MI, Eastman RC. Early detection of undiagnosed diabetes mellitus: a US perspective. Diabetes/metabolism research and reviews. 2000;16:230-6.

- 15. Huang JW, Lien YC, Yang CY, Liu KL, Wu CF, Yen CJ, et al. Osteoprotegerin, inflammation and dyslipidemia are associated with abdominal aortic calcification in non-diabetic patients on peritoneal dialysis. NutrMetabCardiovasc Dis. 2014;24:236-42.
- Jisieike-Onuigbo NN, Unuigbe EI, Kalu OA, Oguejiofor CO, Onuigbo PC. Prevalence of dyslipidemia among adult diabetic patients with overt diabetic nephropathy in Anambra state south-east Nigeria. Niger J ClinPract. 2011;14:171-5.
- 17. PascualFuster V, Ruiz Olivar E, Pinto Sala X. [Patient's care and management of dyslipidemia in type 2 diabetic patients in the clinical practice in Spain: The LIPEDIA study]. ClinInvestigArterioscler. 2015;27:45-56.
- Goff DC, Bertoni AG, Kramer H, Bonds D, Blumenthal RS, Tsai MY, et al. Dyslipidemia prevalence, treatment, and control in the multi-ethnic study of atherosclerosis (MESA) gender, ethnicity, and coronary artery calcium. Circulation. 2006;113:647-56.
- 19. Xu Y, Bao Q, He B, Pan Y, Zhang R, Mao X, et al. Association of angiotensin I converting enzyme, angiotensin II type 1 receptor and angiotensin I converting enzyme 2 gene polymorphisms with the dyslipidemia in type 2 diabetic patients of Chinese Han origin. J Endocrinol Invest. 2012;35:378-83.
- Yadav D, Mishra M, Tiwari A, Bisen PS, Goswamy HM, Prasad GB. Prevalence of dyslipidemia and hypertension in Indian type 2 diabetic patients with metabolic syndrome and its clinical significance. Osong Public Health Res Perspect. 2014;5:169-75.
- 21. Haffner SM. American diabetes association. Dyslipidemia management in adults with diabetes. 2004.
- 22. Bays HE, Chapman R, Grandy S. The relationship of body mass index to diabetes mellitus, hypertension and dyslipidaemia: comparison of data from two national surveys. International journal of clinical practice. 2007;61:737-47.
- 23. Zimmet PZ, Alberti G. The Metabolic Syndrome: Perhaps an Etiologic Mystery but Far From a Myth—Where Does the International Diabetes Federation Stand? Medscape Diabetes & Endocrinology. 2005;8.
- 24. Ormazabal V, Nair S, Elfeky O, Aguayo C, Salomon C, Zuñiga FA. Association between insulin resistance and the development of cardiovascular disease. Cardiovascular diabetology. 2018;17(1):122.
- 25. Nielsen JB, Leppin A, e Gyrd-Hansen D, Jarbøl DE, Søndergaard J, Larsen PV. Barriers to lifestyle changes for prevention of cardiovascular disease–a survey among 40–60year old Danes. BMC cardiovascular disorders. 2017;17(1):245.



Frequency and Location of Supernumerary Teeth in a Private Hospital of **Karachi** City

Syed Ahmed Omer, Seema Nisar, Perveen Memon, Hamidullah Arif, Raza Ali, Samra Faheem

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To investigate frequency of supernumerary tooth in relation to gender, age and location.

Study Design and Setting: Cross-sectional Study was conducted at Mamji Hospital, Karachi from June 2017 to June 2019. Methodology: A total of 2160 patients seen and out of which 45 clinically diagnosed patients of supernumerary teeth were participated in this study. Supernumerary teeth were classified on the basis of location. Descriptive statistics were checked by means of percentages and frequency of all variables. Chi-Square test was applied, P-value < 0.05 was considered significant.

Results: The total patients were 45 which comprised of 26 male and 19 females with ages ranging from 15 to 60 years. The prevalence of ST was 1.59%, the higher predilection of supernumerary teeth was seen in males than females. The male to female's ratio was 1.36:1. On the basis of location ST were further classified on Mesiodens, Paramolars and Distomolars category. Of the 45 supernumerary teeth, 36 were had Mesiodens (m= 62.1%, f=37.8%), 5 were Paramolars (m=60%, f=40%) and 3 were Distomolars (m=0, f=100\%).

Conclusion: The present study findings showed high prevalence of ST was dominant in males. Present study emphasizes the timely diagnosis and appropriate management of supernumerary teeth to avoid unwanted complications. Key Words: anomaly, prevalence, Supernumerary tooth, teeth,

L

I

L

L

L

I

I

I

L

L

I

INTRODUCTION:

Supernumerary teeth (ST) are developmental anomaly of number of teeth characterized by presence of extra tooth/teeth in the dental arch.1 It is also known as hyperdontia.² ST may develop in any tooth bearing areas of the jaw in oral cavity. Clinically, ST may appear as a single tooth or multiple teeth in the oral cavity. It may also present unilaterally or bilaterally, erupted or impacted and in mandibular or maxillary arch.³ The prevalence of supernumerary teeth varies may range from 0.1% to 3.8% in the jaw, and it is most commonly reported in permanent dentition. The higher prevalence of ST were reported in Mongoloid groups than

Syed Ahmed Omer

Assistant Professor & HOD Department Science of Dental Material, Bahria University Medical and Dental College,

Karachi

Seema Nisar

L

I

н

I

T

L

I

I

L

I

I

I

L

Associate Professor, Department of Oral Biology Liaquat University of Medical Health Sciences, Karachi

Perveen Memon

Associate Professor, Department of Oral Biology Liaquat University of Medical Health Sciences, Karachi

Hamidullah Arif

Senior Lecturer, Department of Community Health Sciences Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi

Raza Ali

Senior Registrar, Department of Oral Medicine Baqai Medical and Dental College, Karachi

Samra Faheem

Lecturer, Department of Oral Pathology Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: samrafaheem@hotmail.com

Received: 27-Jan-2020 Accepted: 16-Apr-2020 in other racial groups. ^{3,4} The incidence of ST has greatly seen in the maxilla, about 93.3% were located in anterior maxilla while 2.2% present in anterior region of mandible and posterior mandible accounted for 4.4% of supernumerary teeth.² The ST was more commonly seen in males as compared to females^{5,6} The ST are classified on the basis of location (Mesiodens, Paramolars, Distomolars) and morphology (conical, tuberculate, supplemental) The conical type of supernumerary teeth is most common.^{7,8}

The etiology of ST exactly unknown, but several theories such as phylogenetic, dichotomy theory and occurrence of hyperactive dental lamina plays an important role in the etiology of Supernumerary teeth.9 One theory suggests that the supernumerary tooth is created as a result of a dichotomy of the tooth bud. Another theory, well supported in the literature, is the hyperactivity theory, which suggests that supernumeraries are formed as a result of local, independent, conditioned hyperactivity of the dental lamina. Heredity may also play a role in the occurrence of this anomaly, the ST are more common in the relatives of affected children than in the general population.⁶

They are usually discovered incidentally by the dentist on routine radiographic examination and this may sometimes causes displacement of adjacent tooth, interference with orthodontic appliance and aesthetic issues for patients.¹⁰The presence of a supernumerary tooth is the most common cause for the failure of eruption of a maxillary central incisor. It may also cause retention of the primary incisor teeth. The problem is usually reported with the eruption of the maxillary lateral incisors together with the failure of eruption of one or both central incisors. Supernumerary teeth in other locations may also cause failure of eruption of adjacent teeth.⁶ The supernumerary teeth can be transmitted as an autosomal dominant or autosomal recessive trait with incomplete penetrance, or may be associated with the X chromosome. Although there are some reports of multiple or bilaterally ST without any systemic conditions or associated syndromes, in most cases, ST are associated with other conditions or defects such as cleft lip/palate, cleidocranial dysostosis (CCD) and Gardner's syndrome, gardener syndrome,¹¹ Ehlers-Danlos syndrome, Crouzon syndrome. Less common syndromes that related with ST are; Fabry disease, Ellis-van Creveld (EvC) syndrome, Trico – Rhino – Phalangeal syndrome.^{13,14}

The supernumerary teeth are usually asymptomatic, and may diagnose during oral clinical examination. History and detailed examination and radiographic evaluation are mandatory.³ The present study data was gathered in a District Central Hospital to investigate the frequency of Supernumerary teeth according to site and morphology. This study also elucidates supernumerary teeth correlation with gender.

METHODOLOGY:

This cross-sectional study was carried out at Mamji hospital Karachi from June 2017 to June 2019, the ethical approval was obtained from Hospital ethical committee. A non-probability convenient sampling technique was used. The sample size was calculated by using software OpenEpi.com by using prevalence of supernumerary teeth 3.8% and 95% Confidence interval. The required sample size was found to be 45.

Out of 2160 patients seen in dental OPD over a period of 3 years. A total of 45 patients diagnosed with supernumerary tooth participated in the study. Informed consent was taken prior to examination of each patient. The study included both male and female patients of any age group. The ST was classified on the basis of location and morphology. The location was mesiodens, Paramolars and distomolars. Morphologically, ST was further divided into Conical, Tuberculate, Supplemental and Odontomes. The diagnosis of ST was made on clinical and radiological grounds. The patients suffering from any type of syndrome or craniofacial anomalies⁵ was also investigated. The exclusion criteria include patient refused to give consent, history of early age extractions and accidents.

The data was recorded on a proforma and analyzed by Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS) version 23. Frequency and percentages presented for categorical variables. To know the significance between gender and location of ST analysis was made using Chi-square test. P-value < 0.05 was considered significant.

RESULTS:

Out of 2160 patient sample size collected over an estimated period of three years, 45 patients were clinically diagnosed with supernumerary teeth in this study. Out of which 26 were male (57.8%) and 19 were females (42.4%) having a 1.36:1 male to female ratio. The mean age, median and standard deviation was found to be 30.67, $30.00, \pm 9.686$ respectively. The overall prevalence of supernumerary reported in the present study was 1.59%. Table 1 shows the highest number of ST was present in 32 years of age 4 (8.89%).

On the basis of morphological characteristics, the correlation of supernumerary teeth with gender was also investigated which revealed that all the ST were detected in maxilla. In maxilla, the most common ST present in males were mesiodens 23(62.1%) followed by Paramolars 3(60%) and Distomolars 0(%). In females, highest number of ST were mesiodens 14(37.8%) followed by Paramolars 2 (40%) and Distomolar 3 (100%). This showed insignificant findings with a p-value of 0.76. Table 2

In the current study, we also tried to find an association of supernumerary teeth with syndrome or other craniofacial anomalies. However, no syndrome or other anomalies were detected in ST patients.

DISCUSSION:

Supernumerary teeth are the notable dental anomaly of shape of teeth mostly seen in maxillary quadrant, however, it may also present in mandibular region. These may reveal in routine oral and radiographic examinations teeth.¹⁴ Researches has shown that ST has been reported in both the primary and permanent dentition. Increased incidence of this anomaly has been reported permanent teeth.¹⁵ The prevalence of supernumerary teeth was found to be 1.59% in permanent dentition in present study, while in Japanese reported 0.04%.¹⁶ Study conducted by Shilpa in South Indian Children showed the overall prevalence rate of ST was 0.21% in primary dentition.¹⁷

The etiology of supernumerary teeth remains unclear. However, various theories have been suggested regarding the presence of supernumerary teeth. The widely accepted theory for splitting of the dental follicle (Dichotomy theory), some factors such as trauma or evolutionary mutations, can cause accidental follicle division into two or more fragments.¹⁸ The hyperactivity of the dental lamina and the combination of genetic and environmental factors may be considered as the most acceptable etiologic factors in the development of mesiodens.^{19,20,21.} Familial occurrence of mesiodens (ST developing between two central incisors) is reported to involve more than one sibling, or one generation.^{22,23}

Supernumerary teeth have been classified primarily on the basis of location and morphology as shown in Table 3. Studies have shown that ST has been reported in patients



Table No 2: Distribution of Supernumerary teeth according to gender and location

Supernumerary Teeth Present Based on Location	Gender	P-Value	
	Male	Female	
Mesiodens	23(62.1%)	14(37.8%)	
Paramolars	3(60%)	2(40%)	.076
Distomolars	0(0%)	3(100%)	
Total	26	19	

*Chi-square test was applied to see the significance level. *P-value < 0.05 considered to be statistically significant.

Table No 3: Classification of Supernumerary Teeth

Based on location	Based on Morphology
Mesiodens	Conical
Paramolars	Tuberculate
Distomolar	Supplemental
	Odontome

having syndromes and other craniofacial anomalies such as cleft lip and palate, Gardner's syndrome, Down syndrome and cleidocranial dysostosis.²⁴ The ST has shown a strong association with Ehlers-Danlos syndrome, Fabry Anderson's syndrome, chondroectodermal dysplasia, incontinentia pigmenti and tricho rhino-phalangeal syndrome.^{17,18}. Evidences also revealed that ST is also seen in non syndromic patients^{7,12}. In present study we also investigated the association of ST with syndromes. The current study findings did not observe any case of ST in syndromic patient. However, all were detected in non-syndromic patients. Clinically, ST can appear in any region of the jaws. The most commonly involve site is the premaxilla.^{21,22,23} Based on location the mesiodens is the supernumerary tooth present between two maxillary central incisors. In present study, the mesiodens was higher in proportion followed by Paramolars and distomolars. Higher predilection was seen in males as compared to females. Leco and colleagues discovered that the mesiodens was the most frequent supernumerary teeth found in the maxilla.²⁴ The Ferres-Padro conducted study on patient age ranging from between 5 to 19 years of age showed mesiodens were the most frequently found supernumerary teeth (53.16%). Similar results were also observed in Sharma and Singh study and found that 81.2% of the ST were located in the central incisor region (mesiodens 30.0%)^{21,25}.

The supernumerary teeth are usually asymptomatic and it may detect as an incidental finding during clinical and radiographic examination. For the proper diagnosis of ST the detailed history, clinical examination, radiographic investigation is mandatory for definitive diagnosis^{26,27,28}. Evidences have shown that unerupted supernumerary tooth may be found by chance during radiographic examination. It is recommended that anterior occlusal or periapical radiograph, paralleling technique and orthopantomogram are the most useful investigations to visualize supernumerary teeth. Recently, computed tomography has also been used to detect the presence of supernumerary teeth.^{29,30}

CONCLUSION:

The present study findings showed high prevalence of ST was dominant in males. Present study emphasizes the timely

diagnosis and appropriate management of supernumerary teeth to avoid unwanted complications.

- 1. Alberti G, Mondani PM, Parodi V. Eruption of supernumerary permanent teeth in a sample of urban primary school population in Genoa, Italy. Eur J Paediatr Dent 2006;7:89-92.
- Syriac G, Joseph E, Rupesh S, Philip J, Cherian SA, Mathew J. Prevalence, Characteristics, and Complications of Supernumerary Teeth in Nonsyndromic Pediatric Population of South India: A Clinical and Radiographic Study. J Pharm Bioallied Sci. 2017;9(Suppl 1):S231–S236.
- 3. Parolia A, Kundabala M, Dahal M, Mohan M, Thomas MS. Management of supernumerary teeth. J Conserv Dent. 2011;14(3):221–224.
- 4. Yusof WZ. Non-syndromal multiple supernumerary teeth: Literature review. J Can Dent Assoc. 1990;56:147–9.
- 5. Kinirons MJ. Unerupted premaxillary supernumerary teeth. A study of their occurrence in males and females. Br Dent J. 1982;153:110.
- Garvey MT, Barry HJ, Blake M. Supernumerary teeth- an overview of classification, diagnosis and management. J Can Dent Assoc. 1999;65:612–6.
- Shah A, Gill DS, Tredwin C, Naini FB. Diagnosis and management of supernumerary teeth. Dental Update. 2008;35:510–20.
- Leco Berrocal M, Martin Morales JF, Martinez González JM. An observational study of the frequency of supernumerary teeth in a population of 2000 patients. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal 2007;12:E134-8
- 9. Fleming PS, Xavier GM, DiBiase AT, Cobourne MT. Revisiting the supernumerary: the epidemiological and molecular basis of extra teeth. Br Dent J 2010; 208:25-30;
- Ferreira O, Cardoso CL, Capelozza ALA, Yaedú RYF, da Costa AR. Odontogenic keratocyst and multiple supernumerary teeth in a patient with Ehlers-Danlos syndrome–a case report and review of the literature. Quintessence Int 2008; 39:251-6; PMID:18618041
- Torun GS, Akbulut A. Crouzon syndrome with multiple supernumerary teeth. Niger J Clin Pract 2017; 20:261-3; PMID:28091449; https://doi.org/10.4103/1119-3077.187332
- Nieminen P, Morgan NV, Fenwick AL, Parmanen S, Veistinen L, Mikkola ML, van der Spek PJ, Giraud A, Judd L, Arte S, et al.. Inactivation of IL11 signaling causes craniosynostosis, delayed tooth eruption, and supernumerary teeth. Am J Hum Genet 2011; 89:67-81
- Kantaputra PN, Kaewgahya M, Khemaleelakul U, Dejkhamron P, Sutthimethakorn S, Thongboonkerd V, Iamaroon A. Enamelrenal-gingival syndrome and FAM20A mutations. Am J Med Genet 2014; 164A:1-9; PMID:24259279; https://doi.org/ 10.1002 /ajmg.a.36187

- Mukhopadhyay S. Mesiodens: A clinical and radiographic study in children. J Indian Soc Pedod Prev Dent. 2011;29:34–8
- Demiriz L, Durmublar MC, Mýsýr AF. Prevalence and characteristics of supernumerary teeth: A survey on 7348 people. J Int Soc Prev Community Dent. 2015;5(Suppl 1):S39–S43. doi:10.4103/2231-0762.156151
- Hagiwara Y, Uehara T, Narita T, Tsutsumi H, Nakabayashi S, Araki M Odontology Prevalence and distribution of anomalies of permanent dentition in 9584 Japanese high school students.. 2016 Sep; 104(3):380-9
- Shilpa G, Gokhale N, Mallineni SK, Nuvvula S J Indian Soc Pedod Prev Dent. Prevalence of dental anomalies in deciduous dentition and its association with succedaneous dentition: A cross-sectional study of 4180 South Indian children. 2017 Jan-Mar; 35(1):56-62.
- 18. . Supernumerary Teeth: Review of the Literature with Recent Updates. Volume 2014, Article ID 764050, 6 pages
- Stellzig A, Basdra EK, Komposch G. Mesiodentes: Incidence, morphology, etiology. J Orofac Orthop 1997; 58: 144-53.
- 20. Gallas MM, Garcia A. Retention of permanent incisors by mesiodens: A family affair. Br Dent J 2000; 188: 63-4.
- 21. Liu JF. Characteristics of premaxillary supernumerary teeth: A survey of 112 cases. ASDC J Dent Child 1995; 62: 262-5.
- 22. Van Buggenhout G, Bailleul-Forestier I. Mesiodens. Eur J Med Genet 2008; 51: 178-81.
- 23. Gorlin RJ, CM, Hennekam RC. Syndromes of the head and neck. 4th ed. Oxford University Press; 2001.
- 24. Leco Berrocal M, Martin Morales JF, Martinez González JM. An observational study of the frequency of supernumerary teeth in a population of 2000 patients. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal 2007;12:E134-8
- Ferrés-Padró E, Prats-Armengol J, Ferrés-Amat E. A descriptive study of 113 unerupted supernumerary teeth in 79 pediatric patients in Barcelona. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal 2009;14:E146-52
- Grimanis GA, Kyriakides AT, Spyropoulos ND. A survey on supernumerary molars. Quintessence Int. 1991;22:989–9
- 27. Rajab LD, Hamdan MA. Supernumerary teeth: Review of the literature and a survey of 152 cases. Int J Pediatr Dent. 2002;12:244–54.
- 28. Brook AH. Dental anomalies of number, form and size: Their prevalence in British school children. J Int Assoc Dent Child. 1974;5:37–53.
- 29. Scheiner MA, Sampson WJ. Supernumerary teeth: A review of the literature and four case reports. Aus Dent J. 1997;42:160–5.
- De Oliveira Gomes C, Drummond SN, Jham BC, Abdo EN, Mesquita RA. A survey of 460 supernumerary teeth in Brazilian children and adolescents. Int J Paediatr Dent. 2008;18:98–106.



Original Article

Low Dose Theophylline and Tiotropium Rotacap as Add on Therapy in COPD Patients-Clinical Trial

Muzna Hameed Dar, Syed Mehboob Alam, Qurrat ul Ain Bukhari, Kauser Ismail, Syed Azhar Hussain Zaidi

ABSTRACT:

Objectives: To compare the role of low dose Theophylline and Tiotropium rotacap in improving the lung functions and day to day life of patients suffering from COPD.

Study Design and Setting: A Clinical trial study was conducted at Department of Pharmacology and Therapeutics, BMSI in association with Department of Chest Medicine, JPMC.

Methodology: This study was planned as an open label and parallel clinical trial study. A total of 168 patients of COPD were selected for this study and only 161 patients completed the 3 months duration of the study. The enrolled patients were grouped into 2, namely A and B. Tab. Theophylline 350 mg was given to Group A in two divided doses while Tiotropium rotacap18µg through rotahaler was given to group B once a day.

Results: Mean FEV1 \pm SD was improved by 0.04 \pm 0.02 in Theophylline therapy group while by 0.07 \pm 0.01 in the Tiotropium therapy treated group and a significant difference between the changes in the two treatment groups was evident. There was a percentage improvement in PEFR of 8.9 \pm 5.8 in the Theophylline therapy treated group and of 13.2 \pm 4.7 in Tiotropium therapy treated group. When Tiotropium group was compared with Theophylline group for improvement in percentage change in PEFR from day 0, a significant difference was evident between the two groups. There was a significant improvement from day 0 in CAT score in Tiotropium treated groups versus Theophylline group after 3 months of therapy.

Conclusion: Tiotropium rotacap was more effective as compared to low dose Theophylline in improving pulmonary functions and CAT score in patients with COPD.

Keywords: COPD, CAT score, FEV1, FVC, Health related quality of life, PEFR, Theophylline, Tiotropium.

I

I

I

L

L

I

I

I

I

L

L

Т

I

I

INTRODUCTION:

COPD (Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease) is an alarming issue being the third highest mortality reason worldwide by the year 2030.¹ In Pakistan, it has an estimated death rate of 71 per 100,000. This problem needs to be addressed efficiently for being the fourth highest among the 25 most populated countries on the globe. It has been a great problem to provide medical access to patients of low socioeconomic status.³ Risk for COPD is related to age, genetic make-up, decrease in maximally achieved pulmonary functions, previous pulmonary tract infections, chronic

Muzna Hameed Dar Senior Lecturer, Department of Pharmacology, BMSI, JPMC, Karachi Email: drmuznadar@yahoo.com I Syed Mahboob Alam Associate Professor, Department of Pharmacology, BMSI, JPMC, Karachi I Qurrat ul Ain Bukhari Senior Lecturer, Department of Pharmacology, SSCMS, Karachi Kauser Ismail Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology, Ziauddin Medical College, Karachi I Syed Azhar Hussain Zaidi I Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology, BUMHS, Quetta Received: 02-Jan-2020 I Accepted: 07-Apr-2020

asthma, exposure to air pollutants and smoking.⁴ Patient presents with chronic and progressive complain of shortness of breath, cough, phlegm production plus chest tightness.⁵ The occurrence of COPD needs to be established by carrying out spirometry.⁶ The criterion for labelling a patient with COPD is post-bronchodilator Forced expiratory volume (FEV1), forced vital capacity (FVC) less than $0.7.^{7}$ Treatment with bronchodilators shows a principal effect by successfully decreasing airflow limitation and symptoms, hereby, improving health condition. They also lessen the number of exacerbations.⁸ Inhaled long acting β_{2} -agonists as well as anticholinergics are the most commonly prescribed drugs for relieving symptoms of COPD patients.^{9, 10,11} In Triple therapy long acting muscarinic antagonist (LAMS) is added to patients already on long acting â agonist/Inhaled corticosteroid (LABA/ICS) to improve their health related quality of life.12

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Symptoms of COPD can mainly be reversed by decreasing the parasympathetic tone of airway smooth muscles. This target is achieved by parasympatholytic drugs that bind to muscarinic receptors, reverses bronchoconstriction and improves airflow to lungs.¹³ The extract from cigarette smoke causes release of interleukin-8 from airway myocytes. The cholinergic receptors regulate this secretion as well.¹⁴ Tiotropium selectivity binds to M3 receptors. These muscarinic receptors are present on airway smooth myocytes and submucosal glands. Tiotropium, by binding to M3 receptors, causes decreased contraction of airway myocytes along with reduced mucus secretion and then a bronchodilator effect is achieved. $^{\rm 15}$

Theophylline acts by nonselective inhibition of phosphodiesterase, thereby, producing bronchodilation. It moreover exhibits non-bronchodilator properties. When it is given at low plasma levels of 10 mg/l, it only acts as a mild nonselective inhibitor of phosphodiesterase and, thereby, clinically significant bronchodilation is not achieved¹⁶. Low doses of theophylline activate histone deacetylases (HDACs).¹⁷ Therefore, at this low dose, significant anti-inflammatory effect and reversal of steroid resistance has been evident.¹⁸ In this background, there is a strong need of studying the efficacy of Theophylline in reversing steroid resistance and its effect on health of a patient as an add on therapy as compared to addition of a bronchodilator, Tiotropium.

METHODOLOGY:

This study was planned as an open label and parallel group clinical trial study. It was conducted in the Department of Pharmacology and Therapeutics, BMSI in association with Department of Chest Medicine, JPMC; after taking approval from the ethical committee of JPMC.

Diagnosed patients with moderate to severe COPD disease (FEV1 30% to 80% of normal according to GOLD classification of COPD)¹⁹ of both sex and ages >35yrs were included in this study. Patients with history of exacerbation of COPD or else pulmonary tract infection in preceding 1 month, asthma, tuberculosis, pneumoconiosis, bronchiectasis, old interstitial pneumonia, history of lung cancers or resection, administration of supplemental oxygen for >12 hours a day, moderate to severe BPH, deranged hepatic and renal functions, arrhythmias or cardiac failure were excluded from this study. Each patient gave written permission before being enrolled in the study. The study was conducted for 3 months with follow up appointments every fortnightly. Patients continued taking their Budesonide and Formoterol combination inhaler. Inhaler method was checked in each patient before commencing the study. We selected 168 COPD patients for this study but only 161 patients completed the 3 months duration of study. We randomly divided the enrolled patients into 2 groups in 1:1 ratio. Tab. Theophylline 350mg was prescribed to COPD patients in group A in two divided doses while Tiotropiumrotacap18µg through rotahaler to group B once a day. Patients were taught to place Tiotropiumrota capsule in a hole in the rotahaler with its clear end upside. Twisting the barrel of rotahaler resulted in splitting of capsule. The patients inspired deeply and quickly while placing lips around the mouthpiece and then held their breath for 10 seconds after removing the mouthpiece.

Forced expiratory volume in 1 sec (FEV1), forced vital capacity (FVC), Peak expiratory flow rate (PEFR) and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease assessment test (CAT)

score were observed at day 0 and at day 91 of the study.²¹CAT score is based on eight different COPD related symptoms of patients. It uses a range from 0-40 to assess improvement in patient's quality of life. A decrease in score indicates improvement in symptoms and condition of patient.²²

Computer program open epi version 2 was used to calculate sample size for our study. SPSS version 17 was used for data compilation and analysis. Chi-square test was to compare qualitative variables (gender, grading of disease, smoking history) and ANOVA to quantitative ones (Age, FEV1, FVC, PEFR and CAT score).

RESULTS:

Both groups were statistically comparable at baseline as shown in table 1. When the change from day 0 in mean \pm SD of FEV1 in the Theophylline treated group (0.04 \pm 0.02) and that of Tiotropium treated group (0.07 \pm 0.01) were compared, a significant difference was observed between the two treated groups indicating that Tiotropium more effectively improved FEV1 in patients with COPD.

Mean improvement in FVC in Tiotropium treated group (0.12 ± 0.03) in comparison with Theophylline treated group (0.06 ± 0.03) was also significant, P value was 0.001 as shown in table 2.

Improvement in percentage of PEFR (l/min) from day 0 was 8.9 ± 5.8 in the Theophylline therapy treated group and was 13.2 ± 4.7 in Tiotropium group. Percentage change in PEFR from baseline in Tiotropium group in comparison with Theophylline group was statistically significant. Tiotropium was more effective than Theophylline in improving PEFR.

When improvement in CAT score was compared in Theophylline group and Tiotropium group, a significant difference was evident between the two treated groups, Tiotropium showed more efficacy in improving the health status of patients. Change in mean \pm SD of CAT score in Theophylline treated group was found to be 1.8 ± 1.14 while in Tiotropium therapy treated group was found as 2.7 ± 0.82 on the completion of study.

DISCUSSION:

According to author's information, this was the first study in which the effectiveness of Theophylline was studied in comparison to Tiotropium as an add on therapy in terms of improving symptoms of patients with COPD. We find studies in which efficacy of low dose theophylline and Tiotropiumas add on therapies were studied ^{21,22} but we could not find any study in which their efficacy as an add on therapy is compared.

According to studies of Barnes et al, Histone deacetylase 2 (HDAC2) is activated because of oxidative stress in COPD patients. HDAC 2 has a role in suppressing expression of inflammatory genes. Moreover, glucocorticoid treatment deactivates the activated inflammatory genes through HDAC

	Theophylline group	Tiotropium group	P value
Age in years (Mean±S.D)	59.1 ± 8.07	58.8 ± 8.40	0.804
Gender			
Male	78 (97.5%)	78 (96.3%)	0.66
Female	2(2.5%)	3(3.7%)	0.00
Smokers	78 (97.5%)	78 (96.3%)	0.66
Moderate COPD	43 (53.8%)	44 (54.3%)	0.942
Female	2 (2.5%)	3 (3.7%)	0.942
CAT score	17.7 ± 3.91	17.9 ± 3.34	0.812
FEV1	1.14 ± 0.24	1.17 ± 0.25	0.480
FVC	2.27 ± 0.29	2.29 ± 0.35	0.674
PEFR	184 ± 40.2	188 ± 39.3	0.586

Table No 1: Comparison of baseline characteristics between theophylline and tiotropium

Table No 2: Comparison of FEV1, FVC and PEFR between theophylline and tiotropium therapy treated COPD patients

Sr. No.		Theophylline group	Tiotropium group	P-value		
		(n=80)	(n=81)			
1.	FEV1 (L)					
a)	Day 0	1.14 ± 0.24	1.17 ± 0.25	0.477		
b)	Day 91	1.18 ± 0.24	1.24 ± 0.27	0.125		
c)	Change from baseline	0.04 ± 0.02	0.07 ± 001	0.001		
2.	FVC (L)					
a)	Day 0	2.27 ± 0.29	2.29 ± 0.35	0.681		
b)	Day 91	2.32 ± 0.29	2.41 ± 0.35	0.098		
c)	Change from baseline	0.06 ± 0.03	0.12 ± 0.03	0.001		
3.	PEFR (L/min)					
a)	Day 0	185 ± 40.2	188 ± 39.3	0.582		
b)	Day 91	201 ± 42.4	212 ± 40.6	0.085		
c)	%age change from baseline	8.9 ± 5.8	13.2 ± 4.7	0.001		
4.	CAT Score (Mean \pm SD)					
a)	Day 0	17.7 ± 3.91	17.9 ± 3.34	0.808		
b)	Day 91	16.0 ± 3.85	15.2 ± 3.72	0.202		
c)	Change from baseline	1.8 ± 1.14	2.7 ± 0.82	0.001		

2. Low dose Theophylline restores HDAC2 at molecular level through selective inhibition of phosphoinositide 3-kinase-ä.²³⁻²⁴ This mechanism may explain improvement in FEV1, FVC and FEV1/FVC.

BREATH Trial by Bella et al. supports results of our study. In this randomized and multicenter study, effectiveness of oxitropium bromide was analyzed in comparison with theophylline and its combination with theophylline in patients with COPD. FEV1 and FVC were improved in all groups²⁵. This supports the improvement in FEV1 and FVC seen in Theophylline treated group in our study.

Effect of Theophylline on health related quality of life was evaluated in terms of improvement in CAT score in comparison to earlier studies in which other different questionnaire were used to analyze health related quality of life (HRQoL) in COPD patients. A decrease of minimum 2 scores in CAT score is the criteria to be labelled as clinically significant improvement. In our study Theophylline did not cause any clinically significant improvement in CAT score.²³ This result is supported by the study of Devereux who used low-dose theophylline in comparison with placebo and the number of COPD exacerbations was not decreased during 1-year period.²⁶

An increase in mean FEV1 of 0.07 ± 001 was evident in Tiotropium therapy treated patients. This result was in accordance with that of a 12 week SPRuCE study. In this multi-center, randomized study, effectiveness of Tiotropium was compared with placebo. Capsule Tiotropium 18µg through handihaler device was given as an additional therapy to COPD patients. Mean FEV1 was improved by 0.06 in Tiotropium treated group as compared to placebo on completion of the study. An increase in mean FVC was also significant in our study and was in accordance with the results of SPRUCE study.²⁷

In UPLIFT trial, efficacy of Tiotropium was studied in terms of SGRQ score. In this trial, a same dose of Tiotropium that is 18µg was given through handihaler device in higher proportion of Tiotropium therapy treated patients. An improvement of 4 scores was seen in the treated patients. This is a clinically meaningful improvement in health related quality of life.²⁸ This supports the results of our study in which a clinically significant decrease of 2.7 ± 0.82 in mean CAT score was evident at the end of study.

A study by Ford et al contradicts the results of our study. The results of his study showed that there was a significant decrease in the number of exacerbations in COPD patients when low dose Theophylline was given with inhaled corticosteroids as compared to when given alone.²⁹ Therefore, more research is needed to establish the significance of adding low dose Theophylline in COPD patients to improve their quality of life. The limitations of the study were the nature of the study from only one center which represented limited population. This study followed patient for only 3 months that was a very short period to comment on number of exacerbations and adverse effects.

CONCLUSION:

Tiotropium rotacap was more effective in terms of improving pulmonary functions as well as health related quality of life in COPD patients when compared with low dose Theophylline.

- World Health Report. Geneva: World Health Organization. Available from URL: http://www.who.int/ respiratory/copd/en/ 2015 accessed at 25-8-2018.
- 2. Rizvi N. COPD is the leading cause of death. Pulse Intern Fortnightly Med News Paper, 2010; 1-14.
- 3. Beran D, Zar HJ, Perrin C, Menezes AM, Burney P, Forum of International Respiratory Societies working group c. Burden of asthma and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and access to essential medicines in low-income and middle-income countries. The Lancet Respiratory medicine 2015; 3(2): 159-70.
- Eisner MD, Anthonisen N, Coultas D, Kuenzli N, Perez-Padilla R, Postma Det al. An Official American Thoracic Society Public Policy Statement: Novel Risk Factors and the Global Burden of Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease. Am J RespirCrit Care Med 2010; 182:693–718.
- 5. de los MonterosEMJ, Pena C, Soto Hurtado EJ, Jareno J, Miravitles M. Variability of respiratory symptoms in severe COPD. Arch Bronchoneumol 2012; 48:3-7.
- National Heart, Lung and Blood Institute. Morbidity and mortality 2012 chartbook on cardiovascular, lung and blood diseases. Bethesda, Maryland: US Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service, National institute of Health. Available at:http://www.nhlbi.nih.gov/ files/docs/ research/2012_Chart Book_508. pdf; Accessed at 25-6-2015.

- Zwar NA, Marks GB, Hermiz O, Middleton SS, Comino EJ, Hasan I et al. Predictors of accuracy of diagnosis of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease in general practice. Med J Aust., 2011; 195:168-171.
- Cazzola M, Page CP, Calzetta and Matera MG. Pharmacology and Therapeutics of Bronchodilators. Pharmacological Reviews 2012; 64:450-504.
- 9. Kew KM, Mavergames C, Walters JA. Long-acting beta2agonists for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Cochrane Database Syst Rev 2013; 10(10): CD010177.
- Geake JB, Dabscheck EJ, Wood-Baker R, Cates CJ. Indacaterol, a once-daily beta2-agonist, versus twice-daily beta(2)-agonists or placebo for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Cochrane Database Syst Rev 2015; 1: CD010139.
- 11. Melani AS. Long-acting muscarinic antagonists. Expert Rev ClinPharmacol., 2015; 8(4):479-501.
- Singh D,Papi A,Corradi M,Pavlišová I,Montagna I,Francisco Cet al. Single inhaler triple therapy versus inhaled corticosteroid plus long-acting beta2-agonist therapy for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (TRILOGY): a double-blind, parallel group, randomised controlled trial. Lancet 2016; 388(10048): 963-73.
- Brusasca V. Reducing cholinergic constriction: the major reversible mechanism in COPD. EurRespir Rev 2006; 15:32-6.
- Oenema TA et al. Pro-inflammatory mechanisms of muscarinic receptor stimulation in airway smooth muscle. Respir Res., 2010; 11:130.
- 15. Belmonte KE. Cholinergic pathways in the lungs and anticholinergic therapy for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Proc Am ThoracSoc 2005; 2:297–304.
- 16. Barnes PJ. Theophylline for COPD. Thorax. 2006; 61:742–744.
- Cosio MG, Saetta M, and Agusti A. Immunologic Aspects of Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease N Engl J Med 2009; 360:2445-2454.
- 18. Barnes PJ, Agusti A. Low-dose theophylline enhances the anti-inflammatory effects of steroids during exacerbations of COPD. Thorax 2009; 64:424-429.
- [Gold] Global Initiative for Chronic Obstructive Lung Disease. Global strategy for the diagnosis, management, and prevention of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, Updated 2013. Available at:http://www.goldcopd. com Accessed at 25-8-2018.
- 20. Husebo G, Köll R, et al. CAT-score is a predictor for mortality in COPD. European Respiratory Journal 2016 48: 3106.
- 21. Marwick JA, Caramori G, Casolari P, Mazzoni F, Kirkham PA, Adcock IM, Chung KF, Papi A. A role for phosphoinositol 3-kinase delta in the impairment of glucocorticoid responsiveness in patients with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. J Allergy ClinImmunol. 2010; 125:1146-53.
- 22. Jones PW1, Brusselle G, Dal Negro RW, Ferrer M, Kardos P, et al. Properties of the COPD assessment test in a cross-sectional European study. EurRespir J. 2011; 38(1):29-35.
- 23. To M, Ito K, Kizawa Y, Failla M, Ito M, Kusama T, et al. Targeting phosphoinositide-3-kinase-ä with theophylline reverses corticosteroid insensitivity in COPD. Am J RespirCrit Care Med. 2010; 182:897–904.

- 24. Bellia V, Foresi A, Bianco S, Grassi V, Olivieri D, Bensi G and Volonte M. Efficacy and safety of oxitropium bromide, theophylline and their combination in COPD patients: a double-blind, randomized, multicenter study (BREATHTrial). Respir Med 2002; 96:881-889.
- 25. Augusti A, Calverly PMA, Celli B, Coxson HO, Edwards LD, Lomas DA, MacNee W, Miller BE, Rennard S, Silverman EK, Tal-Singer R, Wouters E, Yates JC, Vestbo J. Characterisation of COPD heterogeneity in the ECLIPSE cohort. Respir Res 2010; 11:122.
- 26. Devereux G, Cotton S, Fielding S, McMeekin N, Barnes PJ, Briggs A, Burns G, Chaudhuri R, Chrystyn H, Davies L, et al. Low-dose oral theophylline combined with inhaled corticosteroids for people with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and high risk of exacerbations: a RCT. Health Technol Assess. 2019 Jul; 23(37):1-146
- Freeman D, Lee A, Price D. Efficacy and safety of tiotropium in COPD patients in primary care– the SPiRiva Usual Care (SPRUCE) study. Respir Res 2007; 8:45.
- Tashkin DP, Celli B, Senn S, et al. A 4-year trial of tiotropium in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. N Engl J Med 2008; 359:1543-1554.
- 29. Ford PA, Durham AL, Russell RE, Gordon F, Adcock IM, Barnes PJ. Treatment effects of low-dose theophylline combined with an inhaled corticosteroid in COPD. Chest. 2010; 137(6):1338-44.

•••• ★••••

Role of Myo-Inositol in Treatment of Young Females Affected By Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome: Quasi Experimental Study

Haniyah Qamar, Rozina Mustafa

ABSTRACT

Objective: To determine the effects of Myo- inositol in young females with polycystic ovarian syndrome.

Study Design and Setting: This was a quasi-experimental study and was conducted in United Medical and Dental College and Creek General Hospital from January 2017 to January 2018.

Methodology: Total 100 patients were recruited based on the specific inclusion criteria of PCO diagnosed by symptoms (body mass index, menstrual irregularity, hirsutism, acne) biochemical markers (fasting insulin, random blood sugar) and ultrasound findings. Each subject in the study group was given sachet (Myo- inositol 2000mg and folic acid 400ug) once a day dissolved in glass of water for duration of 6 months. Improvement in symptoms, biochemical markers and ultrasound findings were reassessed after the completion of 6 months duration. The SPSS version 21 was used for data analysis. The paired T test was used to assess the effects of Myo-Inositol before treatment and after six months of treatment.

Result: The significant relation (0.001) was observed between the intervention and PCO and its related symptoms. An evident effect was noticed in each individual after the intervention was provided to them. The relatable symptoms such as irregularities in menses, hirsutism, weight and insulin resistance were reduced by significant ratio.

Conclusion: Myo – inositol has proven to be effective in reducing the PCO and its relatable symptoms in young females. Despite the limitations, enough evidence was collected that indicated a significant effect of the intervention.

T

Key words: Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome, young females, myo-inositol

INTRODUCTION:

Polycystic ovary syndrome is a common hyperandrogenic disorder, resulting from escalating androgen hormone production. It is observed that 20 % of the reproductive age women suffer from this disorder.¹

Guidelines from the Endocrine Society recommend using the Rotterdam criteria for diagnosis, which mandate the presence of two of the following three findingshyperandrogenism, ovulatory dysfunction, and polycystic ovaries-plus the exclusion of other diagnoses that could result in hyperandrogenism or ovulatory dysfunction.²

The mechanisms leading to insulin resistance consist of a defect in insulin binding to its receptor or to changes in insulin signal transmission. However, the ovaries of these women maintain approximately a normal response to insulin. A partial elucidation of this mechanism is explained by the action of insulin on the ovary through the IGF-1 receptor. This binding occurs when insulin reaches high concentrations, as compensatory hyperinsulinemia. Moreover, the action of insulin on the ovary uses the inositol glycan system as a

Haniyah Qamar Obstetrics and Gynaecology Department, United Medical and Dental College, Karachi. Email: haniyahqamar@gmail.com Rozina Mustafa Obstetrics and Gynaecology Department, United Medical and Dental College, Karachi Received: 28-Aug-2019 Accepted: 12-Mar-2020

signal mediator, a different mechanism from the system activated by phosphorylation of the receptor at tyrosine level in other tissues. An increase was observed in urinary clearance of inositol in some American and Greek women with PCOS. It reduces tissue availability of inositol. This mechanism could contribute to insulin resistance present in PCOS women.³

Due to the key role of insulin in the syndrome, insulin sensitizers such as metformin have been considered as possible therapeutic option in the management of these problems. Metformin has been used on patients with a hyperinsulinemic status for the improvement of ovarian dysfunction with consecutive anovulation, irregular menstrual cycles, and infertility problems.⁴ Nevertheless, metformin, when used in the therapeutic dose range, was shown to have several side effects such as flatulence, diarrhea, and nausea, so that many patients are unable to use this treatment option in gynecology for a longer period of time.^{5.}Therefore, in parallel to the common use of metformin and other insulin sensitizer agents for the treatment of PCOS, in the recent years, other therapeutic alternatives have been investigated.⁶

Inositol is a member of vitamin B family; among nine forms of inositol, myo (MYO) and d-chiro-inositol (DCI) are the types, which have provided a beneficial result for treating the PCOS in current researches. The reason being that there is a defect in the secondary messenger of the women suffering from PCOs. Therefore, MYO-inositol in this situation acts as a secondary messenger to reduce the disturbance in the signalling pathway.⁷

Based on the published results, both MI and DCI represent potential valid therapeutic approaches for the treatment of insulin resistance and its associated metabolic and reproductive disorders.. Furthermore, the combination MI/DCI seems also effective and might be even superior to either inositol species alone.⁸ The use of 2×2000 mg Myoinositol $2\times200\mu$ g folic acid per day is a safe and promising tool in the effective improvement of symptoms and infertility for patients with polycystic ovary syndrome.⁹

The intervention of Myo - inositol have also shown effective result in other trials with an increase in HDL levels, resulting in weight loss. Myo inositol intervention resulted in lowering of insulin levels, triglycerides, testosterone, and blood pressure in women with PCOS.¹⁰

D-chiroinositol functions as an intracellular messenger in this process, which supports ovulation and improve fertility while Myo is responsible for increasing the insulin sensitivity.¹¹ Therefore; this study was aimed to evaluate the effects of myo- inositol in the treatment of young females affected by polycystic ovarian syndrome.

METHODOLOGY:

This was a quasi-experimental study design; to determine the effects of myo inositol in young females suffering from polycystic ovarian syndrome. This study was conducted in United Medical and Dental College and Creek General Hospital from January 2017 to January 2018. The inclusion criteria was women from aged 18 to 30 years and diagnosed with PCO on the basis of currently accepted criteria which include hyperandrogenism, anovulation and/ or polycystic ovaries as observed on ultrasonography.¹² PCOS is also accompanied by a number of metabolic disorders, such as insulin resistance, hyperinsulinemia, and obesity so women having BMI > 18kg/m², fasting insulin > 12mIU/L were also included in study. Other causes of hyperandrogenism (such as congenital adrenal hyperplasia or androgen-secretory tumours) and ovarian dysfunction (such as hyperprolactinaemia or thyroid gland impairment) were excluded.

Based on the inclusion criteria 100 subjects were enrolled in the study by non-randomization sampling technique. A single page leaflet was used to explain the study to the patients and the students in order to enrol them in the study. The subjects who were ready to participate in the study were given an informed consent to sign and fill a questionnaire. This study was executed by the approval obtained from Institutional Review Board. The women started with the intake of Myoinositol and folic acid at a dosage of 2000 mg Myoinositol and $400 \,^{\mu}$ g folic acid/day and used it for 6 months. The primary outcome of the study was to determine the restoration of normal menstrual cycles, improvement in acne, reduction in hirsutism and weight loss. The data was collected through performa. The variables, which were assessed in the study include hirsutism, acne, ultrasound findings, BMI, random sugar level and fasting insulin levels.

The paired t Test was used to analyse the data before and after 6 months of treatment with Myoinositol and folic acid at a dosage of 2000 mg Myoinositol and 400 μ g folic acid/day and used it for 6 months. After data collection, the results were analysed using SPSS version 21. The final results were displayed in the form of a bar chart and pie chart that displayed the difference between the variables evidently. P value > 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

RESULT:

The data of 100 patients with PCO was evaluated. Table 1 shows BMI reduced to 25.59 in treated subjects from pre-treatment level of 27.03, lower level of random blood sugar were observed from pre-treatment value of 115.25 to 112.76 and fasting insulin levels reduced from 17.62 to 16.29 after the treatment.

Figure 1: According to the record menstrual cycle abnormalities improved significantly after the treatment. Oligomenorrhea reduced from 39% to 23 % in total number of subjects evaluated.57% had regular cycles before starting treatment which increased to 73% after the treatment.

73% presented with hirsutism out of which 37 % showed significant reduction in hair growth. While only in 10% improvement in facial acne was observed.

Figure 2: In the studied subjects, 97% had ultrasound features of PCO. Out of these 57% patients had improvement while 43% subjects showed no change. It was also noticed that 81% subject had Myoinositol as 1st line treatment for PCO while 1% had already used oral contraceptive pills, 4% used anti androgenic hormonal therapy, 13% used Glucophage in dose of 500mgTDS while 1% subjects used 250 mg Glucophage tds before this therapy. The evaluation of role of Myo inositol was not done in each group separately. All of these treatments were stopped before starting Myo inositol.

Regarding effect of diet control and exercise ,26% subjects had diet control along with treatment while 14% did exercise.

DISCUSSION:

As compared to a study conducted by Naz MSG et.al.¹³ published in Sep 2019 the prevalence of polycystic ovarian syndrome in adolescents based on the Rotterdam criteria was 11.04% (95% CI: 6.84-16.09%)¹³. According to their result there is a variation in the prevalence of PCOS in adolescents based on different criteria. In our study the age group of 20 - 24 years occupied majority of the sample size.

Table 1 Paired t Test

	Pre	Post	P-Value
BMI	27.03 ± 3.19	25.59 ± 2.66	0.000**
RBS	115.25 ± 16.09	112.76 ± 13.9	0.000**
Fasting Insulin	17.62 ± 5.15	16.29 ± 4.07	0.000**

Note: * Significant at 0.05: ** significant at 0.01

	-	-		
		Pre	Post	P-Value
	Regular	57%	73%	0.02*
Menstrual Cycle	Polymenorrhea	2%	2%	1.00
Wienstruar Cycle	Secondary Amenorra	2%	2%	1.00
	Oligomenorrhea	39%	23%	0.01*
	Yes	73%	36%	0.00**
Hirsutism	No	27%	27%	1.00
	Improved	0%	37%	0.00**
Facial Acne	Yes	94%	84%	0.02*
	No	6%	6%	1.00
	Improved	0%	10%	0.00**
Ultrasound Pelvis	PCO	97%	43%	0.00**
Childsound Pervis	Normal	3%	57%	0.00**

Table 2: Proportion Testing

Note: *Significant at 0.05: **significant at 0.01



40 30 20 10 00 Pre Post PCO Normal

This validated our study, which aimed to identify the effects of our treatment in young females.

The data collected showed a significant relation of the PCO with BMI as compared to a study done by Wang FF et al¹⁴, 42% of the PCOS had normal BMI, but clinical and hormonal profile was similar to PCOS patients with elevated BMI (overweight/obese). In our study the mean BMI was 27.03 \pm 3.19 which improved to 25.59 \pm 2.66. Similarly significant

association was seen between the random blood sugar level and fasting insulin levels with PCO in young females.

Our results are comparable to the study conducted by Unfer V^{15} , which showed Myo-inositol (MI) and D-chiro-inositol, two inositol stereoisomers, have been proven to be effective in PCOS treatment. However, in our study only MI has been shown to have beneficial effects on androgenic symptoms, whereas the administration of MI/D-chiro-inositol, in the physiological plasma ratio (i.e., 40:1) ensures better clinical results, such as the reduction of insulin resistance, androgens' blood levels, cardiovascular risk.

By Nordio M, Proietti E^{16} the combined administration of MI and DCI in physiological plasma ratio (40:1) should be considered as the first line approach in PCOS overweight patients, being able to reduce the metabolic and clinical alteration of PCOS and, therefore, reduce the risk of metabolic syndrome ,as compared to our study which showed significant weight loss by improving patient's BMI with myoinositol alone and folic acid without D-chiro.

Bevilacqua A, Bizzarri M¹⁷ clinical data support the beneficial effects exerted by inositol by reducing glycaemia levels and hyperinsulinemia and buffering negative effects of sustained insulin stimulation upon the adipose tissue and the endocrine system. Due to these multiple effects, Myoinositols has become a reliable treatment option, as opposed to hormonal stimulation, for insulin-resistant PCOS patients. Viewing the frequency table of fasting insulin level, it can be observed that though majority of the insulin levels were 17.62 ± 5.15 , indicates these young females are at risk of increase in insulin resistance.

Nas K, Tûû L.¹⁸ All the groups showed significant improvement (p<0.05) in prolactin and progesterone level after the treatment. Furthermore, the treated groups reported a significant improvement in the menstrual cycle disorders, while only life-style group showed an increase which was not statistically significant (p>0.05). After 6 months follow up, data was collected, to compare the results after the use of myo – inositol. The outcome displayed a significant effect (0.01) of myo-inositol in regulating the irregularities of the menses. Conclusion can be driven that females undergoing irregularities in menses can take this intervention.

Furthermore, the other symptoms hirsutism and acne, both showed different outcomes. Myo-inositol was successful in reducing the condition of hirsutism from 73% to 36.6 % while acne incidence reduced from 94.3 % to 84%. Therefore, it can be said that hirsutism is related to the hormonal imbalance while acne is associated with several factors; hence, does not portrait a definite relation with hormonal imbalance.¹⁹

Further after overviewing the entire result, it can be noted that Myo – inositol was not successful in treating entire sample of the young females, The reason for this can be deduced from the other studies that defect in the secondary

50

messenger is not the only reason for the disturbance in hormonal imbalance. Other reasons such as genetics or associated disorders can be responsible for irregular menses which eventually could lead to development of PCO; hence, this is supported by the results computed which displays a significant relation between the menstrual cycle and PCO²⁰.

Advani K et al conducted a study to evaluate the efficacy and safety of the supplementation. They have suggested that combination therapy can be used for the comprehensive management of PCOS. Monotherapy of insulin sensitising agents, antioxidants and vitamins is beneficial in the treatment of PCOS. Combined use of insulin sensitising agents (myoinositol, D-chiro-inositol and chromium picolinate), antioxidants (N-acetylcysteine and lycopene), and vitamins (vitamin D, biotin and folic acid) is safe and effective in obese and non-obese women with PCOS²¹.

As per a study by McBreairty LE,²² diet control and exercise are considered as an additive factor, which supports the efficacy of the myo-inositol in playing an integral role as a secondary messenger in increasing the insulin sensitivity; thus, reduces any disruption in hormonal balance that can lead to obesity.²² Hence, it can be stated that the role of the lifestyle balance is responsible in increasing the insulin sensitivity and lowering the BMI that maintains harmony in the body functions. The study holds some limitations, which leaves a gap in the literature to be further assessed. The blood sugar level taken was random rather than fasting, which would have given a more clear idea of high sugar level. The use of metformin, diet, exercise and other therapies was not evaluated as integrated treatment with Myo inositol. Myo-inositol used over last decade has been successful in treating insulin sensitivity. Use of Myo inositol in the PCO has displayed an evident result in our study conducted. The outcome displayed that Myo - inositol was successful in improving androgenic and metabolic effects of PCO syndrome. This improves compliance of the use resulting in better outcomes in the management of menstrual irregularities, hyperandrogenism, and metabolic parameters.

CONCLUSION:

This concludes that Myoinositol is an effective alternative in the treatment of PCOS. It's a safe option in young females with no side effects in the standard dosage.

- 1. Haqq L, McFarlane J, Dieberg G, Smart N. The effect of lifestyle intervention on body composition, glycemic control, and cardiorespiratory fitness in polycystic ovarian syndrome: a systematic review and meta-analysis. International journal of sport nutrition and exercise metabolism. 2015;25(6):533-40.
- William T, Mortada R, Porter S. Diagnosis and Treatment of Polycystic Ovary Syndrome. American family physician. 2016; 94(2):106-113 ·

- 3. De Leo V, Musacchio M, Cappelli V, Massaro M, Morgante G, Petraglia F. Genetic, hormonal and metabolic aspects of PCOS: an update. Reproductive Biology and Endocrinology. 2016;14(1)
- 4. Zeng X, Xie YJ, Liu YT, Long SL, Mo ZC. Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome: Correlation Between Hyperandrogenism, Insulin Resistance and Obesity.Clin Chim Acta. 2019 Nov 13. pii: S0009-8981(19)32118-7.
- 5. Gateva A, Unfer V, Kamenov Z. The use of inositol (s) isomers in the management of polycystic ovary syndrome: a comprehensive review. Gynecological Endocrinology. 2018;34(7):545-50.
- Tagliaferri V, Romualdi D, Immediata V, De Cicco S, Di Florio C, Lanzone A, Guido M, Metformin vs myoinositol: which is better in obese polycystic ovary syndrome patients? A randomized controlled crossover study. Clin Endocrinol (Oxf). 2017;86(5):725-730.
- Pasquali R, Diamanti-Kandarakis E, Gambineri A. Management of endocrine disease: secondary polycystic ovary syndrome: theoretical and practical aspects. European journal of endocrinology. 2016;175(4):R157-R69.
- 8. Sortino MA, Salomone S, Carruba MO, Drago F. Polycystic Ovary Syndrome: Insights into the Therapeutic Approach with Inositols. . Front Pharmacol. 2017;8:341.
- Regidor PA, Schindler AE, Lesoine B, Druckman R. Management of women with PCOS using myo-inositol and folic acid. New clinical data and review of the literature. Horm Mol Biol Clin Investig. 2018;34(2)
- 10. Facchinetti F, Bizzarri M, Benvenga S, D'Anna R, Lanzone A, Soulage C, et al. Results from the International Consensus Conference on Myo-inositol and d-chiro-inositol in Obstetrics and Gynecology: the link between metabolic syndrome and PCOS. European Journal of Obstetrics & Gynecology and Reproductive Biology. 2015;195:72-6.
- Laganà AS, Garzon S, Casarin J, Franchi M, Ghezzi F. Inositol in Polycystic Ovary Syndrome: Restoring Fertility through a Pathophysiology-Based Approach. Trends Endocrinol Metab. 2018 Nov;29(11):768-780.
- Rosenfield RL, Ehrmann DA. The Pathogenesis of Polycystic Ovary Syndrome (PCOS): The Hypothesis of PCOS as Functional Ovarian Hyperandrogenism Revisited. Endocr Rev. 2016;37(5):467-520.
- Naz MSG, Tehrani FR, Majd HA, Ahmadi F, Ozgoli G, Fakari FR, Ghasemi V, The prevalence of polycystic ovary syndrome in adolescents: A systematic review and meta-analysis. Int J Reprod Biomed (Yazd). 2019;17(8):533-542.
- 14. Wang FF, Wu Y ,Zhu YH, Ding T, Batterham RL, Qu F, Hardiman PJ. Pharmacologic therapy to induce weight loss in women who have obesity/overweight with polycystic ovary syndrome: a systematic review and network meta-analysis. Obes Rev. 2018 Oct;19(10):1424-1445.
- Vittorio Unfer, John E. Nestler, Zdravko A. Kamenov, Nikos Prapas and Fabio Facchinetti. Effects of Inositol(s) in Women with PCOS: A Systematic Review of Randomized Controlled Trials. Int J Endocrinol. 2016; 2016: 1849162.
- Nordio M, Basciani S, Camajani E. The 40:1 myo-inositol/Dchiro-inositol plasma ratio is able to restore ovulation in PCOS patients: comparison with other ratios. Eur Rev Med Pharmacol Sci. 2019;23(12):5512-21.

- 17. Bevilacqua A ,Bizzarri M. Inositols in Insulin Signaling and Glucose Metabolism. Int J Endocrinol. 2018 Nov 25.
- Nas K, Tûû L. A comparative study between myo-inositol and metformin in the treatment of insulin-resistant women. Eur Rev Med Pharmacol Sci. 2017;21(2 Suppl):77-82.
- Laganà AS, Rossetti P, Buscema M, La Vignera S, Condorelli RA, Gullo G, Granese R, Triolo O. Metabolism and Ovarian Function in PCOS Women: A Therapeutic Approach with Inositols. Int J Endocrinol. 2016; 2016:6306410.
- 20. Azziz R, Carmina E, Chen Z, Dunaif A, Laven JS, Legro RS, et al. Polycystic ovary syndrome. Nature reviews Disease primers. 2016;2:16057.
- 21. Advani K, Batra M, Tajpuriya S, Gupta R, Saraswat A, Nagar HD, Makwana L, Kshirsagar S, Kaul P, Kumar Ghosh A, Pradhan S, Mehta A, Jaiswal A, Nakhate KT, Kamdi S. Efficacy of combination therapy of inositols, antioxidants and vitamins in obese and non-obese women with polycystic ovary syndrome: an observational study.J Obstet Gynaecol. 2019 Jul 24:1-6.
- 22. McBreairty LE, Kazemi M, Chilibeck PD, Gordon JJ, Chizen DR, Zello GA.Effect of a pulse-based diet and aerobic exercise on bone measures and body composition in women with polycystic ovary syndrome: A randomized controlled trial. Bone Rep. 2020 Jan 23;12



Correlation of Hand Hygiene Knowledge and Hand Decontamination Practices of Medical Students

Syeda Ghadeer Zehra Naqvi, Nazish Jaffar, Syeda Aqeela Zehra, Rubina Ghani, Hasan Ali

ABSTRACT

Objectives: To determine the knowledge of MBBS students of a public sector medical university regarding hand hygiene and to assess the practical implication of their knowledge regarding hand hygiene during the clinical postings.

Study Design and Setting: A cross sectional study was conducted in Sindh Medical College, Jinnah Sindh Medical University (SMC-JSMU) Karachi, from July to November 2018.

Methodology: A total of 316 M.B.B.S students from first year to final year were included in the study. Students were equally divided into preclinical and clinical groups. Hence, the knowledge of preclinical and clinical students were compared in the present study. Age range of participants was 18 to 24 years and both male and female participants were involved. Data was analyzed by SPSS 22.0. P value < 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

Results: Approximately 249 (78.8%) students agreed that hands of health care workers are a source of nosocomial infections. Nearly 293 (92.7%) students admitted that hand decontamination and gloving is necessary before bedside procedures. Only 61 (38.6%) students performed it routinely. Chief restricting factor in performance of hand hygiene was inadequate supply of hand hygiene resources as reported by 122 (77.2%) students.

Conclusions: Majority of medical students in both preclinical and clinical groups were well aware of HH practices and its significant role in infection control. However, only a limited number of students routinely performed HH. The difference between knowledge and practice of students was mainly due to the inadequate facilities of hand washing in public sector hospitals.

Keywords: Hand hygiene (HH), Hand decontamination practices, Health care associated infections (HCI), Knowledge, Medical students.

L

L

INTRODUCTION:

According to World Health Organization (WHO), hand hygiene (HH) means cleansing of hands by any procedure of hand decontamination.¹ Practices of HH involve use of only water, soap, antimicrobial soap with water, antiseptic with water and an alcohol-based hand rub. Use of alcoholbased hand rub is more effective, consumes less time and depletes pathogens promptly than hand washing. Healthcare-

Syeda Ghadeer Zehra Naqvi, Fourth Year MBBS Student Sindh Medical College (SMC) JSMU, Karachi Email: Syedaghadeerzehranaqvi@yahoo.com
Nazish Jaffar, Assistant Professor, Pathology Department, Jinnah Sindh Medical University (JSMU) Karachi
Syeda Aqeela Zehra, Fourth year MBBS student Sindh Medical College (SMC) JSMU Karachi
Rubina Ghani Professor, Biochemistry Department, Jinnah Medical and Dental College (JMDC), Karachi
Hasan Ali Professor and HOD Biochemistry Department Bahria University Medical and Dental College Karachi
Received: 31-Jul-2019 Accepted: 04-Mar-2020

associated infections (HCAIs) contribute significantly to infectious disease (ID) burden worldwide. A considerable number of patients suffer from HCAIs annually. Particularly in developing countries proportion of HCAIs is significantly increasing.² According to WHO 1.4 million people globally are affected from HCAIs. Contaminated hands of health care workers (HCWs) are the main source for transmission of HCAIs.³ These constitute mainly skin, digestive system and respiratory system infections which become a source of major ID burden.⁴ Pathogenic organisms transmitted from contaminated hands includes Staphylococcus aureus, Pseudomonas, Klebesilla and Rhinovirus.⁵

HH is considered as one of the best methods in prevention of HCAIs. Although the recommended process of HH is relatively a simple method yet its compliance is reported to be 40% among HCWs.6 Globally hand washing practices were followed properly by minority of HCWs (2 to 10 %).⁷ Efforts are being made worldwide to design effective strategies for implementation of HH practices. One such strategy is the presentation of theory of "My five moments for hand hygiene" by WHO.8 According to this concept these are the critical moments when the intrusion in spreading of HCAIs may prove significant. These include the moment before touching a patient, before execution of aseptic and clean techniques, after contact with body fluids, after patient contact and after exposure to patient's surroundings. This theory has been used to promote knowledge and HH practices among HCWs.6,8

Common factors associated with poor hand decontamination practices include irritation of skin, inadequate provision of hand-washing materials and towels, heavy work load, decreased manpower, lack of basic knowledge and awareness of HH also account for poor compliance. A positive attitude towards HH practices may contribute as an influential factor towards the attitude development of the fellow medical practitioners.^{3,9}

Study conducted in Pakistan revealed that only 17% doctors were familiar to the WHO instructions on HH. The less provision of sink, soap, water and disposable towel are notable factors associated with poor hand decontamination practices locally. Generally, adherence to HH was 38.8% but it indicates variation in different health care units.^{3,10} Another study conducted in Ghana revealed that poor HH practices was due to inaccurate knowledge and insufficient facilities to perform HH.¹¹ A survey from Karnataka, India reported limited knowledge of HH among medical students.¹²

It is of utmost significance to identify the knowledge of HH and hand decontamination practices of medical students to develop a positive attitude of HH among them. It may also help the medical educationist to update the medical curriculum in light of the results of such studies. Therefore, the current study was designed to determine the knowledge and attitude of HH and hand decontamination practices in preclinical and clinical medical students of a public sector university of Karachi and to assess the practical implication of their knowledge regarding hand hygiene during their clinical postings.

METHODOLOGY:

A cross sectional study was conducted in Sindh Medical College, Jinnah Sindh Medical University (SMC-JSMU) Karachi, from July to November 2018. Our research protocol was approved by the Institutional Review Board of SMC, JSMU. A total of 316 M.B.B.S students from first year to final year were included in the study. Students were divided into preclinical and clinical groups. Although preclinical students have no patient interaction, however, they are being provided basic knowledge of HH during class lectures. Hence, the knowledge of preclinical and clinical students was compared in the present study. Age range of participants was 18 to 24 years and both male and female participants were involved. Students enrolled in non-medical faculties were excluded.

Non probability convenient sampling technique was used. Sample size was calculated using open EPI software. Considering population size = 1750, anticipated % frequency = 50 (assuming 50% as no specific similar study could be found), Confidence level = 95 %, confidence level as +/percent of 100 = 5, design effect = 1. The sample size obtained was 316. Medical students were divided into two equal groups, preclinical students of first year and second year M.B.B.S (n= 158), clinical students of third year, fourth year and final year M.B.B.S. (n=158). The participants were selected based on their consent to be included in the study.

A structured questionnaire was designed after going through extensive literature review to be filled by participants. The content areas of questionnaire included socio-demographic characteristics, knowledge and attitude of medical students regarding HH and hand decontamination practices. Data was collected by investigators. After obtaining written informed consent and detailed rationale of the study; the questionnaire was filled by the participants within university premises in their free time.

Data was analyzed using Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS) version 22.0. Descriptive statistics were expressed as mean and standard deviation for numerical variables. Categorical variables were expressed in frequency and percentages. Chi-square test was applied to assess the difference between the knowledge of HH and practical application of this knowledge during the clinical rotations among the clinical group. P value of < 0.05 was considered significant.

RESULTS:

From total of 316 medical students who were interviewed in this study, 241 (76.3%) were females and 75 (23.7%) were males. Distribution of medical students in preclinical and clinical years was equal i.e. 50% in each group. Medical students included in the study were 108 from first year, 50 from second year, 74 from third year, 41 from fourth year, and 43 from final year.

Majority of the participants 293 (92.7%) were well aware that hand decontamination and gloving is necessary before any bedside procedure (Table 1). My five-moment concept of HH was known by 171 (44.9%) of medical students. Variables of my five-moment concept were answered accurately by most of the student as displayed in table 1. Methods of HH were known unsatisfactorily. Lack of accurate knowledge with respect to hand washing and rubbing methods is illustrated in table 1.

As recommended by WHO, alcohol-based hand rubbing is the gold standard method of HH.¹ Awareness among participants about WHO recommendations regarding preparations of HH was very low. In contrast to alcoholbased hand rubs, most of the participants (30%) 95/316 preferred water and antimicrobial soap as a hand hygiene preparation tool.

Approximately 190/316 (60.1%) students received information on HH from class lectures and 39/316 (12.3%) from clinical rotations. (Table 1)

Difference in knowledge and practical implementation of HH in clinical group is demonstrated in table 2. Significant number of clinical students 155/158 (98.1%) agreed that HH and gloving is necessary before any bedside procedure. However, 61/158 (38.6%) clinical students performed HH

Knowledge of hand hygiene	Preclinical students n (%)	Clinical students n (%)	Total n (%)
HH is practiced to prevent HCAIs of patients, HCWs and microbial	109 (34.49%)	129 (40.82%)	238 (75.3%)
contamination of health care environment			
Hands of HCWs are source of nosocomial infections	124 (39.24%)	125 (39.55%)	249 (78.8%)
Hand decontamination and gloving is necessary before any bedside	143 (45.25%)	150 (47.46%)	293 (92.7%)
procedure			
Hand rubbing is more effective against germs than hand washing	32 (10.2%)	100 (31.6%)	132 (41.8%)
Time needed to apply alcohol-based hand rubs	30 (9.53%)	35 (11.07%)	65 (20.6%)
Steps are in proper hand washing technique	137 (43.35%)	140 (44.30%)	277 (87.7%)
Washing hand with soap and water is recommended when soiled with	124 (39.24%)	124 (39.24%)	248 (78.5%)
blood, body fluids and visibly dirty			
Five moments concept			
Do you know about my five moments concept of hand hygiene?	81 (25.63%)	90 (19.27%)	171 (44.9%)
Hand washing prevents transmission of germs before touching patients	260 (82.3%)	130 (41.13%)	130 (41.13%)
Hand washing prevents transmission of germs after touching patients	145 (45.88%)	146 (46.20%)	291 (92.1%)
Hand washing prevents transmission of germs after exposure to	113 (35.7%)	158 (50.0%)	271 (85.8%)
surroundings of patients			
Hand washing prevents transmission of germs after exposure to body	142 (44.93%)	142 (44.93)	284 (89.9%)
fluids patients			
Hand hygiene techniques			
Method of HH is required before palpation of abdomen	9 (2.84%)	150 (47.46%)	159 (50.3%)
Method of HH is required before giving injections	64 (20.34%)	65 (20.56%)	129 (40.9%)
Method of HH is required after removing examination gloves	53 (16.77%)	60 (18.98%)	113 (35.8%)
Method of HH is required after visible exposure to blood	9 (2.84%)	89 (28.16%)	98 (31%)
Hand hygiene preparations			
Which preparation of HH product is most preferable?			
Alcohol based hand rubs	42 (13.29%)	43 (13.61%)	85 (26.9%)
Water and antimicrobial soap	15 (4.69%)	80 (25.31%)	95 (30%)
Water and plain soap	35 (11.07%)	30 (9.49%)	65 (20.6%)
Water and antiseptics	38 (12.02%)	15 (4.69%)	53 (16.8%)
Only water	9 (2.84%)	9 (2.84)	18 (5.7%)
Source of HH information and training			
Class lectures	100 (31.6%)	90 (28.5%)	190 (60.1%)
Clinical rotations	0 (0.0%)	39 (12.3%)	39 (12.3%)

Table 1: Frequer	ncy distribution of Kno	wledge of HH am	ong preclinical and	clinical medical	students. (n=316)
1	2	0			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Table 2: Comparative analysis of knowledge of HH and hand decontamination practices among clinical students. (n=158)

Knowledge of hand hygiene:	N (%)	Practice of hand hygiene protocols:	N (%)	P value
Do you agree that Hand hygiene and gloving is necessary before any bedside procedures?	155 (98.1%)	Do you routinely perform hand hygiene before any bedside procedure?	61 (38.6%)	0.007
Correct knowledge of steps of proper hand washing technique?	147 (93%)	Do you perform all steps of hand washing during clinical postings?	34 (21.5%)	0.109

Table 3: Frequency of distribution of Restricting factors in performance of HH in health care units as reported by clinical students. (n=158)

Restriction factors in performance of HH among clinical group	Frequency n (%)
Shortage of hand washing resources	122 (77.2%)
Inadequate provision of gloves	120 (75.9%)
Forgetfulness to perform HH	90 (56.9%)
Lack of knowledge on HH	59 (37.3%)
Irritation of skin by hand rubs and antiseptics	39 (24.6%)

during clinical rotations (P= 0.007). Similarly, knowledge of students regarding steps of hand washing technique was better 147/158 (93%) as compared to its practical implication 34/158 (21.5%). (P=0.107).

DISCUSSION:

Contaminated hands of HCWs are the main source for transmission of nosocomial infections. Nosocomial infections are effectively decreased by complying with HH. In the recent years there is a mushroom growth of medical institutes across Pakistan. These institutes are producing a good number of medical graduates each year. HH practices of undergraduate medical students have not been studied comprehensively in Pakistan. The Current study was aimed to assess knowledge and practical implications of HH among medical students.

In the present study 249 (78.8%) medical students agreed that hands of HCWs are source of nosocomial infections. In comparison, addressing the similar question, a figure of 46.4% was reported by a study conducted in Mumbai, India. ¹³ This low frequency in their study probably reflects lack of involvement of students in primary patient care and deficiency of class room teaching regarding significance of HH in undergraduate curricula.¹³

Hand rubbing is more effective method of HH in accordance with WHO recommendations. However, in the current study only 132 (41.8%) students responded that hand rubbing is most effective method of hand cleansing than hand washing. In the current study medical students had less satisfactory knowledge regarding effectiveness of hand rubbing method. Our finding was in contrast with a study conducted by Ariyaratne *et al.* which reported a much higher 72.9% frequency.^{1,2,14} Time duration required by alcohol-based hand rubs to kill most of germs on hands was known correctly by only 65 (20.6%) of participants in the present study. This finding was consistent with a study conducted in India which reported a frequency of 28%.¹⁵

Importance of alcohol-based hand rubs was mentioned in previous studies.^{2,16} However, only 85 (26.9%) participants in present study preferred to use alcohol-based hand rubs

over various other products of HH. Study conducted by Immanuel *et al.* is in agreement with our findings as they reported 22.9% of HCWs who used alcohol-based hand rubs. This infrequent practice was probably due to lack of appropriate knowledge among HCWs, inadequate supply of alcohol-based hand rubs as well as work overload in government sector hospitals. Another important finding of the current study was that 129 (40.9%) of participants were aware of hand hygiene method needed before giving injections. Immanuel *et al.* reported a similar result in which 39.4% participants were aware of similar variable. This slight difference in results was may be due to inclusion of all HCWs in their study. This also signifies that professional status of HCWs is significantly associated with HH knowledge.¹⁷

In the current study 190 (60.1%) participants believed to obtain effective knowledge of HH from class room lectures. Similarly, Thea *et al.* in a 2010 survey recorded that 57.1 % students considered class lectures as a highly effective method of learning HH.¹⁸ Study conducted by Ali *et al* reported that only 31.6% students were found to follow all steps of hand washing technique. This finding is consistent with a low frequency 21.5% of medical students in our study who reported to perform hand washing techniques accurately. (P=0.109). This reduction in practice was may be due to poor compliance and increase work load.¹⁹

Curriculum of undergraduate medical students should emphasize on HH. We suggest that HH practices of students should be evaluated during hospitals postings and exams. It will be helpful in training best medical practitioners who will not become a source of HCAIs.

The limitations-single centered study and cross sectional nature of the study. Moreover, HH practices of participants were purely self-reported and reporting bias may be encountered in this study. Due to the single centered study: the result of this study cannot be generalized for the entire public sector healthcare facilities for hand hygiene.

CONCLUSION:

Majority of medical students in both preclinical and clinical groups were well aware of HH practices and its significant role in infection control. However, only a limited number of students routinely performed HH. The difference between knowledge and practice of students was mainly due to the inadequate facilities of hand washing in public sector hospital.

- WHO Guidelines on Hand Hygiene in Health Care: First Global Patient Safety Challenge Clean Care Is Safer Care. (2009). Available from: https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/ handle/ 10665/44102/9789241597906_eng. pdf; jsessionid= BA9CB32DF8DD55D5755CDA3A20E52438?sequence=1
- 2. Diwan V, Gustafsson C, Rosales Klintz S, Joshi SC, Joshi R, et al. Understanding healthcare workers self-reported practices, knowledge and attitude about hand hygiene in a medical setting in rural India. PLoS One.2016;11(10): e0163347.

- Anwar MA, Rabbi S, Masroor M, Majeed F, Andrades M, Baqi S. Self-reported practices of hand hygiene among the trainees of a teaching hospital in a resource limited country. J Pak Med Assoc. 2009;59(9):631–4. pmid:19750862.
- Bloomfield SF, Aiello AE, Cookson B, O'boyle C, Larson EL. The effectiveness of hand hygiene procedures in reducing the risks of infections in home and community settings including hand washing and alcohol base hand sanitizers. Am J Infect Control. 2007; 35: S27–S64.
- Sherwani SK, Nazim K, Memon AA, Hussain T, Ahmad H, Baig MT, Kazmi SU. General perspective regarding hand washing practices in Karachi Pakistan. South Asian J. Life Sci. 2013;1(1): 1 – 4.
- Nair SS, Hanumantappa R, Hiremath SG, Siraj MA, Raghunath P. Knowledge, attitude and practice of hand hygiene among medical and nursing students at a tertiary health care center in Raichur, India. ISRN preventive medicine. 2014; 1-4.
- 7. Sherwani SK, Bashir A, Ahmed H, Alami SI. Knowledge, attitude and practices of washing hands among mothers in Karachi, Pakistan. FUUAST J. Biol. 2011; 1(1): 103-106.
- Sax H, Allegranzi B, Uckay I, Larson E, Boyce J, Pittet D. "My five moments for hand hygiene": a user-centred design approach to understand, train, monitor and report hand hygiene. J Hosp Infect. 2007;67(1):9-2117719685.
- Rao MH, Arain GM, Khan MI, Talreja KL, Ali G, Munir MK, Naz S, Hussain I, Ahmed J. Assessment of Knowledge, Attitude and Practices Pattern of Hand Washing in Some Major Public Sector Hospitals of Pakistan (a Multi-Center Study). Pak J Med Res. 2012;51(3):76-82.
- Modi PD, Kumar P, Solanki R, Modi J, Chandaeamani S, Gill N. Hand hygiene practices among Indian Medical Undergraduates: a questionnaire-based survey. Cureus. 2017; 9(7): e1463.
- 11. Yawson AE, Hesse AA, Hand hygiene practices and resources in a teaching hospital in Ghana. J Infect Dev Ctries. 2013; 7(04): 338-47.

- 12. Kamble VS, Biradar SM, Takpere A, Reddy S. Knowledge of hand hygiene practices among students of ESIC medical college, Gulbarga, Karnataka, India. Int J Community Med Public Health. 2017;3(1):94-8.
- Thakker VS, Jadhav PR. Knowledge of hand hygiene in undergraduate medical, dental, and nursing students: A crosssectional survey. J Family Med Prim Care. 2015; 4(4): 582–586.
- 14. Ariyaratne MH, Gunasekara TD, Weerasekara MM, Kottahachchi J, Kudavidanage BP, Fernando SS. Knowledge, attitudes and practices of hand hygiene among final year medical and nursing students at University of Sri Jayewardenepura. Sri Lankan Journal of Infectious Diseases. 2013; 3(1);15-25.
- 15. Shinde MB, Mohite VR. A study to assess knowledge, attitude and practices of five moments of hand hygiene among nursing staff and students at a tertiary care hospital at Karad. International Journal of Science and Research. 2014;3(2):311-21.
- Widmer AF. Replace hand washing with use of a waterless alcohol hand rub? Clinical infectious diseases. 2000;31(1):136-43.
- 17. Amissah I, Salia S, Craymah JP. A Study to assess hand hygiene knowledge and practices among health care workers in a teaching hospital in Ghana. IJSR. 2016; 5:301-7.
- Van de Mortel TF, Apostolopoulou EA, Petrikkos GL.A comparison of the hand hygiene knowledge, beliefs, and practices of Greek nursing and medical students. American Journal of Infection Control. 2010;38(1):75.
- 19. Ali MM, Batool F, Tariq H, Atta L, Inam F, Ihtesham R, Iftikhar SF, Ghafoor R. Hand sanitation practices within clinical settings: its knowledge and practice among students of peshawar medical college (PMC). Journal of Medical Students. 2015;1(1): 37-42.



Clinically Significant Variation of Paranasal Sinuses on CT-Scan

Maryam Faiz Qureshi, Ambreen Usmani

ABSTRACT:

Anatomical variations are not diseases and can be found in every individual. Due to the anatomical variations, the structural changes occur in nearby anatomical relations. By keeping in mind, the vast range of anatomical variations in nasal cavity and paranasal sinuses (PNS), every case of sinusitis must be planned carefully to avoid dreadful complications of surgical procedures. Sinus anatomical variations have been associated with the etiology of sinusitis. In this regard computed tomography (CT) imaging has become an important diagnostic tool. CT Scan imaging of nose and para nasal sinuses is mandatory in patients with history of sinusitis in order to evaluate the detailed anatomy which includes normal anatomy, anatomical variations, bony details and the extent of the disease pathology. Certain anatomical variants are supposed to be a causative factor for development of sinus pathology and hence it becomes compulsory for the radiologist to be aware of the anatomical variants of nasal cavity and PNS especially if the subject is considered for surgical intervention.

Key words: Anatomical Variations, Paranasal Sinuses (PNS), Nasal cavity, CT Scan, Functional Endoscopic Sinus Surgery (FESS).

INTRODUCTION:

Paranasal sinuses (PNS) are air-filled spaces present in specific bones of the skull. There are 4 pairs of paranasal sinuses which are named according to their location in which they are situated in the skull bones, which includes frontal sinus, maxillary sinus, ethmoid sinus, sphenoid sinus. Clinically, PNS are divided into 2 groups, the anterior group and the posterior group. Anterior group includes maxillary, frontal, and anterior ethmoidal, they all open together in the middle meatus and their ostia lie anterior to basal lamella of middle turbinate. Posterior group includes posterior ethmoidal sinuses which open in the superior meatus and the sphenoid sinus which open in the spheno-ethmoidal recess¹.

Research show that the anatomy of PNS is variable and complex. CT PNS is choice of investigation in evaluating PNS anatomy, pathology and the anatomical variations. The anatomical variations disturbing osteomeatal complex (OMC) includes Deviated nasal septum (DNS), concha bullosa (CB) bent middle turbinate, agger nasi cells and haller cells. These OMC anatomical variants can cause meatal narrowing and even obstruction of sinus. Knowledge of the anatomical variations does reduce the surgical complication rates during Functional Endoscopic Sinus Surgery (FESS), and helps explain recurrence of disease. It also allows one to change the operative technique for the benefit of patient. CT PNS has vital role in presurgical evaluation of minimally invasive FESS ^{2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9}.

Maryam Faiz Qureshi MPhil Postgraduate Student, Department of Anatomy Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: qureshimaryam25@gmail.com	1
Ambreen Usmani Senior Professor, HOD Department of Anatomy and Principal, Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi	
Received: 17-Dec-2019 Accepted: 26-Feb-2020	

It is necessary to identify the clinical and surgical importance of anatomical variants of PNS, certain anatomical variants are supposed to be causative factor for development of sinus pathology and hence it becomes compulsory for the radiologist to be alert of the anatomical variants of PNS especially if the subject is candidate for FESS^{3,4,6,10,11}.

The important ethmoid air cells which are included in anterior group are: agger nasi cells, ethmoid bulla, supraorbital cells, frontoethmoidal cells, haller cells¹. The ethmoid air sinuses play a crucial role in FESS. The posterior ethmoids and the sphenoid sinuses can be accessed via the anterior ethmoid cells. Anterior ethmoidectomy helps improve frontal air sinus drainage hence minimizing the need for opening the frontal sinus during surgery^{12,13}. Variations in the pneumatization of ethmoid sinuses may result in the disturbance of sinus ventilation and sinus drainage pathway. These can be the etiological factor for sinusitis and spread of infection to adjacent structures^{13,14}.

The coronal views of CT scan are best for the sphenoid and the ethmoid cell variants such as the onodi cells or sphenoethmoidal cells. The modification and advancement of computed tomography has granted extensive assessment of patient's paranasal sinuses thus providing a guide map for FESS surgeons to operate effectively ^{15,5,13}. In a study conducted in Egypt it was reported that the frequency of agger nasi cells and CB were equally frequent (30.6%), and Haller cells were detected in 11.2%. Variations of uncinate process were detected in 18.1%, and the large ethmoid bulla was detected in 10% ¹⁶.

Whatever may be the diagnosis, but for understanding of anatomical relations of paranasal sinuses, CT Scan of Para nasal sinus is mandatory before performing sinus surgery. This is to avoid chance of complications while performing the procedure. Patients having history of chronic sinusitis and who are not responding to medical therapy, computed tomography should be performed for the possible
identification of anatomical variants. In order to prevent harmful complications such as cerebrospinal fluid (CSF) leak, meningitis, or blindness, this prevention will decrease the burden of disease, patient disability and patient morbidity, so a detailed knowledge of the possible anatomical variations is essential ¹⁷. Pneumatization (formation of air cells) of turbinate referred as concha bullosa (CB) is a normal anatomical variant of PNS. CB is classified into extensive CB, bulbous CB, lamellar (CB) and out of these middle turbinate CB has been identified as a possible causative factor in sinusitis ^{18,7}.

As a number of lateral nasal wall diseases cannot be recognized and identified by endoscope, so with this regard computed tomography must be performed even when the diagnostic nasal endoscopic finding is insignificant, provided that the history and clinical findings suggest the presence of some disease ¹⁹. The anatomical variations of lateral nasal wall and PNS are surgically and patho-physiologically important because they narrow the drainage pathway, impair the mucociliary function of the para nasal sinuses, which in turn leads on to stagnation of secretions, then infection and inflammation of the mucosa lining the sinuses occurs. Diseases in severely pneumatized sinuses direct on to exposure of important structures like Optic nerve, Internal Carotid artery, and anterior cranial fossa of the brain, to infection and inflammation, and also increases risk of injury during surgical procedure. Hence, CT Scan imaging of nose and PNS is mandatory in patients with history of sinusitis, to evaluate the detailed anatomy (normal anatomy, anatomical variations, bony details and the extent of the disease pathology) that are commonly encountered in the osteomeatal complex (OMC), and lateral nasal wall^{20,3,4,21,7,8}. Frequent and extensive application of functional endoscopic sinus surgery (FESS) with experience makes it essential to know the complex anatomy and the pathology of PNS very well and thoroughly before surgery. The importance of paranasal sinus computed tomography in terms of identifying and determining anatomical variations of PNS before FESS, helps in predicting the complications that can occur during surgery has been highlighted ^{22,3,4,6}.

METHODOLOGY:

The overall methodology was commenced by the following steps mentioned below;

- 1. Review of various articles related with the topic
- 2. Extraction of articles
- 3. Data gathered
- 4. Analysis and comparison of findings
- 5. Conclusion

After following above mentioned steps, a comprehensive literature search was done using Google Scholar, Medline, PubMed, and Pakmedinet from the year 2009 onwards using keywords like anatomical variations, CT-scan, FESS, nasal cavity and paranasal sinuses. For Ancient literature books and other clinical guidelines of international organizations were also reviewed for relevant references. The analysis of the data was done by regional analysis technique, and narrative synthesis methodology was used to synthesize overall review findings.

Literature Review:

The paranasal sinuses (PNS) form a complex variable unit of 4 paired air-filled spaces at the opening of the proximal airway. The development of PNS starts from furrows and ridges in the lateral wall of nasal cavity during 8th week of development, and sinuses continue their formation as air cells within the cavities until early adulthood from the age of 20 to 25 years. Each sinus is named according to the skull bone in which they are located^{1,23}.

Paranasal sinuses include frontal sinus, maxillary sinus, ethmoid sinus and the sphenoid sinus, maxillary sinus is largest of all¹. Radiologic evidence of various sinuses appears by the age of 4-5 months after birth (maxillary sinus), 1 year of age (ethmoid sinus), 6 years of age (frontal), and 4 years of age (sphenoid). These 4 pairs of paranasal sinuses perform various important functions which are, air conditioning of the inspired air, improves the voice, provides quality and resonance to voice, act as thermal insulators to provide protection to the delicate structures which are present in the orbit and cranium from variable changes of intranasal temperature. It also, lightens the skull bones, provide extended surface for olfaction, offers immunologic defense against microbes, act as buffers against trauma and thus protect brain against any kind of injury^{1,24,11}.

Hippocrates in 5th century B.C. stated "In a person having a painful spot in head, with intense headaches, pus or fluid running from the nose removes the disease" which may be referred as sinusitis. Sinusitis is the inflammation or swelling of mucosal lining of PNS, and the spaces that secretes mucus which is necessary for the nasal passages to work effectively²⁵. Sinusitis occurs when there is impaired mucociliary apparatus function with meatal narrowing or even obstruction, excessive mucus production or excessive mucus build up, stagnant mucous collection results in the sinuses becoming inflamed. Sinusitis can be acute or chronic, it can occur due to various reasons, such as viral, bacterial, fungal infection, allergic reactions, or even it can occur due autoimmune reactions^{1,6,7}.

Frontal sinuses are mostly paired and lobulated in shape. They are commonly symmetrical in shape, with presence of septum between the pair of frontal sinuses. Sometimes one or both of the sinuses may be missing. Frontal sinuses are not present at the time of birth, their development starts at the age of two years and reaches full size early adulthood. The frontal sinuses are located in the posterior most part of supercilliary arches, between the external and internal tables of frontal bone. Presence of bilateral frontal sinus was reported in (78.6%) subjects and presence of unilateral frontal sinus was found to be present in (17.9%) subjects²³.

The most common anatomical variations of maxillary sinus were reported as pneumatization of the sinus and sinus septa. The prevalence of disease process in maxillary sinus was ranged from 7.5% to 66%¹⁵. The most frequent pathological findings of the maxillary sinus were sinus opacification, sinusitis, and mucosal thickening^{26,13}.

A study conducted in Philippines reported that most of the patients with sinusitis were males between age group of 31 to 40 years¹⁶. Most common anatomical variants were DNS, CB, agger nasi cells, and haller cells. Significant prevalence of anatomical variants of PNS was found among patients with sinus infection^{27,3,5,8,24,9}.

The study reported that the prevalence of bilaterally present agger nasi cells was found to be 100%²⁸. The success rate of FESS is completely related to the knowledge of complex sinus anatomy²⁸. Surgeon should be concerned about the anatomical variants of PNS for every patient before going for FESS^{28,3,4,6}.

The roof of ethmoid sinus is of great importance having close relationship with anterior cranial fossa. The anterior ethmoidal artery lies in the rostrum of ethmoid sinus, it is an anatomical reference point that goes from orbital region to anterior cranial fossa. Its location is of great importance during FESS. Adequate presurgical evaluation with CT scan imaging technique is important to assess the ethmoidal roof and its nearby structures^{29,30}.

Altered nasal septum occludes most of the nasal cavity considered as DNS. It is of three types osseous DNS, cartilaginous DNS and osteocartilaginous DNS type. DNS may result in compression of turbinate causing blockage of sinus drainage pathway and increases chances of infection and inflammation of the sinuses^{31,5}. Deviated nasal septum was found in 62% of cases. The close proximity of PNS to important structures and neurovascular bundle such as optic nerve, orbit, skull base, and internal carotid artery stresses on the need of identification of anatomical variations of PNS in order to avoid the serious complications of surgical procedure^{31,30,24}.

Usman studied anatomical variations of PNS and nasal cavity in which DNS was found in 31% of cases, CB was present in 18.9% of cases whereas variation in uncinate process was reported in 12% of cases. Haller cells and aggernasi cells were found in 3.7% and 6.8% of patients respectively. Pneumatization of nasal septum was observed in only one patient with prevalence of 0.7%. Pneumatized turbinates were not reported in any patient, although pneumatization of uncinate process was observed in 2.2% of cases. Septal spur was seen in 3% of cases. Fifteen patients observed had more than single anatomical variants. In 2.2% of cases CB and haller cell both were present. Variation in uncinate process with paradoxical medial turbinate were

seen in 2.2%. In 5.3% of cases DNS was present along with bony spur and in 1.5% of cases pneumatized nasal septum with pneumatized uncinate process was reported³².

The structural morphology of paranasal sinuses shows vast diversity. They all vary in size, shape, morphology and count of the septa present, as in sphenoid sinus the MS which is main septum, and AS which is additional septum. The sphenoid sinus is related with important anatomical structures with respect to their walls, including both vascular and nervous relations, in addition to the anatomical organization of the sphenoid sinuses which is of great significance in the various surgical procedures such as FESS. CT imaging technique is one of the most accurate methods for imaging of the paranasal sinuses to visualize various structures along with their extent and depth. This method allows doctors to distinguish the variations in the anatomical relations of the PNS, due to the obvious clear-cut illustration of the bony structures^{33,3,4,21,6}.

Sphenoidal sinus variation is broadly used in skull base surgeries in a common surgical procedure called functional endoscopic sinus surgery. FESS is one of the best choices in a variety of surgeries such as endoscopic orbital surgery, sinonasal tumors. Various nerves and vessels are present near sphenoid sinus which are at danger during surgical procedure. These structures will be at risk of injury during surgery because of anatomical variations which includes protrusion, dehiscence, and pneumatization. CT scan imaging is a useful technique for the detection of PNS anatomical variants. Besides diagnostic value, CT scan imaging is valuable for risk assessment factors produced by anatomical variations of PNS^{34,3,4,13}.

In 1904 the posterior ethmoidal air cells called onodi cells were first reported by Adolf Onodi. The reported incidence was 10% in Indian population. It lies superior to sphenoid sinus. Its close proximity to optic nerve, internal carotid artery makes its diagnosis imperative prior to FESS. Variants of optic nerve in relation to sphenoidal sinus are classified as type 1: optic nerve is near to sphenoid sinus without indentation, type 2: nerve is near to sphenoid sinus indenting the wall, type 3: nerve courses through sphenoid sinus and type 4: nerve is near to sphenoid sinus and posterior ethmoidal cell^{10,35}.

Coronal plane computerized tomographic (CT) scanning has markedly improved the imaging of complex PNS anatomy as compared to sinus radiographs. Increasingly subtle bony anatomical variations and mucosal abnormalities of this region are being detected. Computerized tomography (CT) offers the gold standard in terms of imaging the extent of disease pathology and the fine detailed anatomy of paranasal sinus ^{35,3,4,21,5,6,13,24}. Neither plain X-rays nor Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) offer optimal information in this respect^{35,3}.

The height of lateral cribriform plate lamella determines the

depth of the olfactory fossa. In 1962 Kero classified this height as: Type 1: 1-3mm, type 2: 4-7 mm, and type 3: 8 – 16mm. The increased depth of olfactory fossa produces a way for an increased chance of accidental injury to anterior cranial fossa during FESS, trauma and also in tumor erosion^{10,36}.

CT imaging is important to evaluate various pathologies of nasal cavity and PNS. It also helps to assess the fine bony details related to PNS, anatomical variants of PNS, and disease progress of PNS. Coronal high-resolution CT of the sinuses has become widely accepted as a necessary part of the preoperative evaluation of patients scheduled for FESS. CT scanning is better in identifying anatomical landmarks of PNS preoperatively and thereby reduces the complications of FESS. CT imaging technique is now established as the overall best method for evaluation of patients who are suspected of having a complex anatomy and any aggressive lesion of the paranasal sinuses (PNS)^{3,4,5,6,37,38}.

Literature has revealed that the conventional radiographs are of limited diagnostic use in evaluation of PNS diseases and modern imaging techniques like CT and MRI provide greater detail about the exact location, the extent of PNS disease and also helps in better understanding of complex anatomy, diagnosis and treatment plan of sinus diseases. It is also stated that CT is better than MRI in knowing the finer bony details, anatomical variations and fibro osseous lesions of PNS^{4,39}.

Literature search has also reported that the CT imaging proves to be a necessary tool in case of nasal pathologies as it provides a guide to the ENT surgeon and it also illustrates the whole pathway along with the anatomical variations of the individual and warns one of any existing or threatening complication of FESS^{4,6,40,41}.

It was concluded that use of CT scan is the most accurate approach in understanding the anatomical variations and diagnosing the diseases of PNS^{3,4,5,6,13,21,24}. Surgeon must keep in mind that, remove only as much as required and preserve as much as possible, this has been the most important instruction of FESS. The anatomy of the nasal cavity and PNS is variable in every individual so in order to prevent various surgical or iatrogenic complications such as CSF leak, surgeon must have good idea about anatomical variants of the subject. CT is the investigation of choice particularly for the patients who are scheduled for FESS, assisting the ENT surgeon to understand the complex and variable anatomy affecting the paranasal sinus region. Thus, it is termed as "ROAD MAP OF FESS".

Country	Year	Author name	Study type	Outcome	
Poland	2009	Rysz M, Bakoñ L ⁵²	Retrospective	Haller cells: 13%, Bony septa per sinus:26%	
Malaysia	2010	Vincent TE, Gendeh BS ⁵¹	Retrospective	DNS: 46.7%, CB:62.9% (unilateral), CB:37.1% (bilateral)	
Nigeria	2011	Amusa YB, Eziyi JA, et al. ⁵⁴	Cadaveric	Haller cells: 4%, Onodi cells:4%, Frontal cells:8%, Supra orbital cells:4%	
Italy	2012	Fadda GL, Rosso S, et al. ⁴⁹	Prospective	DNS: 58.5%, Agger nasi cell: 24.3%, CB: 49.3%, Halle cells: 22.8%, Onodi clls: 8.5%	
Pakistan	2013	Adeel M, Rajput MS et al.55	Retrospective	DNS: 26%, CB: 18.2%	
Oman	2014	Al-Abri R, Bhargava D et al. ⁵³	Prospective	DNS: 80%, Agger nasi cells:49%, Haller cells:24%, Onodi cells:7.5%, CB: 49%, Olfactory fossa: Type 1-30%, Type 2-34%, Type 3-36%	
India	2015	Tiwari R, Goyal R ⁵⁰	Prospective	DNS: 88.2%, CB: 76.4%, Agger nasi cells: 7%, Haller cells: 3.5%, Onodi cells: 1.6%	
Turkey	2016	Dasar U, Gokce E ¹⁹	Prospective	Agger nasi cells: 74.8%, CB: 67.5%, DNS: 59.5%	
South India	2017	Gouripur K, et al. ¹⁶	Prospective	Agger nasi cells: 96%, CB: 67.5%, DNS: 70%, Onodi cells: 6%, Haller cells: 14%	
Egypt	2017	Alsowey AM, Abdulmonaem G et al ¹⁵	Prospective	DNS:48.8%, Agger nasi cells: 30.6%, CB :30.6%, Haller cells: 11.2%, Uncinate process variations: 18.1%, Large ethmoid bulla:10%	
India	2018	Kalaiarasi R, Ramakrishnan V et al ¹⁷	Retrospective	CB: 54.7% bilateral, CB: 45.3% unilateral	
Philippines	2018	Espinosa W, Genito R et al. ²⁶	Retrospective	Agger nasi cells: 78.3%, Haller cells 41.6%, DNS: 20.0%, CB: 11.7%	
Turkey	2019	Yazici D. ⁴⁷	Retrospective	Haller cells: 19.3%, Onodi cells: 19%, DNS: 48.7% (right), DNS: 51.7% (left), Agger nasi cells: 82%, CB: 45.3%	
Nepal	2019	Shrestha KK, Acharya K et al. ⁴⁸	Prospective	DNS: 64.5%, CB: 19.7%, Agger nasi: 18.4%, Septal pneumatization:6.5%, Onodi cell: 3.9%, Haller cell: 2.6%	

Comparison:

equally prevalent in asymptomatic patients and in symptomatic patients of sinusitis. CT-scan can play an important role in formal preoperative assessment of normal anatomy along with variations of paranasal sinuses and nasal cavity that can have great impact over surgical planning and decreasing the ratio of surgical complications.

CONCLUSION:

Anatomic structural variations of nasal cavity and PNS have a practical importance during surgical procedures led on the sinuses by otolaryngologists.

The importance of this review is to identify the anatomical variations of PNS and nasal cavity on imaging techniques and their effective utilization while performing the minimal invasive FESS. CT-scan plays a fundamental role in the diagnosis of anatomical variations as well as of various diseases, for a better understanding in the decision making about clinical therapeutic and surgical approaches, acting as an indispensable aid for a better performance and success rate of less invasive operative techniques such as FESS.

REFERENCES:

- 1. Dhingra PL, Dhingra S. Diseases of Ear, Nose and Throat-E-Book. Elsevier Health Sciences. 2014; ED.5.
- 2. Jagannathan D, Kathirvelu G, Hithaya F. Prevalence of variant anatomy of paranasal sinuses in computed tomography and its correlation to sinusitis. IOSR J Dent Med Sci. 2017; 16:1-7.
- Turna Ö, Aybar MD, Karagöz Y, Tuzcu G. Anatomic Variations of the Paranasal Sinus Region: Evaluation with Multidetector CT. Istanbul Medical Journal. 2014;15(2).
- Hoang JK, Eastwood JD, Tebbit CL, Glastonbury CM. Multiplanar sinus CT: a systematic approach to imaging before functional endoscopic sinus surgery. American journal of roentgenology. 2010;194(6): 527-36.
- Shpilberg KA, Daniel SC, Doshi AH, Lawson W, Som PM. CT of anatomic variants of the paranasal sinuses and nasal cavity: poor correlation with radiologically significant rhinosinusitis but importance in surgical planning. American Journal of Roentgenology. 2015;204(6):1255-60.
- 6. Bolger WE, Parsons DS, Butzin CA. Paranasal sinus bony anatomic variations and mucosal abnormalities: CT analysis for endoscopic sinus surgery. The Laryngoscope. 1991;101(1):56-64.
- Shrikrishna BH, Jyothi AC, Sanjay G, Sandeep Samson G, Shrikrishna BH. Relationship of concha bullosa with osteomeatal unit blockage. tomographic study in 200 patients. Journal of Evolution of Medical and Dental Sciences. 2013;2(22):3906-15.
- Fadda GL, Rosso S, Aversa S, Petrelli A, Ondolo C, Succo G. Multiparametric statistical correlations between paranasal sinus anatomic variations and chronic rhinosinusitis. Acta Otorhinolaryngologica Italica. 2012;32(4):244.
- Shrestha KK, Acharya K, Joshi RR, Maharjan S, Adhikari D. Anatomical variations of the paranasal sinuses and the nasal cavity. Nepal Medical College Journal. 2019;21(1):7-11.

- Reddy UD, Dev B. Pictorial essay: Anatomical variations of paranasal sinuses on multidetector computed tomography-How does it help FESS surgeons? The Indian journal of radiology & imaging. 2012;22(4):317-24.
- 11. Shokri A, Faradmal MJ, Hekmat B. Correlations between anatomical variations of the nasal cavity and ethmoidal sinuses on cone-beam computed tomography scans. Imaging Science in Dentistry. 2019;49(2):103-13.
- 12. Jankowski R, Nguyen DT, Poussel M, Chenuel B, Gallet P, Rumeau C. Sinusology. European annals of otorhinolaryngology, head and neck diseases. 2016;133(4): 263-268.
- Zinreich, S. J., Stammberger, H., Bolger, W., Solaiyappan, M., & Ishii, M. Advanced CT imaging demonstrating the bulla lamella and the basal lamella of the middle turbinate as endoscopic landmarks for the anterior ethmoid artery. Rhinology online. 2019;7(2):32-43.
- Gupta S, Gurjar N, Mishra HK. Computed tomographic evaluation of anatomical variations of paranasal sinus region. Int J Res Med Sci. 2016; 4:2909-2913.
- Alsowey AM, Abdulmonaem G, Elsammak A, Fouad Y. Diagnostic performance of multidetector computed tomography (MDCT) in diagnosis of sinus variations. Polish journal of radiology. 2017; 82:713-25.
- Gouripur K, Kumar U, Janagond AB, Elangovan S, Srinivasa V. Incidence of sinonasal anatomical variations associated with chronic sinusitis by CT scan in Karaikal, South India. International Journal of Otorhinolaryngology and Head and Neck Surgery. 2017;3(3):576-9.
- Kalaiarasi R, Ramakrishnan V, Poyyamoli S. Anatomical Variations of the Middle Turbinate Concha Bullosa and its Relationship with Chronic Sinusitis: A Prospective Radiologic Study. International archives of otorhinolaryngology. 2018;22(03):297-302.
- Pynnonen MA, Gillespie MB, Roman B, Rosenfeld RM, Tunkel DE, Bontempo L, Brook I, Chick DA, Colandrea M, Finestone SA, Fowler JC. Clinical practice guideline: evaluation of the neck mass in adults. Otolaryngology–Head and Neck Surgery. 2017;157: S1-30.
- Dasar U, Gokce E. Evaluation of variations in sinonasal region with computed tomography. World journal of radiology. 2016;8(1):98-108.
- 20. Tiwari R, Goyal R. Study of anatomical variations on CT in chronic sinusitis. Indian Journal of Otolaryngology and Head & Neck Surgery. 2015;67(1):18-20.
- 21. Turkdogan FT, Turkdogan KA, Dogan M, Atalar MH. Assessment of sphenoid sinus related anatomic variations with computed tomography. The Pan African Medical Journal. DOI:10.11604/pamj.2017.27.109.7391
- 22. Arshad F, Begum S, Jan S. Volumetric Analysis of Frontal Sinuses by Using Cone Beam Computed Tomography in South Indian Population Scholars Journal of Dental Sciences (SJDS) ISSN 2394-4951 (Print). Imaging. 2018; 3:2-9.
- Mathuram AC, Aiyappan SK, Agarwal S, Raveendran NH, Valsala VS. Assessment of Sinonasal Anatomical Variants using 128-Slice MDCT in Patients with Chronic Rhinosinusitis. Radiology. 2019;4(2):120-26.
- 24. Shoib SM, Viswanatha B. Association between symptomatic deviated nasal septum and sinusitis: a prospective study. Res Otolaryngol. 2016;5(1):1-8

- 25. Ata-Ali J, Diago-Vilalta JV, Melo M, Bagán L, Soldini MC, Di-Nardo C, Ata-Ali F, Mañes-Ferrer JF. What is the frequency of anatomical variations and pathological findings in maxillary sinuses among patients subjected to maxillofacial cone beam computed tomography? A systematic review. Medicina oral, patologia oral y cirugia bucal. 2017;22(4):400-9.
- Espinosa W, Genito R, Ramos RZ. Anatomic variations of the nasal cavity and paranasal sinus and their correlation with chronic rhinosinusitis using Harvard staging system. J Otolaryngol ENT Res. 2018;10(4):190-3.
- 27. Alshaikh N, Aldhurais A. Anatomic variations of the nose and paranasal sinuses in saudi population: computed tomography scan analysis. The Egyptian Journal of Otolaryngology. 2018;34(4):234-41.
- Muñoz-Leija MA, Yamamoto-Ramos M, Barrera-Flores FJ, Treviño-González JL, Quiroga-Garza A, Méndez-Sáenz MA, Campos-Coy MA, Elizondo-Rojas G, Guzmán-López S, Elizondo-Omaña RE. Anatomical variations of the ethmoidal roof: differences between men and women. European Archives of Oto-Rhino-Laryngology. 2018;275(7):1831-36.
- Ribeiro BN, Muniz BC, Marchiori E. Preoperative computed tomography evaluation of the paranasal sinuses: what should the physician know? -pictorial essay. Radiologia brasileira. 2019;52(2):117-22.
- Kumar P, Rakesh BS, Prasad R. Anatomical variations of sinonasal region, a coronal CT scan study. Int J Contemporary Med Res. 2016;3(9):2601-04.
- Usman R, Hassan NH, Hamid K, Soban M, Darira M, Saifullah. Role of CT- Scan in Assessment of Anatomical Variants of Nasal Cavity and Paranasal Sinuses. JBUMDC 2016;6(4):219-22
- 32. Jaworek-Troæ J, Zarzecki M, Mróz I, Troæ P, Chrzan R, Zawiliñski J, Walocha J, Urbanik A. The total number of septa and antra in the sphenoid sinuses—evaluation before the FESS. Folia Medica Cracoviensia. 2018.
- 33. Joghataei MT, Hosseini A, Ansari JM, Golchini E, Namjoo Z, Mortezaee K, Pirasteh E, Dehghani A, Nassiri S. Variations in the Anatomy of Sphenoid Sinus: A Computed Tomography Investigation. Journal of Pharmaceutical Research International. 2019:1-7.
- 34. Bagul M. Computed tomography study of paranasal sinuses pathologies. Int J Sci Stud. 2016;4(4):12-6.
- Jagannathan D, Kathirvelu G, Hithaya F. Prevalence of variant anatomy of paranasal sinuses in computed tomography and its correlation to sinusitis. IOSR J Dent Med Sci. 2017; 16:1-7.
- Kandukuri R, Phatak S. Evaluation of sinonasal diseases by computed tomography. Journal of clinical and diagnostic research: JCDR. 2016;10(11):TC09.
- 37. Ribeiro BN, Muniz BC, Marchiori E. Preoperative computed tomography evaluation of the paranasal sinuses: what should the physician know? -pictorial essay. Radiologia brasileira. 2019;52(2):117-22.
- Yousef, M., Sulieman, A., Hassan, H., Ayad, C., Bushara, L., Saeed, A., & Ahmed, B. Computed tomography evaluation of paranasal sinuses lesions. *Sudan Medical Monitor*. 2014;9(3),123-26.
- Mirza, S.H., Kapoor, P. Advance of CT scan as an important imaging tool in evaluation of nasal polypoidal masses. *ARIPEX* - *Indian Journal of Research*. 2018;7(12):2250-1991.

- 40. Mokhasanavisu VJ, Singh R, Balakrishnan R, Kadavigere R. Ethnic Variation of Sinonasal Anatomy on CT Scan and Volumetric Analysis. Indian Journal of Otolaryngology and Head & Neck Surgery. 2019;1-8.
- 41. Jaworek-Troæ J, Zarzecki M, Mróz I, Troæ P, Chrzan R, Zawiliñski J, Walocha J, Urbanik A. The total number of septa and antra in the sphenoid sinuses—evaluation before the FESS. Folia Medica Cracoviensia. 2018;8(3),67-81.
- 42. Yousef, M., Sulieman, A., Hassan, H., Ayad, C., Bushara, L., Saeed, A., & Ahmed, B. Computed tomography evaluation of paranasal sinuses lesions. *Sudan Medical Monitor*. 2014;9(3),123-26.
- Gohar MS, Niazi SA, Niazi SB. Functional Endoscopic Sinus Surgery as a primary modality of treatment for primary and recurrent nasal polyposis. Pak J Med Sci. 2017;33(2):380-382
- 44. Akhter S, Zia S, Zafar R. Endoscopic repair of cerebrospinal fluid rhinorrhoea in a developing country. J Pak Med Assoc. 2012;62(9):972-4.
- 45. Adil R, Qayyum A. Correlation of x rays and computed tomography in paranasal sinus diseases. PAFMJ.2011; 61(3):413-7.
- 46. Sajid T, Kazmi HS, Shah SA, Ali Z, Khan F, Ghani R, Khan J. Complications of Nose and Paranasal Sinus Disease. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad. 2011;23(3):56-9.
- 47. Yazici D. The Analysis of Computed Tomography of Paranasal Sinuses in Nasal Septal Deviation. Journal of Craniofacial Surgery. 2019;30(2): e143-7.
- Shrestha KK, Acharya K, Joshi RR, Maharjan S, Adhikari D. Anatomical variations of the paranasal sinuses and the nasal cavity. Nepal Medical College Journal. 2019;21(1):7-11.
- 49. Fadda GL, Rosso S, Aversa S, Petrelli A, Ondolo C, Succo G. Multiparametric statistical correlations between paranasal sinus anatomic variations and chronic rhinosinusitis. Acta Otorhinolaryngologica Italica. 2012;32(4):244.
- Tiwari R, Goyal R. Study of anatomical variations on CT in chronic sinusitis. Indian Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg. 2015;67(1):18-20.
- 51. Vincent TE, Gendeh BS. The association of concha bullosa and deviated nasal septum with chronic rhinosinusitis in functional endoscopic sinus surgery patients. Med J Malaysia. 2010;65(2):108-1.
- 52. Rysz M, Bakoñ L. Maxillary sinus anatomy variation and nasal cavity width: structural computed tomography imaging. Folia morphologica. 2009;68(4):260-4.
- 53. Al-Abri R, Bhargava D, Al-Bassam W, Al-Badaai Y, Sawhney S. Clinically significant anatomical variants of the paranasal sinuses. Oman medical journal. 2014;29(2):110-13.
- Amusa YB, Eziyi JA, Akinlade O, Famurewa OC, Adewole SA, Nwoha PU, Ameye SA. Volumetric measurements and anatomical variants of paranasal sinuses of Africans (Nigerians) using dry crania. Int J Med Med Sci. 2011;3(10):299-303.
- Adeel M, Rajput MS, Akhter S, Ikram M, Arain A, Khattak YJ. Anatomical variations of nose and para-nasal sinuses; CT scan review. J Pak Med Assoc. 2013;63(3):317-319.



Local Drug Delivery to Treat Chronic Periodontitis

Mamoora Arslaan, Nasim Karim, Wahab Baksh Kadri, Shama Asghar

ABSTRACT:

Periodontal disease is a chronic inflammatory disease of periodontium characterized by increased pocket depth, clinical attachment loss, sulcular bleeding, and bone loss. Bacterial plaque bio-film stimulates host derived enzymes and cytokines like TNF α , IL-1 and matrix metalloproteases that lead to destruction of periodontium, collagenolytic activity, decreased bone mineral density, intra-bony defects and ultimately bone loss. Chronic periodontitis is managed by conventional and systemic approach, where conventional therapy comprises of scaling and root planning. Mechanical debridement of plaque also requires an adjunct to eradicate the root cause of progressing disease. Hence, worldwide paradigm has shifted towards novel therapies; therefore, local delivery of drug is now preferred due to direct access to target sites with considerably less adverse effects and a better approach to deal with chronic periodontitis. The nano-particle technology to treat periodontitis is still an emerging and promising strategy for the management of disease with the provision of minimal dose, less invasive procedure and clinical efficacy.

Keywords: Conventional therapy, Chronic periodontitis, local drug delivery, plaque, scaling and root planning.

L

L

L

L

INTRODUCTION:

Periodontitis is a gradual inflammation of the periodontal apparatus, comprising of gingiva, periodontal ligament and alveolar bone in response to microbial plaque, resulting in annihilation of the periodontium.¹

The worldwide prevalence of chronic periodontitis among the general adult population is reported to be 30-35 % whereas according to National Health and Examination Survey III (NHANES III, 1988-1994), 50% of the adult population in United States, 42% in Britain, 15.3% in Portuguese population has been reported in a study.³ In 2003; Pakistan estimated 93% for periodontal disease among 65 year old with higher incidence in the rural population.^{4,5}

The alveolar bone, gingiva, periodontal ligament and cementum are the closely related structures that collectively form the periodontium. The periodontal ligament is a fibrous, vascularised connective tissue that traverses the lamina dura. anchors the tooth to the alveolar bone, with the other half

Mamoora Arslaan (MPhil Postgraduate Student) Senior Lecturer, Pharmacology Department Bahria University Medical and Dental College Email: mamooraarslaan2004@gmail.com Nasim Karim Professor & HOD Pharmacology Department Bahria University Medical and Dental College I L Wahab Baksh Kadri Principal DentalCollege ,Professor & HOD Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery Department Bahria University Medical and Dental College I Shama Asghar Associate Professor & HOD **Endodontics Department** Bahria University Medical and Dental College Received: 13-Nov-2019 Accepted: 05-Mar-2020

attached to the cementum.⁶ The periodontium provides anchorage of tooth to the alveolar bone; provision of a barrier for the underlying structures from the oral microflora and distributed the forces of mastication.⁷

Antoni van Leeuwenhoek, a Dutch researcher, introduced the name of "microbial biofilm" as an adherent layer of microorganisms embedded in extracellular polymeric bacterial matrix.⁸ Amongst pathogens, Treponemadenticola, Porphyromonas gingivalis and L. acidophilus are considered to be responsible for periodontitis.9 The disease is initiated by chemotaxis of polymorphonuclear leukocytes (PMN) owing to bacterial lipopolysaccharide (LPS) antigen leading to release of cytokines $TNF\alpha$ and IL1 responsible for the resorption of bone and Matrix metalloproteinases (MMPs) released from fibroblasts that cause destruction of collagen. TNF^a and IL-1 played a vital role in the formation of osteoclasts leading to bone resorption, rapid detachment of gingiva from the tooth surface and ultimately pocket formation.10

Evidences are present to demonstrate two-way relation between periodontal and systemic diseases, where both conditions could aggravate each other; such as acute myocardial infarction, infective endocarditis, bacteremia, respiratory diseases, diabetes, alzheimers' disease, pancreatic cancer, cerebral infarction and obesity. Lertpimonchai and colleagues concluded improper tooth brushing techniques and irregular dental visits may lead to the evolution of chronic periodontitis associated with bone loss.11, 12

Clinical features of chronic periodontitis exhibits morphological changes in gingival tissue like edema, redness, reduced consistency, bleeding on probing, halitosis, loss of clinical gingival attachment, pocket formation, furcation involvement, tooth mobility and alveolar bone loss.^{13, 14}

According to the severity of the disease, the American Dental Association / American Academy of Periodontology 1999 guidelines has classified Chronic periodontitis as mild=>3 - <5mm periodontal pocket depth (PPD),1 - 2 mm clinical attachment loss (CAL); moderate = $5 - \langle 7 \text{ mm PD}, 3 - 4 \rangle$ mm CAL and severe = >7mm PD, = 5 CAL.^{15,16}

Conventional therapy is the most suggested approach to manage chronic periodontitis, also termed as "Initial therapy" comprising of supra and sub-gingival scaling root planning (SRP) with "adjunctive use of chemical agents."¹⁷However, conventional mechanical debridement procedures do not remove all pathogenic bacteria successfully from the subgingival sites, especially the ones found in non-accessible sites namely furcations, grooves, concavities, and deep pockets. Though systemic antibiotics produce beneficial effects in controlling the disease but they have the potential to produce adverse reactions and must be considered equally as their expected benefits. The world has shifted the treatment paradigm from conventional to local delivery system to treat chronic periodontitis. Therefore; this study aimed to assess the various local drug delivery strategies (intra-pocket) in order to provide more potent control of the disease and to avoid systemic adverse effects.

METHODOLOGY:

The search engines of google, google scholar and pubmed were used for literature search. Keywords and phrases used were chronic periodontitis, intra-pocket administration of drugs, gels, nanoparticles, periodontal fibres, periodontal strips, local delivery systems, adjunctive therapy to scaling and root planning, nanoparticles incorporated with drugs, and administration of drugs sub-gingivally.

The history tracking was from 2014 to 2019. A total of 58 articles were searched and selected for writing the review. Out of these, 2 studies were on non human (rats) and 5 articles had accessibility to abstracts only. 51 articles were relevant to this review. Therefore, 46 articles were selected for writing the review. (Flow Chart).



FLOW CHART

LOCAL DRUG DELIVERY STRATEGIES INTO THE **PERIODONTAL POCKET:**

Local drug delivery systems have been found beneficial due to direct access to target site which is usually non-responsive to conventional therapy. It also provides good patient compliance, bypasses first-pass metabolism in liver, have longer duration of action, cost effectiveness and safer route of administration. A still better approach is to introduce drug into the periodontal pockets where it actually stays confined, disseminates and is believed to produce better results than the systemic and other local strategies.¹⁸

Therefore, recommended drug delivery strategies through intrapocket administration are now available for the treatment of periodontitis and administered directly into the periodontal pocket directly. Such as; fibres, periodontal strip, films, gel, microspheres, nano particles, liposomes, nano-fibers, ointments etc.

1: Periodontal Fibers: The Periodontal fibers are the threadlike drug reservoirs that owe to drug delivery systems. They are inserted circumferentially within the periodontal pockets through an applicator. Then, fastened in-situ using an adhesive such as Cyanoacrylate with the provision of sustained release of the drug within the periodontal pocket.¹⁹ Abeer AK acknowledged that the hollow fibers of cellulose- acetate, infused with tetracycline hydrochloride through which the drug basically disperses out from the reservoir system into the periodontal pockets and helped in eradicating spirochetes effectively from the gingival sulcus. A polymeric fiber device had been manufactured by Johnston & Co-Workers comprised of alginate with glycerol fibers, cross-linked with positively charged ions of barium incorporated with Ciprofloxacin and Diclofenac Sodium. This drug was pH dependent and functioned by the process of diffusion at pH 4.0, hence, provides zero-order kinetics.²⁰

2: Periodontal Strips: A periodontal strip is an elongated thin, matrix band comprising of a flexible polymerinfused with the drugs dispersed evenly throughout its length with the virtue of securing interproximal space. The periodontal strips presented with noteworthy progress in different clinical parameters by eradicating microbes from the infected periodontal pockets. Since these are non-bio absorbable and removal after therapy is required as it may hamper tissue regeneration at the site.²¹

3: Films: Intra-pocket films are one of the most commonly used local delivery devices for periodontal pockets. The drug incorporated within the matrix of periodontal film spreads evenly throughout the polymer and is released in the infected sites by the process of diffusion or matrix dissolution.²² The merits are easy insertion, suitable accommodation within the pockets and patient compliance. Periodontal films comprised of water-insoluble, nondegradable polymersare facilitating the release of drugs by the process of diffusion only whereas others; formed by biodegradable soluble polymers release the drugs by the process of diffusion as well as matrix lattices or suspension ²³.Presently,ethylated cellulose films comprising a number of anti-microbials and anti-septics such as Chlorhexidine, Metronidazole, Tetracycline and Minocycline have also been developed so far to produce encouraging results. However; non-biodegradable films have been replaced by biodegradable polymers due to several demerits.²⁴

4: Gels: The Gels are semi-solid drug delivery mode and have gained awareness for delivering antimicrobials and other drugs to target the infected sites. This method offers several advantages like easy preparation; management; muco-adhesiveness to non-accessible sites and patient comfort.²⁵ While administering gels, the risk of irritation as well as allergies to host at the space of application is comparatively less due to the property of quick eliminating via simple catabolic pathways. Favorable results have also been achieved with the use of a number of organo gels and hydrocolloidal gels for delivery of antimicrobials like Tetracyclines (2.5%), Metronidazole (25%), Metronidazole benzoate (40%), along with the combination of tetracycline and metronidazole benzoate. ²⁶ The Hydrogels are the hydrophilic polymers comprising of 3D structures in a meshwork of cross-linked structures of hydrogen bonding and ionic bonding.²⁷ These type of gels provide structural strength, easy management at a cellular level and a source of bio-adhesiveness of drug.²⁸ Several polymers by the name of poloxamers, PLGA, collagen, D-glucosamine, Acrylic acid, Carbomer are incorporated to formulate a gel to provide an access of drug to the sites where conventional therapy alone cannot achieve desirable results. Gellan gum and lutrol with Ornidazole offered a muco-adhesive gel with the aim of drug release property. The gel used for this purpose is regarded as pseudo plastic, that is liquid at room temperature and less viscous at 34–37° C. The melting point of the gel is less than the body temperature, permits it to flow without obstruction all the way through the syringe into the periodontal pocket where it turns more viscous.²⁹. The Sol-gel transition along with its transformation into semisolid state appears on interaction with GCF due to monoglyceride and triglyceride. The glycerides possess the property of forming liquid crystals, which provides more appropriate controlled release peculiarities when comes into interaction with water.30

5: Micro-sphere particles: Microspheres are solid spherical polymeric structures of size ranging from 1–1000 mm and comprised of a drug which is dispersed throughout the polymeric matrix. These are available in the forms of effusive powders that provides sustained and controlled drug discharge at the specified space.³¹ Presently, there are several non-biodegradable and bio-degradable materials including polymers from natural and synthetic origin.³² Protection of an unstable drug from getting degraded, before and after administration; sustained drug release; patient compliance,

controlled therapeutic effects, increased bioavailability and decreased recurrence and intensity of adverse effects are significant benefits of employing micro sphere strategy.³³ The tetracycline infused micro-sphere particles provided extended release of drug and the antimicrobial activity was observed for more than 30 days against Staphylococcus aureus.³⁴ A Xanthan polymer infused with rosuvastatin and metformin showed decline in periodontal depth pockets , enhanced the clinical attachment levels by improvisation of gingival attachment as well as promote osteoblastogenesis.³⁵

6: Nano particles: The modern era of dentistry have been using so far microparticle-based hydrogels with the property of drug dispersion, which later on found to be affected by their structure . Several factors make the nanoparticles more beneficial over the microspheres, micro particles and emulsion-based delivery systems ³⁶. These are either dispersed particles or solid particles having size ranging from10-1000nm. The drug is suspended, incorporated and encapsulated to a nano particle matrix.³⁷These are dispersible extensively in an aqueous medium, there by offers a controlled release rate and increased stability. The polymerbased nanoparticles are impregnated through micelles polymerization with particle size ranging from 50-180 nm. By virtue of its small size, the nanoparticles can access nonreachable sites like the sub-gingival periodontal spaces and provides an efficient mode of delivery for antimicrobials that can hardly gain access to host cells.³⁸

7: Liposomes: Liposomes are the microscopic vesicles of lipids that are categorized as uni lamellar or multilamellar, derived from sphingo lipids, glycolipids, nontoxic surfactants, long-chain fatty acids, cholesterol and even membrane proteins.³⁹ They have the advantages of being bio-degradable, biocompatible,non-hazardous, non- immunogenic and highly stable.Simultaneously,few demerits like high cost production, short half-life, micro-leakage have been highlighted. Magnetite nano particles have been recently introduced within the newly developed liposomes like PEG-ylated liposomes and PEG-ylatedmagnetic liposomesranging from anaverage size of 204.3 nm to 286 nm, respectively,along with an iron component of 4.2 mg/ml.⁴⁰

8: Nano-fibres: Polymeric fibers having diameters in submicrons are known asNano-fibres.⁴¹ The Nano fibers provide many peculiarities like quite extensive surface area to volume ratio, advanced mechanical performance such as tensile strength, stiffness and rigidity and the flexibility in surface functionalities . In a recent study by Bottino and Co-workers, the effects of Metronidazole and Ciprofloxacin on periodontal pathogens have been assessed by using polydioxanone (PDS) which possesses degradable nano-fibersmatrices. The growth of pathogens like Fusobacteriumnucleatum and Aggregati bacteractinomycetemcomitans was inhibited after utilizing nanofibers comprising of ciprofloxacin while commensals remained unaffected.⁴² In a study of High Performance Liquid Chromatography (HPLC), it was revealed that the higher amounts of drug in formulations demonstrated more release over time than those with the minimal amounts, with least dispersion.⁴³

9: Ointment: The Minocycline ointment is an absorbableand prolonged drug delivery mode that comprises of 2% Minocycline HCl embedded in a matrix ofthe polymers Hydroxyethyl-cellulose, Aminoalkyl-methacrylate and Triacetine.⁴⁴According to a study, 1300ìg/ml of minocycline has been reported to be available in the pocket spaces for almost an hour, soon after the topical deliverance of 0.05 ml ointment (1mgof minocycline) which later onreduces to 90ìg/ml after 7 hrs.⁴⁵ Another study has concluded with the results that scaling and root planning in adjunct with ointment application was significantly better than scaling and root planning alone in severe chronic periodontitis owing to periodontal pockets greater than 7mm.⁴⁶

The world has shifted the treatment paradigm from the nonresorbable to a varying range of resorbable biodegradable polymers in order to achieve biocompatibility for sustained drug release, reduced frequency of dosing and less risks of developing bacterial resistance. Such strategies augment the effects of scaling and root planning therapy, thereby providing clinical efficacy to treat chronic periodontitis. Advanced clinical knowledge and better understanding of the periodontal disease has led to the introduction of novel drug administration methods which resulted in the innovative designing of targeted delivery systems for the minimization of the systemic adverse effects of anti-microbials and other drugs. These include the periodontal fibers, periodontal strips, periodontal films, chip, micro-particles, nano-particles and nano-fibers.

CONCLUSION: The nano-particle technology to treat periodontitis is still an emerging and promising strategy for the management of disease with the provision of minimal dose, less invasive procedure and clinical efficacy.

REFERENCES:

- 1. Srinath, S. Management of periodontal disease with doxycycline: An update. International Journal of Pharmaceutical and Clinical Research. 2015;7(4): 252-55
- S, R, RD, SH, SR, Khan NAB. Prevalence of chronic periodontitis in an obese population: A preliminary study.BMC Oral Health.2015;15:114. DOI 10.1186/s12903-015-0098-3
- Al Qahtani NA, Joseph B, Deepthi A, Vijayakumari BK. Prevalence of chronic periodontitis and its risk determinants among female patients in the Aseer Region of KSA. Journal of Taibah University Medical Sciences.2017;12(3): 241-48
- 4. Altamash M, Klinge B, Engström P.E. Periodontal treatment and HbA1c levels in subjects with diabetes mellitus. Journal of Oral Rehabilitation 2016; 43:31-8.
- SalwaMemon, FarzanaMemon, Hassan Shahid, Diya Ram Khatri, Shoukat Ali Memon. Prevalence of Gingivitis in School Children at Different Government Schools of District Hyderabad. JBUMDC. 2016; 6(4): 236-40

- 6. Jiang N,Guo W, Chen M,Zheng Y, Zhou J, Kim SG etal. Periodontal ligament and alveolar bone in health andadaptation: tooth movement. Front Oral Biology. 2016;18:1–8.
- Katancik JA, Kumarswamy A, BranchMays G, Califano JV. Infections of the Periodontal Apparatus.Head, Neck, and Orofacial Infections,2016;189–202. doi:10.1016/b978-0-323-28945-0.00011
- Jamal M, Tasneem U, Hussain T, Andleeb, S. Bacterial Biofilm: Its Composition, Formation and Role in Human Infections. Journal of Microbiology and Biotechnology.2015. e-ISSN:2320-3528 p-ISSN:2347
- ColomboAPV, MagalhaesCB, HartenbachFARR, DoSouto, RM,daSilvaBoghossianCM. Periodontal disease associated biofilm: A reservoir for pathogens of medical importance . Microbial Pathogenesis.2015;94 :27-34
- ZS, RH,LT, HF, DA, HA et al. Chronic periodontitis case definitions and confounders in periodontal research: A Systematic Assessment. HindawiBioMed Research International.2018. Article ID 4578782,
- 11. A, S, SAO, J, A. The association between oral hygiene and periodontitis: A systematic review and meta-analysis. International Dental Journal.2017;67(6):332-43.
- SpasovskiS, BelazelkoskaZ, PopovskaM, StojanovskaAA, RadojkovaNikolovskaV, MuratovskaI et al. Clinical therapeutic effects of the application of doxycycline in the treatment of periodontal disease. Macedonian Journal of Medical Sciences. 2017;4(1):152-57.
- 13. Nazir MA. Prevalence of periodontal disease, its association with systemic diseases and prevention. International Journal of Health Sciences.2017;11(2): 72-80
- 14. Attia MA, Mohamed AD, Alharthi AS, Almutawwif MA, Hamad AA, Alhuthali WM. Severity of chronic periodontiis associated with two major risk factors of periodontal disease in Makkah city. J Dent Oral Care.2017; 3(1): 9- 15. DOI: 10.15436/2379-1705.17.1316
- 15. Tanwar J, Hungund SA, Dodani K. Nonsurgical periodontal therapy: A review. Journal of Oral Research and Review.2016;8: 39-44.
- DeekshaJ, TarunG, AmitK, Goyal, Goutam R. Advanced drug delivery approaches against periodontitis. Drug Delivery. 2016; 23(2): 363-77, DOI:10.3109/10717544.2014.935531
- Shivani P, Jaimini G, Harita N, Lakshmi P, Pranav S. Advanced Local Drug Delivery Approaches for Periodontitis: A Strategic Intervention. A Journal of PharmaceuticalScience.2017;9(1): 4-11
- PooyaDavoodi, Lai YengLee ,QingxingXu , Vishnu Sunil , Yajuan Sun , SiowlingSoh, Chi-HwaWang. Drug delivery systems for programmed and on-demand release. Adv. Drug Delivery Reviews. 2018, 1-35. doi.org/10.1016/ j.addr. 2018.07.002
- MinghanChi ,Manlin Qi , Lan A , Ping Wang , Michael DW, Mary A M . Novel Bioactive and Therapeutic Dental Polymeric Materials to Inhibit Periodontal Pathogens and Biofilms. Int. J. Mol. Sci. 2019; 20: 278; 1-29 doi:10.3390/ijms20020278
- 20. Abeer AK, Doaa AEI, GehanSK, Ragwa MF. Thiolated alginate-based multiple layer mucoadhesive films of metformin for intra-pocket local delivery: in vitro characterization and clinical assessment.Drug Development and Industrial Pharmacy. 2017;43(1):120-31.

- Sah AK, Dewangan M, Suresh PK. Potential of chitosanbased carrier for periodontal drug delivery, Colloids and Surfaces B Biointerfaces.2019;178:185-98 doi.org/10.1016/ j.colsurfb.2019.02.04
- 22. LiviaN,Alfredo D R, Vincenza DG, VincenzoG, Giovanna D. A New Controlled-Release Material Containing Metronidazoleand Doxycycline for the Treatment of Periodontal and Peri-Implant Diseases: Formulation and In Vitro Testing International Journal of Dentistry.2019;1-10Article ID 9374607. doi.org/10.1155/2019/9374607
- Urooj A K, Uzma P, Anshul G, GauravKJ ,Farhan JA. Periodontitis: Progression And Treatment Approaches: A Review. Ejbps. 2018;5(6): 153-69.
- 24. Qinyuan C, Yang J, Xinjun Y. Hydrogels for Biomedical Applications: Their Characteristics and the Mechanisms behind Them. Gels. 2017;3(6):1-15 doi:10.3390/gels3010006
- KerongY,QingH,BingpengC,YuhaoZ,KesongZ,Qiang L et al. Antimicrobial hydrogels: promising materials for medical application. International Journal of Nanomedicine. 2017;3:2217-30
- 26. Tarek A, Bader M. A potential in situ gel formulation loaded with novel fabricated poly(lactide-co-glycolide) nanoparticles for enhancing and sustaining the ophthalmic delivery of ketoconazole. International Journal of Nanomedicine 2017:12(5):1863-75
- Mihaela V G, Mircea H, DumitruL, Cristina E DP. Flow and Thixotropic Parameters for Rheologica Characterization of Hydrogels. Molecules.2016;21:786:1-17doi:10.3390/ molecules21060786
- Huberth ARJ, Camila FS, Fernanda LS, Ludiele GM, PâmellaCD, Denildo DM. Local Drug Delivery Systems in the Treatmentof Periodontitis: A Literature Review. Journal of the International Academy of Periodontology.2015.17(3): 82–90
- Joshi D, Garg T, GoyalAK ,RathG.Advanced drug delivery approaches againstperiodontitis.DrugDelivery.2016;23:2,363-77. doi:10.3109/10717544.2014.935531
- GiulianoE, Paolino D, FrestaM ,CoscoD. Mucosal Applications of Poloxamer 407-Based Hydrogels: An Overview. Pharmaceutics. 2018; 10(3):159-83doi:10.3390/ pharmaceutics 10030159
- JianyuLi ,David JM. Designing hydrogels for controlled drug delivery. Nat Rev Mater. 2016; 1(12):4736-45. doi:10.1038/ natrevmats.2016.71.
- Mil é naL ,Nikolett K S, Vince A, András J ózsefLaki, IstvánAntal. Microparticles, Microspheres, and Microcapsules forAdvanced Drug Delivery. Sci. Pharm. 2019; 87(20):1-31.doi:10.3390/scipharm8703002
- Zeeshan S, Shariq N, Zohaib K, Vivek V, HaroonR, Michael G. Biodegradable Materials for Bone Repair and TissueEngineering Applications. Materials. 2015; 8: 5744-94; doi:10.3390/ma8095273
- 34. NourAlhusein ,Ian SB, Michael LB, Albert B , Paul ADB . ElectrospunZein/PCL Fibrous Matrices Release Tetracycline in a Controlled Manner, Killing Staphylococcus aureus Both in Biofilms and Ex Vivo on Pig Skin, and are Compatible with Human Skin Cells. Pharm Res. 2016; 33:237–46. DOI 10.1007/s11095-015-1782-3

- Dileep P, Kurian IG, PradeepAR. Comparative evaluation of subgingivally delivered 1.2% rosuvastatinand 1% metformin gelin treatment of intrabony defects in chronic periodontitis: A randomized controlled clinical trial. Journal of Periodontology.2018;89(11):1318-25.doi:10.1002/jper.17-0434
- Vijay M, Kuldeep KB, Asit V, Nishika Y, Sourav T, Kalvatala S et al. Solid lipid nanoparticles: emerging colloidal nanodrug delivery systems. Pharmaceutics.2018; 10(4):191-212. doi:10.3390/pharmaceutics10040191
- 37. H Lu, J Wang, M Stoller, T Wang, Y Bao, HHao. An Overview of Nanomaterials for Water and Wastewater Treatment. Advances in Materials Science and Engineering . 2016.1-10.doi.org/10.1155/2016/4964828
- Jean PD, Bérénice HH, Anne LF, Laurence N, Frédéric N. Self-Assembly of Bilayer Vesicles Made of Saturated Long Chain Fatty Acids. Langmuir, American Chemical Society.2016,32(2):401-10.
- 39. Alfonso TC, Mario FC, Jaime SS, Ernesto CN, Rafael J, Pavel A et al. Liposomes Loaded with Cisplatin and MagneticNanoparticles:PhysicochemicalCharacterization,P harmacokinetics, and In-Vitro Efficacy.Molecules.2018; 23(9): 2272-88. doi:10.3390/molecules23092272
- Rogalski JJ, Bastiaansen C W M ,Peijs T. Rotary jet spinning review – a potential high yield future for polymer nanofibers, Nanocomposites.2017;3(4):97-121, DOI: 10.1080/20550324. 2017.1393919
- 41. Muhammad Z, Shariq N, Zohaib K, Masoud V, Sana Z,Bilal N et al. Potential of ElectrospunNanofibersforBiomedical and Dental Applications.Materials.2016; 9: 73-94.
- 42. .Divya P, Maria TPA, Joshua DE, Malgorzata MK, Richard LG, Marco CB. Triple Antibiotic Polymer Nanofibers for Intracanal Drug Delivery: Effects on Dual Species Biofilm and Cell Function. J Endod. 2016;42(10):106-12
- 43. Marco CB, Rodrigo AA, Aaron W, Krzysztof K, Karen SG, Richard LG Biodegradablenanofibrous drug delivery systems: Effects of metronidazole and ciprofloxacin on periodontopathogens and commensal oral bacteria. ClinOralInvestig. 2014; 18(9): 2151–58.
- 44. Sara A ,Jaideep M , Geetha A. Minocycline Ointment as a Local Drug Delivery in the Treatment of Generalized Chronic Periodontitis - A Clinical Study. Journal of Clinical and Diagnostic Research. 2016 ; 10(6): ZC15-ZC1
- DeekshaJ, TarunG, AmitK, Goyal, Goutam R. Advanced drug delivery approaches againstperiodontitis. Drug Delivery. 2016; 23(2): 363-77, DOI:10.3109/10717544.2014.93553
- 46. Xi C, Guofeng W, Zhihong F, Yan D, Wei Z, Bei L, Shizhu B, Yimin Z. Advancedbiomaterials and their potential applications in the treatment of periodontal disease. Informa Healthcare USA. 2015;28:1829-38.DOI: 10.3109/07388551 .2015.1035693



Polycythemia Vera Complicated by Portal Vein Thrombosis and Budd-Chiari Syndrome:

Nabeela Iqbal, Syed Khalid Shah, Shamima Haneef

ABSTRACT:

Polycythemia vera is a medical condition characterized by raised hematocrit. Owing to increased viscosity, the blood flow in the vessels become sluggish leading to the clinical features of polycythemia such as headache, blurring of vision, red skin, dizziness, raised blood pressure, itching and more serious medical events like vaso occlusion, thrombosis and strokes. In this case report, polycythemia vera presenting unusually with heamatemesis, melena and abdominal distension. Physical examination of this case revealed massive ascites with dilated veins around the umbilicus. The diagnosis of polycythemia vera complicated by Budd Chiari Syndrome and Portal Vein Thrombosis was made. Patients with polycythemia vera are at risk of vaso occlusive sequelea like portal vein thrombosis and Budd chiari syndrome.

Key words: Budd chiari syndrome, Polycythemia Vera, Portal vein thrombosis.

INTRODUCTION:

Polycythemia vera is a disorder which is characterized by excessive production of red blood cells by the bone marrow. It may also lead to over production of white blood cells and platelets.¹ The WHO criteria for the diagnosis of polycythemia vera is as follows:

Major Criteria:

- 1) Heamoglobin >18.5 g/dl in men, Heamoglobin >16.5 g/dl in women
- 2) JAK 2 MUTATION or other functionally similar mutations

Minor Criteria:

1. Bone marrow biopsy revealing trilineage growth , hyper proliferation of erthrocytic, granulocytic and megakaryocytic precursors.

2. Serum erythropoietin levels below the lower limit of normal range.

3. Endogenous erythroid colony formation in vitro.

Diagnosis of polycythemia vera requires two major criteria plus one minor criterion OR 1st major criterion plus two minor.²

Patients with polycythemia vera are at on higher risk of thrombus formation and vaso occlusive crises attributable to the blood being thicker and sluggish to flow. The clinical

Nabeela Iqbal Consultant, Med Unit Ward-3

I	Civil Hospital, Quetta Email: nabeela.khan50@yahoo.com
	Syed Khalid Shah Professor, Med Unit Ward-3 Civil Hospital, Quetta
	Shamima Hanif Associate Professor, Med Unit Ward-3 Civil Hospital, Quetta
ļ	Received: 24-Feb-2020 Accepted: 06-04-2020

course of the disease is characterized not only by thrombotic complications but also by transformation to leukemias and myelofibrosis, thus causing increased mortality and morbidity. Increasing age, previous history of thrombotic events and marked leukocytosis are the major risk factors for thrombotic complications in polycythemia vera. Portal vein thrombosis (PVT) and Budd-Chiari syndrome both are splanchnic vein thrombosis. Despite of features suggesting PVT, the cell counts are not markedly raised due to iron deficiency, spleenomegaly and heamodilution thus rarely fulfilling the diagnostic criteria of polycythemia vera with these complications. BCS is characterized by hepatic vein outflow obstruction. It can be primary when the source is endo luminal i.e. pro thrombotic states and its secondary when the cause is extra vascular i.e. any tumor compressing from outside or any invasion. The etiology of primary BCS includes pro thrombotic disorders like myeloproliferative neoplasms, anti-phospholipid antibody syndrome, protein C, protein S deficiency, factor V Laiden mutation.³ Polycythemia vera is the most frequent cause of BCS and is seen in around 40% of the diagnosed cases.⁴ Portal vein thrombosis in the absence of liver cirrhosis and local malignancy is less frequently encountered and shows an etiological overlap with primary BCS. Acute portal vein thrombosis with associated portal hypertension presenting with massive hematemesis could be the initial presentation of polycythemia vera in previously asymptomatic patient. The strong relationship between Myeloproliferative neoplasms and splanchnic vein thrombosis would help the clinicians to screen the patients with MPN for SVT and vice versa. Hence the purpose of reporting this case was to highlight the clinical and molecular basis of MPN associated splanchnic vein thrombosis.⁵

CASE REPORT:

Т

L

I

A 50 years old man presented to medical ward of Sandeman Provincial Hospital Quetta on 13th February 2020 with abdominal distension since two months, hematemesis and melena since 3 days. Abdominal distension was gradual and

was associated with dull aching pain. He was afebrile and had no history of dark urine, head ache, seizures, loss of consciousness or itching. The family history revealed chronic myeloid leukemia in one of his brothers and was taking treatment for it. On examination the patient had congested lower conjunctiva without plethora. There was no evidence of jaundice. Patient had massive ascites with caput medusae and was mildly edematous.

Initial labs of the patient revealed the following; Hb 13.3g/dl, HCT 36.4%, MCV 70.2 fL, WBCs 19350/cmm, platelets 870000/cmm, ESR 09 mm/hr. Serum erythropoietin level was 3.75 IU/L i.e. i.e. around the lower limit of normal range. The liver function tests revealed ALT of 161 U/L, normal albumin and prolonged PT of 28 sec. His renal function tests and serum electrolytes were within the normal range. Viral marker were negative and an ultrasound of the abdomen showed massive ascites with cirrhotic liver, mild splenomegaly, dilated portal vein measured 1.8 cm, there was a thrombus in the portal vein. Moreover a Doppler ultrasound was performed which revealed absence of blood flow in the hepatic veins with partial thrombi in the inferior vena cava in addition to above mentioned USG findings. The ascitic fluid cyto chemical analysis showed a transudative picture with high SAAG ratio suggestive of portal hypertension. Upper GI endoscopy was performed which revealed grade III esophageal varices for which band ligation was done and the patients was started beta blockers too. Bone marrow biopsy was done and showed erhthroid hyperplasia, hyper proliferation of granulocytes precursors and megakaryocytes precursors. JAK 2 mutation test was ordered which came out to be positive and highly suggestive of myeloproliferative neoplasm with negative bcr-abl by FISH . A diagnosis of polycythemia vera complicated by Budd-chiari syndrome and portal vein thrombosis was finally made.

The patient was treated on the line of chronic liver disease. Later on when he became stabilized clinically, he was kept on low molecular weight heparin followed by oral anticoagulants. His phlebotomy sessions were done in order to keep his hematocrit with the normal range. Low dose aspirin was added to the treatment in order to prevent pro thrombotic complications after routine phlebotomy and routine anticoagulant therapy. JAK 2 inhibitor therapy Ruxolitinib was started for the underlying MPN i.e. polycythemia vera.

DISCUSSION:

The patient's normal Hb and HCT with low MCV could be attributed to hematemesis due to underlying portal hypertension induced variceal bleeding. Polycythemia is a stem cell disorder characterized by pan hyperplastic, malignant and neoplastic bone marrow. It's most prominent feature is increased red cell mass due to uncontrolled red blood cells production along with increased white blood cells and platelets production due to abnormal hematopoietic stem cells⁶. The JAK2 V617F mutation being present in 90-95% of polycythemia vera patients and in around 50% of ET essential thrombocytosis and myelofibrosis patients is used as a non-invasive diagnostic tool⁷. The mutation enhances the proliferative capacity of all erythropoietin independent erythroid colonies. Polycythemia vera is thus characterized by panmyelosis with significant quantitative and qualitative defects affecting all three cells lineages.

MPNs with negative Philadelphia are the most frequent pro thrombotic factor in splanchnic vein thrombosis. Hyper viscosity rendered by increased red cell mass in polycythemia vera is not the only factor leading vaso occlusive events, JAK 2 mutations also causes hyper sensitivity to cytokines which leads to production of pro thrombotic factors and adhesion molecules in the vessel walls.⁷ The strong association between MPNs and portal vein thrombosis and Budd-Chiari syndrome was confirmed by the high frequency of JAK2V617F amongst these patients, present in 17-35% and 30-45% respectively. JAK2 Mutation not only defines the molecular basis of the disease but also responsible for its raised hematocrit, thrombotic events, pruritus and response to hydroxyurea^{8,9}. JAK2 mutations have frequently seen in patients with splanchnic vein thrombosis thus JAK2 mutation screening has become a part of diagnostic work up in SVT⁸. Anti-coagulants along with diuretics are the main stay in the treatment of BCS in the absence of hepatic insult. However balloon angioplasty with stent placement also have roles. Interventions are done in patients with inferior vena cava involvement. The current recommendation for the treatment of acute portal vein thrombosis is anti-coagulation for at least 3 months aiming a target INR 2.0-3.0¹⁰. For polycythemia vera phlebotomy being the mainstay in the management, low dose aspirin is recommended to prevent the thrombotic complications like acute myocardial infarction, stroke and major thromboembolic events. However myelosuppressive therapy, hydroxyurea and JAK2 inhibitor Ruxolitinib are also used.^{10, 11}

CONCLUSION:

The risk factors for occurrence of SVT in MPN includes JAK2V 617F mutation, young age, female gender and concomitant other hypercoaguable states. Our case highlights a clear cut relationship between myeloproliferative neoplasms and incidence of splanchnic vein thrombosis. Understanding this association has significant implications on disease management and prognosis. The treatment of MPN should be started immediately as any delay could end up taking patient's life. Hence identifying the patients at risk of SVT and managing accordingly can considerably decrease the mortality and morbidity.

REFERENCES:

1. Ageno W, Dentali F, Squizzato A. How I treat splanchnic vein thrombosis. Blood. 2014;124:3685–3691.

- 2. Noronha Ferreira C, et al. Natural history and management of esophagogastric varices in chronic noncirrhotic, nontumoral portal vein thrombosis. Hepatology. 2016;63:1640–1650.
- De Stefano V, Qi X, Betti S, Rossi E. Splanchnic vein thrombosis and myeloproliferative neoplasms: moleculardriven diagnosis and long-term treatment. Thromb. Haemost. 2016;115:240–249v
- 4. Lavu S, et al. Splanchnic vein thrombosis in patients with myeloproliferative neoplasms: the Mayo clinic experience with 84 consecutive cases. Am. J. Hematol. 2018;93:E61–E64
- 5. Gianelli U, et al. Discrepancies between bone marrow histopathology and clinical phenotype in BCR-ABL1-negative myeloproliferative neoplasms associated with splanchnic vein thrombosis. Leuk. Res. 2015;39:525–529.
- 6. Finazzi G, Ageno W. Direct oral anticoagulants in rare venous thrombosis. Intern. Emerg. Med. 2016;11:167–170

- 7. Raskob GE, et al. Hokusai VTE Cancer Investigators. Edoxaban for the treatment of cancer-associated venous thromboembolism. N. Engl. J. Med. 2018;378:615–624
- 8. De Gottardi A, et al. Antithrombotic treatment with directacting oral anticoagulants in patients with splanchnic vein thrombosis and cirrhosis. Liver Int. 2017;37:694–699.
- 9. Barbui T, et al. Philadelphia chromosome-negative classical myeloproliferative neoplasms: revised management recommendations from European LeukemiaNet. Leukemia. 2018;32:1057–1069.
- Harrison CN, et al. Ruxolitinib vs best available therapy for ET intolerant or resistant to hydroxycarbamide. Blood. 2017;130:1889–1897
- 11. Mead AJ, et al. Response to ruxolitinib in patients with intermediate-1-, intermediate-2-, and high-risk myelofibrosis:results of the UK ROBUST Trial. Br. J. Haematol. 2015;170:29–39.



Emergence of Chikungunya Virus in Pakistan: What should be done?

Abbas Ali Hussain, Rabia Sarwar

BACKGROUND:

Since 10 years, Chikungunya – a virus spread through *Aedes* spp mosquitoes – has reemerged in Africa, southern and southeastern Asia, and the Indian Ocean Islands.¹ In South-East Asia, epidemics have been documented in India, Malaysia, Sri Lanka, Myanmar, Thailand, Indonesia, the Philippines, Cambodia, Vietnam, Hong Kong, and Pakistan.² In September 2016, despite the warning of National Institute of Health (NIH) about the possible danger of chikungunya after its outbreak in India, Pakistan suffered its initial chikungunya outbreak in Karachi, megacity of the province Sindh infecting over 3000 people. ³The very first case of Chikungunya outbreak in Pakistan was reported at a government facility in Malir, Karachi.⁴ According to recent studies conducted by WHO, Pakistan shares the highest burden of major vector-borne diseases such as chikungunya.

Chikungunya virus (CHIKV) is an alpha virus belonging to family *togaviridea*. It exists in three genotypes, the Asian, West African and East Central South African that are responsible for outbreaks in the respective areas. Chikungunya fever is spread by the bite of mosquitoes of the genus *Aedes, Aedes aegypti* being the principal vector.^{2,6,7} *A. aegypti* mainly multiplies in fresh water storages such as desert coolers, water-tanks etc and around human habituation (pots, bins, cans etc) in urban and semi urban environments. The virus is postulated to exist in a human-mosquito-human circuit, and the bite of the female mosquito accounts to infection because it requires blood meal for the formation of eggs.²

INTRODUCTION:

Chikungunya fever is a disease of debilitating nature associated with a variety of symptoms. Since the Indian Ocean outbreak, information related to clinical picture of patients infected with CHIKV has increased substantially.⁷ According to some studies, CHIKV fever affects all age groups and both sexes equally.^{2,8} However males and individuals with blood Rhesus-positive were found more sensitive to get the disease in a single study.⁷ The abrupt onset of high grade fever with rash, arthralgia in small joints

Abbas Ali Hussain

I

I

Final Year Student MBBS Jinnah Sindh Medical University, Karachi Email: abbasalihusain7@gmail.com

Rabia Sarwar Final Year Student MBBS Jinnah Sindh Medical University, Karachi

Received: 19-Jan-2020 Accepted: 06-Apr-2020 of hands and toes, back pain and headache are the characteristic clinical signs of CHIKV fever.^{1,2,6,7,9,10} The disease is now described in two clinical stages: Acute stage and the late stage of illness, with long-lasting arthropathy.

The initial 10 days after the start of the disease is characterized as the acute stage of illness.⁶ The most usual symptoms during this stage are sudden high grade fever which responds poorly to anti-pyretics, myalgias, headache, fatigue and polyarthralgias.^{1,2,6,7} Joint pain associated with the fever is found in majority of the cases and is mostly polyarticular, bilateral and symmetrical involving mainly small peripheral joints (hands, wrist, and ankles) and some large joints including knee and shoulder.^{2,6,7} The chronic stage is characterized by unpredicted relapses and persistence of symptoms.^{2,7} The affected patients may experience prolonged rheumatism with stiffness which can cause serious discomfort in walking and handling objects resulting in deterioration in the quality of life.^{2,6,7} The disease may also cause neurologic, ocular or hemorrhagic symptoms atypically.^{2,6,8}

Laboratory diagnosis is essential for a physician to diagnose Chikungunya fever and to distinguish it from diseases with similar clinical patterns like dengue virus infection. For this purpose samples collected early i.e. within a week after the infection are useful for virus detection and isolation due to high levels of viremia.¹¹ RT-PCR and real-time loop-mediated isothermal amplification (RT-LAMP) seems to be useful in early detection of viral DNA.^{2,6,11} Viral culture by using vero cells, mosquitos or mouse models may take a week to grow and requires a laboratory with biosafety level 3 facilities, yet it remains the gold standard test for diagnosing Chikungunya fever. Serological tests for the detection of specific anti-CHIKV IgM and IgG are more frequently used. Anti-CHIKV IgM is detectable after 3-5 days of infection and remains elevated for 3-6 months. Anti-CHIKV IgG is detectable after 14 days of infection and may persist in the blood for years. Techniques like ELISA, immunofluorescence, complement binding and haemagglutination offers limited specificity and sensitivity but can be used as alternative tools for detection.

Emergence and reemergence of infectious diseases is closely associated with climatic changes, Mosquito-borne diseases are among the most sensitive to it.¹² Pakistan, along with many other countries in Asia is undergoing a serious climate change which has nurtured a variety of arboviral illnesses including chikungunya fever³ In addition, wretched sanitary conditions, mountains of filth, open gutters and pools of stagnant water have contributed greatly to the outbreak.³ Each individual in Pakistan generates around 0.612 kg of waste per day which is increasing at a rate of 2.4%. It is estimated that Karachi alone produces over 20,000 tons of waste per day, major share of which doesn't reach the junk sites. Moreover, overflowing gutters and stagnant water also provides a perfect habitat for arthropod vectors to grow.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Currently, no authorized vaccine is commercially available for chikungunya fever however several vaccines have been tested with variable success rate.⁶⁻⁹ Moreover, treatment for chikungunya fever is highly symptomatic which includes the use of analgesics and antipyretics.^{2,6-9,11} Adequate oral rehydration and NSAIDs are the pillars of the treatment. For a country like Pakistan with debilitating sanitary conditions, Vector control and public awareness is crucial for the prevention of CHIKV.^{2,6,8,11} Public awareness should be encouraged via campaigns and seminars to eradicate CHIKV transmission. Different campaigns were conducted since the outbreak however these only educated the literate population of the community while the underprivileged people remained untaught. Educating the underprivileged will have a pivotal role in controlling the virus as it constitutes the majority in Pakistan. Limiting practice of covering only lower half of the body in hot weather and the use of mosquito repellents, bed nets and wearing long sleeves is highly recommended.

Efficient government and health ministry also plays a significant role in preventing outbreaks in a state. Despite the warnings issued by the National Institute of Health (NIH) after the outbreak in India, no precautionary measures were taken by the Pakistani Government. Airports and railway stations remained unchecked, sanitary conditions were not optimized and no productive strategies were implemented in the hospitals.³ Prevention of emerging infectious diseases are the responsibility of national governments and this cannot be delegated to any other agency. Strong political determination, educated ministers and adequate funding for preventive program management can help curtail the infection.

Early detection and accurate diagnosis is vital in controlling an infection.⁹ Unfortunately, due to deficiency of proper diagnosing resources in Pakistan, samples were sent to United States for detection. ³This diagnostic delay can lead to use of drugs which are contraindicated in chikungunya fever like aspirin which is an easily available over the counter drug in Pakistan and is generally self-prescribed for body aches (one of the symptoms of chikungunya fever).^{6,11} This can potentially increase in the misery of the patient therefore appropriate detection is important to prevent devastating outcomes of the disease. Overall, preventing an emerging infectious disease is a collaborative effort and a well-educated community with potent public health machinery can help a state to establish solid grounds in terms of health.

REFERENCES:

- 1. Burt FJ, Rolph MS, Rulli NE, Mahalingam S, Heise MT. Chikungunya: a re-emerging virus. The Lancet. 2012; 379 (9816):662-71.
- 2. Mohan A, Kiran DHN, Manohar IC, Kumar DP. Epidemiology, clinical manifestations, and diagnosis of chikungunya fever: lessons learned from the re-emerging epidemic. Indian Journal of Dermatology. 2010;55(1):54-63.
- 3. Mallhi TH, Khan YH, Khan AH, Tanveer N, Qadir MI. First chikungunya outbreak in Pakistan: a trail of viral attacks. New Microbes and New Infections. 2017;19:13-4.
- Kazi M. Brace yourself for new mosquito-borne disease: The Express Tribune; 2016. Available from: https://tribune. com.pk/story/1267248/alarm-bells-brace-new-mosquito-bornedisease/.
- Malaria and other vector-borne diseases: WHO EMRO; 2015. Available from: http://www.emro.who. int/pak/programmes/ roll-back-malaria.html.
- Simon F, Javelle E, Oliver M, Leparc-Goffart I, Marimoutou C. Chikungunya Virus Infection. Current Infectious Disease Reports. 2011;13(3):218.
- Thiberville S-D, Moyen N, Dupuis-Maguiraga L, Nougairede A, Gould EA, Roques P, et al. Chikungunya fever: Epidemiology, clinical syndrome, pathogenesis and therapy. Antiviral Research. 2013;99(3):345-70.
- 8. Her Z, Kam Y-W, T.P. Lin R, Ng L. Chikungunya: a bending reality2009. 1165-76 p.
- 9. Sudeep AB, Parashar D. Chikungunya: an overview. Journal of Biosciences. 2008;33(4):443.
- Wahid B, Ali A, Rafique S, Idrees M. Global expansion of chikungunya virus: mapping the 64-year history. International Journal of Infectious Diseases. 2017;58:69-76.
- 11. Ali I, Dasti JI. Chikungunya virus; an emerging arbovirus in Pakistan. JPMA The Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association. 2018;68(2):252-7.
- 12. Patz JA, Epstein PR, Burke TA, Balbus JM. Global climate change and emerging infectious diseases. JAMA. 1996;275(3):217-23.



DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2020027

Is Invasive Mucinous Breast Carcinoma A Rare Variant With Neuroendocrine Differentiation?

Ayesha Asghar, Aresha Masood Shah

We want to bring your attention towards the rare variant of breast cancer hence promoting its early detection and screening. The main advantage of early diagnosis is reduced tumor size without distant dissemination at the initial treatment.

Neuroendocrine malignancies are heterogenous with neuronal and endocrinal properties. Neuroendocrine cells are present throughout the body and hence neuroendocrine tumors (NETS) can arise from any anatomic region. Although breast cancer is the most frequently diagnosed cancer in women, breast NETS are very rare. With a prevalence of 1-2 cases per 10,000 women, breast NETS make up only 0.1% of all breast cancers and less than 1% of all NETS¹. In other histopathological subtypes of breast carcinomas, invasive ductal carcinoma is the most common breast tumor reported worldwide of which mucinous (colloid) variant is the rare histological subtype, accounts for 1-7% of all invasive carcinomas². However, 30% of invasive breast tumor are seen with nneuroendocrine differentiation, and is most commonly associated with mucinous and solid papillary carcinomas and therefore treated similar to another invasive carcinoma of breast³.

Mucinous carcinoma is well circumcised and have soft gelatinous consistency. It has two subtypes, pure mucinous or mixed type. Pure mucinous carcinoma is a rare cancer which most commonly occur in older women and less than 1% occurs in younger than 35 years of age⁴. Pure type is composed of entirely mucinous carcinoma with two further subtypes, hypocellular and hypercellular variants. Axillary lymph node involvement is commonly rare. In a study of Kashiwagi, demographical data of 71 patients with mucinous carcinoma of the breast have suggests tumor size ranged from 0.5cm-12.3cm with mean tumor diameter-3.1cm⁶. Mucinous carcinoma with neuroendocrine differentiation shows good prognosis but tumors which are expressed of HER 2 neu shows negative prognosis and has increased risk of recurrence and metastasis. Primary neuroendocrine tumors of breast have worst prognosis due to lack of long-term survival data hence it's difficult to make a prognosis for this carcinoma⁵.

Diagnosis of mucinous carcinoma depends upon tumor or lump detection on self-examination or through mammogram

Ayesha Asghar Final Year Student MBBS Jinnah Sindh Medical University, Karachi Email: ayeshaasghar98@gmail.com	
Aresha Masood Shah Final Year Student MBBS innah Sindh Medical University, Karachi	
Received: 09-Mar-2020 Accepted: 16-Apr-2020	

or MRI apart from that Ultrasound guided percutaneous core biopsy should also be ordered. Other signs include painful retracted nipples with discharge that isn't breast milk, unusual changes in the appearance of breast and milk.

Treatment plan include mastectomy or lumpectomy which do not differ from primary protocol treatment of all breast carcinoma. Adjuvant therapy such as chemotherapy, extra cranial stereotactic radiation therapy followed by endocrine hormonal therapy such as tamoxifen or an aromatase inhibitor which block the effect of estrogen. As mucinous carcinomas are estrogen and progesterone receptor positive hence it is likely to be effective². Apart from this most mucinous are also negative for HER 2 neu so they should not be treated with Herceptin. Neuroendocrine tumors of the breast have a significantly higher rate of local and distant recurrence and lower overall survival than Invasive ductal carcinoma². However, in the NCCN guidelines Mucinous Breast Carcinoma is regarded as the "a histological type with a favorable prognosis"⁵.

Mucinous carcinoma of breast being the rarest form of invasive carcinoma which is mostly associated with neuroendocrine differentiation should be kept into consideration while diagnosing the cancers of breast in old age women particularly postmenopausal women. Management plan for invasive carcinoma with Neuroendocrine differentiation is a challenge particularly the diagnosis owing to the variably present and cytological features of NTE⁴. Due to its rarity, data on molecular characteristics is limited hence more research should be done on this carcinoma to enhance the diagnostic and treatment modalities for upcoming doctors.

REFERENCES:

I

- Saeed A, Rehman A, Zaidi SAH, Shaukat T, Jamil K, Abdullah K. Neuroendocrine carcinoma of breast. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak. 2011;21(6):371-3.
- Al Haddad H AA, Abdel Hadi M. Mucinous breast carcinoma: Report of four cases and review of the literature. Clinical and Diagnostic Pathology. 2017;1(4).
- Rosen L GP. Neuroendocrine Tumors of the Breast. Archives of Pathology & Laboratory Medicine. 2017;141(11):1577-81.
- Yang M, Li X, Pang CH, Huang LP. Pure Mucinous Breast Carcinoma: A Favorable Subtype. Breast Care. 2013;8(1):56-9.
- 5. Varadharajan E, Priya S, Prakash G, Mugundan A, Easwaramurthi P. Mucinous Carcinoma of the Breast with Neuroendocrine Differentiation. Iranian journal of pathology. 2015;10(3):231-6.
- Kashiwagi et al.: Clinical significance of the subclassification of 71 cases mucinous breast carcinoma. SpringerPlus 2013 2:481doi:10.1186/2193-1801-2-481.

Instructions to Author

The Journal of Bahria University Medical and Dental College abbreviated as JBUMDC is a peer reviewed quarterly multidisciplinary biomedical journal of basic and clinical health sciences. It accepts manuscripts prepared in accordance with the "Uniform Requirements for Submission of Manuscripts for Biomedical Journals, updated December 2015", adopted by International Committee of Medical Journal Editors (ICMJE) & PMDC guidelines for medical & Dental journals. The Journal will encompass manuscripts from all fields of biomedical sciences in the form of Editorial (Invited/Editor), Original Article, Review Article (narrative reviews and systematic reviews), short communication, (Commentary), specical communication, brief report, recent advances, book review, personal views, case study, clinical images/visual vignette and letter to editor.

Peer Review Policy:

Every paper will be read by the editor and then will be sent to two reviewers. If statistical analysis is included examination by the staff statistician will be carried out.

Plagiarism:

JBUMDC follows the ICMJE, PMDC and HEC guidelines. Each manusript will be scrutinized.

Preparation of Manuscript:

Type the manuscript on ISO A4 (212×297 mm), with margins of at least 25 mm (1 inch). Type or print on only one side of the paper. Use double spacing throughout the manuscript. Start each section on new page. Number pages consecutively, beginning with the title page. Put the page number in the lower right-hand corner of each page.

Contents of Manuscript for submission:

Submission items include a Covering letter, Letter of undertaking duly signed by all authors, Ethicel Review Committee (ERC) Letter, Title page and the Manuscript [Abstract, Key words, Introduction, Methodology, Results, Discussion, Conclusion, Acknowledgement, Authorship, Conflict of interest, References, Tables , Figures]. Title page should have complete title of the manuscript, the names of all authors with qualifications, their department, affiliation, telephone number, e-mail, corresponding author, address for correspondence, short running title, source of funding (grant/equipment/drugs), number of figures and tables, total word count, total number of pages.

1. Abstract

It should have no more than 150 words for unstructured abstracts or 250 words for structured abstracts. The abstract should state the purpose of the study(objective), basic procedures (methodology with study design, subjects/animals, place & duration of study, drug/chemical/equipment,

procedure or protocol), main findings (results) and conclusion. It should emphasize new and important aspects of the study. Below the abstract provide, 3-10 key words that will assist indexers in cross-indexing the article and may be published with the abstract.

2. Introduction

State the purpose of the article and summarize the rationale for the study. Give only strictly pertinent references and do not include data or conclusions from the work being reported.

3. Methodology:

Describe your selection of the observational or experimental subjects (patients or laboratory animals, including controls) clearly. Identify the age, sex, and other important characteristics of the subjects. Identify the methods, apparatus (give the manufacturer's name and address in parentheses), and procedures in sufficient detail to allow other workers to reproduce the results. Identify precisely all drugs and chemicals used, including generic name(s), dose(s), and route(s) of administration. For randomized clinical trials provide information on all major study elements, including the protocol (study population, interventions or exposures, outcomes, and the rationale for statistical analysis), assignment of interventions (methods of randomization, concealment of allocation to treatment groups), and the method of masking (blinding). Authors submitting review manuscripts should include a section describing the methods used for locating, selecting, extracting, and synthesizing data. These methods should also be summarized in the abstract. All studies must be approved by the relevant Ethics Committee/Institution Review Board of the respective institutions.

4. Results

Present your results in logical sequence in the text, tables, and illustrations. Do not repeat in the text all the data in the tables or illustrations; emphasize or summarize only important observations. Describe appropriate indicators of measurement error or uncertainty such as confidence intervals, P values. Report complications of treatment and dropouts from a clinical trial. Specify any general-use computer programs employed for analysis.

5. Discussion and Conclusion

Emphasize the new and important aspects of the study and the conclusions that follow from them. Do not repeat in detail data or other material given in the Introduction or the Results section. Include in the Discussion section the implications of the findings and their limitations, including implications for future research. Relate the observations to other relevant studies. Link the conclusions with the goals of the study.

6. Acknowledgment

List all contributors who do not meet the criteria for authorship, such as a person who provided purely technical help, writing assistance, or a department chair who provided only general support. Financial and material support should also be acknowledged.

7. Authorship

Authorship credit is based only on the criteria laid down by International committee of Medical Journal Editors (http://www.icmje.org/recommendations/browse/roles-andresponsibilibies/defining-the-role-of-authore-andcontributors. html).1) substantial contributions to conception and design, or acquisition of data, or analysis and interpretation of data; 2) drafting the article or revising it critically for important intellectual content; and 3) final approval of the version to be published. 4) Agreement to be Accountable for all aspects of the work in ensuring that questions related to the accuracy or integrity of any part of the work are appropriately investigated and resolved. All Conditions must be met. Authors should provide a description of what each contributed.

8. Conflict of interest

All authors have to disclose and submit any financial /personnel relationship that might bias and inappropriately influence their work.

9. References

Majority of the references must be from last five years. Local references must also be included. Vancouver style should be followed. Examples are:

a) Standard journal article

List the first six authors followed by et al. I)Less than 6 authors:

Vega KJ, Pina I, Krevsky B. Heart transplantation is associated with an increased risk for pancreato-biliary disease. Ann Intern Med 1996; 1;124 (11):980-3

II) More than six authors:

Parkin DM, Clayton D, Black RJ, Masuyer E, Friedl HP, Ivanov E, et al. Childhood leukaemia in Europe after Chernobyl: 5 year follow-up. Br J Cancer 1996;73:1006-12

b) Organization as author

The Cardiac Society of Australia and New Zealand. Clinical exercise stress testing. Safety and performance guidelines. Med J Aust 1996; 164: 282-4

c) No author given

Cancer in South Africa [editorial]. S Afr Med J 1994;84:15

d) Chapter in a book

Phillips SJ, Whisnant JP. Hypertension and stroke. In: Laragh

JH, Brenner BM, editors. Hypertension: pathophysiology, diagnosis, and management. 2nd ed. New York: Raven Press; 1995. p. 465-78

e) Newspaper

Hasan Mansoor. Excessive use of drugs creating resistance to antibiotics. The Dawn 2013, 24 June; sect. Metropolitan (col.1-4)

10. Tables

Type or print out each table with double spacing on a separate sheet of paper. Number tables consecutively in the order of their first citation in the text and supply a brief title for each. Give each column a short or abbreviated heading. Place explanatory matter in footnotes. Explain in footnotes all nonstandard abbreviations that are used in each table. Identify statistical measures of variations, such as standard deviation and standard error of the mean. Do not use internal horizontal and vertical rules.

11. Illustrations (Figures)

Figures should be professionally drawn and photographed. Photographic prints $127 \times 173 \text{ mm} (5 \times 7 \text{ inches})$. Photomicro-graphs should have internal scale markers. Symbols, arrows, or letters used in photomicro graphs should contrast with the background. If photographs of people are used, either the subjects must not be identifiable or their pictures must be accompanied by written permission to use the photograph.

Figures should be numbered consecutively according to the order in which they have been first cited in the text. If a figure has been published, acknowledge the original source and submit written permission from the copyright holder to reproduce the material.

Legends for Illustrations

Type or print out legends for illustrations using double spacing, starting on a separate page, with Arabic numerals corresponding to the illustrations. When symbols, arrows, numbers, or letters are used to identify parts of the illustrations, identify and explain each one clearly in the legend. Explain the internal scale and identify the method of staining in photomicrographs.

Units of Measurement

Measurements of length, height, weight, and volume should be reported in metric units. Temperatures in degrees Celsius, Blood pressure in millimeters of mercury and all hematologic and clinical chemistry measurements in the metric system in terms of the International System of Units (SI).

Abbreviations and Symbols

Use only standard abbreviations. Avoid abbreviations in the title and abstract. The full term for which an abbreviation stands should precede its first use in the text unless it is a standard unit of measurement.

Sending the Manuscript to the Journal

Submit manuscript by e-mail: editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

or by post on CD with two hard copies to: Editor, JBUMDC, Bahria University Medical & Dental College, Sailor Street, DHA Phase-II, Adjacent PNS Shifa, Karachi. All correspondence regarding submitted manuscripts will be via e-mail.

S No	Type of	Abstract type and word	Key words	Total word	References	Tables	Figures
	Article	count		count		(Max)	(Max)
1	Editorial	-	-	1000-1500	10-12	-	-
2	Review Article	Unstructured (150)	3-6	3000-3500	40-60	4	2
3	Original Article	Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
4		1. Original Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
	Medical Education	2. Review Unstructured (150)	3-6	3000-3500	40-60	4	2
		3. Reproducible work (guide lines, questionnaire)	Mention Source, Accessed on, Retrieval date				
5	Short Communication /Commentary/ Opinions/ Perspective	-	-	1200-1500	15-20	2	1
6		1. Original article Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
	Student Corner	2. Views/Perspectives/ Opinions Unstructured (150)	3-6	1200-1500	8-10	1	1
7	Case Report	Unstructured (150)	3-5	1200-1300	10-12	1	5
8	Letter to Editor	-	-	400-500	1-5	-	-

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Peer Reviewed Multidisciplinary Quarterly Published Journal ISSN (print): 2220-7562, ISSN (online): 2617-9482 Recognized by PM&DC (IP/0072)

Online edition is available at URL: https://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk,

Indexed with Index Medicus for the Eastern Mediterranean Region (IMEMR),

ROAD Directory of Open Access Scholarly Resources at https://portal.issn.org/

Pakmedinet at www.pakmedinet.com/jbumdc,

Google Scholar at https://scholar.google.com.pk/,

Bahira University DSpace Repository at http://111.68.99.22:8080/xmlui/handle/123456789/6388,

Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Center (PASTIC) at http://pastic.gov.pk/



Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Published by Bahria University Medical & Dental College Adjacent PNS SHIFA DHA Phase II Karachi, Pakistan +92-21-35319491-9 # http://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk f https://www.facebook.com/jbumdc/, https://www.facebook.com/journal.bumdc.7